
Annual Report 2021



Contents
Vision, mission and values 1
This is Scandi Standard 2
The year in brief 4
Statement from the CEO and the Chairman 6
Trends and drivers 8
Strategy for profitable and sustainable growth 12
Financial and sustainability goals 15
Our markets, product segments and sales channels 17
Operations and value chain 23
Sustainability report 27 
The Scandi Standard share 48

CFO’s statement 50
Report by the Board of Directors  51
Consolidated financial statements 62
Parent Company financial statements 66
Notes 68
Proposed appropriation of earnings, and the Board of Directors’  
and the Managing Director’s certifica 98
Auditor’s report 99

Five-year summary 103
Segment information by quarter 104
Alternative KPIs 107
Definitions 108

About the sustainability report 109
GRI index 112
Auditor’s statement on the statutory sustainability report 115

Corporate governance report 116
Auditor’s Limited Assurance Report on  
Scandi Standard’s Sustainability Report and  
statement on the Statutory Sustainability Report 125
Board of Directors 126
Group Management  128
Annual General Meeting 130

About the annual and sustainability report
Pages 51–98 constitute the statutory annual report, which has been audited. Sustainability is integrated into the 
 operations and is therefore integrated in the Annual Report. Sustainability information can be found on pages 27–47 
and 109–115. Scandi Standard presents a reviewed sustainability report prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards: 
Core option, and a sustainability report in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act. This Annual Report is an 
English translation of the Swedish original. In the event of any discrepancies, the Swedish version shall govern.



Vision, mission and values 

Our vision

Better Chicken  
for a Better Life

We contribute to the joy of food and sustainable 
food production,byprovidinghealthy,innovative

chicken productsthatareproducedina 
responsible andresource-efficientway.

Our values

Openness
Openness means being transparent and honest, which enables 
us to help each other between countries and between functions 

sothatweareconstantlyimprovinganddeveloping.

Challenge 
Challenge means challenging ourselves and the industry every 
day.Wedothisbyalwaysaskingquestionstoidentifybetter

solutionsandconstantlyimprove.

Sense of Urgency
Acting now means there is no time to lose, as time waits for 

nobody.Weactquicklyandsmartly,andassumeresponsibility
for creating value throughout the value chain in order to  

make all consumers confident that they have made  
therightchoicebychoosingourproducts.

Itisalwayspossibletodothingsbetter.
We believethatourvision,missionandvalues
can enable Scandi Standard to produce better 
chicken and help people to lead better and 
healthier lives for themselves, their  families 
andourplanet.

Our mission

“The Scandi Way” 

Our mission is also our commitment to 
 sustainability, and for us this means how we 

work every day to create value and profitability 
with our products in a responsible way and 

contribute to the health and well-being  
of people, chickens and the  

planetweallshare.
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This is Scandi 
Standard

Scandi Standard is the leading producer of chilled, frozen and ready-made chicken 
products in the Nordic countries and Ireland. In Norway we also produce and sell 
eggs. Every day, in everything we do, we ensure that our products meet the  highest 
levels for quality, innovation and sustainability. Our well-known brands include 
Danpo, Den Stolte Hane, Kronfågel, Manor Farm and Naapurin Maalaiskana. 
Our customers are found in the retail, food service and food industry sectors and 
we export to more than 40 countries. Our ambition is to set the standard for 
chicken production in the markets in which we operate.
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Scandi Standard’s 
market position in 
each market

Net sales by segmentNet sales per sales channel Net sales per country

Sweden, 26%
Denmark, 30%
Norway, 18% 
Ireland, 19% 
Finland, 6%

Sweden, 26%
Denmark, 30%
Norway, 18% 
Ireland, 19% 
Finland, 6%

Ready-to-cook, 75%
Ready-to-eat, 21%
Other, 4%

Ready-to-cook, 75%
Ready-to-eat, 21%
Other, 4%

Retail, 65%
Export, 7%
Foodservice, 19%
Food industry/Other, 9%

Retail, 65%
Export, 7%
Foodservice, 19%
Food industry/Other, 9%

Net sales

10,101
SEK million

Operating profit

222
SEK million
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The impact of chicken on the climate
The carbon footprint of chicken is ten times lower than beef and significantly lower than 
Norwegian salmon; and in combination with the fact that chicken is one of the world’s 
most versatile foods, this means that chicken consumption is expected to grow over the 
next decade.*
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All figures in the graph represent Swedish meat, except the figures for salmon (Norway) and Quorn (UK).
Source: Open list – an excerpt from the RISE climate database for food v 1.7

* OECD-FAO report
** Greenhouse gases
*** Includes Scope 1 and Scope 2 from all major production plants. For more information, refer to the sustainability report p. 43–46

CO2 emissions

79.9
g CO2e per kg product***

Use of antibiotics

–28%
decreased share treated flocks

Employees

3,215
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The year in brief
Award in Ireland
Our new Irish brand Sicín Sásta (Happy Chicken) was launched in 
mid-March 2021 and celebrated half a year on the market with a 
prestigious award, when Irish grocery retailers presented “Brand 
MarketingTeamoftheYear”totheteambehindtheproduct.
 SicínSástahasloftyambitions:tobecomethenumberone
chickenbrandinIreland.Ithasalreadygonedownwellwithcus-
tomers thanks to high quality and emphasis on animal welfare, 
a localconnection,nutritionalcontentand,notleast,flavour.
Sicín Sástahasalsogarneredalotofattentionforitsinnovative
newpackaging.

Top animal care ranking for Den 
Stolte Hane 
The Business Benchmark on Farm Animal Welfare (BBFAW) is 
an internationalprogrammeforassessingtheperformanceof
businesses in relation to animal welfare and their reporting on 
the same.TheBBFAWisconductedannuallyandaimstohelp
achieve more transparency on animal welfare and better con-
ditionsforanimalsinfoodproduction.
 TheBBFAWhasbeenimplementedinNorwayforthefirsttime.
Den Stolte Hane was one of only two companies in Norway, and 
of 26 Norwegian companies overall, to receive the highest ranking 
–Tier1.

3% 2.2% –9%–49%
Organic growth amounted  

to 3 percent, which is lower than the 
long-term growth of 6–7 percent 

per year that we have  experienced 
historically.

The operating margin 
fell during the year due to lower 

profitsinReady-to-Cook.

Foot points, a leading industry 
 indicator for animal welfare,  where 
a lowscorecorrespondstogood
foot health, saw an  improvement 

from10.2to9.3at 
Group level.

Earnings per share fell by  
49 percent during the year and  
have been negatively impacted  

by a deterioration in  
operatingprofit.
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Right to movement and 
Kronfågel Ice Arena 
With the Right to Movement initiative, Kronfågel 
is aimingtosupportinitiativestogivemore
 children the opportunity to get moving and meet 
others,andisalsopassingon itsknowledgeof
goodfoodtoallparents.Kronfågelhassupported
tenorsoinitiativesalloverSwedenthisyear.
 OneofKatrineholm’smostpopularevent
venues has been renamed the Kronfågel Ice Arena 
inconnectionwiththeproject.Auniquecollabora-
tion between Kronfågel and the municipality of 
Katrineholm means that this arena will become a 
place where more young people and adults can 
meetupandgetmoving.Theaimistohelp
improve health and provide more opportunities 
to residentsofKatrineholm,wheremostof
Kronfågel’sstafflive.

Bird flu
Over the past year, there have been out-
breaks of bird flu in several of Scandi 
 Standard’s markets, however, none of Scandi 
Standard’s chicken growers have been 
affecteddirectly.Theteamsineachcountry
work closely with our growers on preventive 
measures such as good animal welfare and 
strengtheningimmunesystems.Atanover-
arching level, dialogue is ongoing with rele-
vant authorities to ensure preparedness 
and that the right measures are taken if 
infectionisdetected.Thisincludessetting
up zonal systems to guarantee disease con-
trol, as well as to introduce effective region-
alisation to prevent growers and the chicken 
industry being hit harder than necessary in 
theeventofexportrestrictions.

New state-of-the-
art facility in 
Finland
Naapurin Maalaiskana relocated 
all production, administration and 
logistics to new state-of-the-art 
sharedpremisesinLieto.More
space and better acoustics mean 
a clearly improved work environ-
mentforallemployees.Thenew
plant is highly efficient with the 
latest production technology 
installed, and dimensioned to 
meet customer demand for inno-
vative new chicken products in 
thefuture.

KPIs
SEK million 2021 2020

Net sales 10,101 9,940
EBITDA 598 699
Operating profit (EBIT) 222 351
Non-comparable items 9 –59
AdjustedEBITDA* 589 756
Adjustedoperatingincome(EBIT)* 213 410
Profit after net financial items 140 260
Profit of the Year 103 208
Interest-bearing net debt 1,980 1,933
Operating cash flow 347 476
Organic growth, % 3 3

% 2021 2020

EBITDA-margin 5.9 7
Operating margin (EBIT) 2.2 3.5
AdjustedEBITDAmargin* 5.8 7.6
Adjustedoperatingmargin(EBIT)* 2.1 4.1
Returnoncapitalemployed* 5.2 8.4
Return on equity 5.5 11.5
Equity/assetsratio 30 29.4
Average number of employees 3,215 3,220
Employee engagement index 721) 72
Feedefficiency,kgfeed/kgliveweight 1.52 1.52
1) Latestmeasurement2020.

*Adjustedfornon-comparableitems,seepage52.ScandiStandardimplementedanewdefinitionfortreatmentofitemsaffectingcomparabilityinthefirstquarter2021whichimpliesastricterclassificationofsuchitems. 
Financialinformationfortheyears2020to2017hasbeenrestatedrelatedtoitemsaffectingcomparability.Foradefinitionofalternativeperformancemeasures,seepage108.
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Johan Bygge has been the new Chairman of Scandi Standard since 
the springof2021,andhetogetherwiththeBoardappointedOtto
DrakenbergasinterimManagingDirectorandCEOinJune.Thisis
how theyjointlydescribethepastyear.

Johan Bygge: It has been very exciting to get to know the company and its prerequisite, 
and I see great potential going forward in terms of both business and product, but also in 
termsofourskillsandcapabilities.However,2021hasbeenaverytoughyearforScandi
Standard and we have faced both external and internal challenges; the rising cost of input 
goods, falling export prices, production challenges related to supply capacity and regula-
torycompliance,tonamebutafew.Wehavealsohadtoputtherightpeopleintheright
placesandcreateacleardivisionofresponsibilities.UnderOtto’sleadership,workbegan
onacomprehensiveGroup-wideimprovementprogrammelastsummer.Theaimofthis
programme is to return Scandi Standard to profitability in line with the 2016 to 2020 period 
as soon as possible, and to lay the foundations for long-term sustainable and profitable 
growthandreturnsfromthisstartingpoint.

Otto Drakenberg: In my assessment, we needed to put an improvement programme in 
place quickly to ensure that we worked in a focused way on both the general structural 
issuesandthemoreurgentmeasures.Combiningactionhereandnowwithmoreofa
long-termperspectivewaskey.Thehistoricallyhighpriceincreasesformanyofourinputs
goods, especially feed, have presented us with our greatest external challenge during the 
year.Thatwaswhyweconductedalargenumberofsuccessfulpricenegotiationswith
ourcustomersinthesecondhalfof2021inordertocompensatefortheseincreases.The
price increases will have a clear impact in 2022, and I am impressed by the way in which 
ourcommercialteamshavedriventhisworkinallmarkets.Wealsovaluethestrongand
professionalrelationshipswehavewithourcustomers.Thepriceissuewillcontinuetobe
key for Scandi Standard in both the short and the long term, not least in order to fend off 
continuedcostincreasesoninputfactors.

A lot of effort has also gone into reversing the negative developments in Denmark and 
Ireland, as well as the problems that arose in Sweden during the year, where low export 

New start for Scandi Standard 
after a challenging year

As we summarize 2021, I conclude 
that the foundation for Scandi 
Standard’s next development 
step is in place.

Scandi Standard Annual Report 2021
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pricesandproductiondisruptionsmadethesituationworse.InDenmark,thechallenging
situationintheReady-to-Cooksegmentalsobecameacute.Theearlierdecisiontoswitch
toanewbreedofslower-growingbirdswasmadewithoutsufficientcustomerinput.
 However, consumer demand for slow-growing chicken is increasing in the Danish market, 
and a new approach is now being implemented in close cooperation with our retail 
customersandlookspromising.

During the autumn, we launched a multi-stage programme of cost savings, the first part 
of which is now complete, while also reviewing our investment process and introducing 
newproceduresandmonitoringtoensurelong-termvaluecreation.

The Norwegian operations have had another strong year and developed into the most 
profitableintheGroup.

During my time at Scandi Standard, I have been really struck by how many talented, 
ambitiousandcommittedcolleagueswehaveintheGroup.Toreapthefullbenefitsofthis,
we have implemented a number of organisational and operational changes during the 
year,includingstaffchangesatmanagementlevel.Highlightingtalentedemployeesin
combination with the new energy received through external recruitment bodes well for 
takingthecompanytotherightlevelgoingforward.

Johan: Although the company has had a turbulent year, it is important to remember that 
thebasicpremiseofScandiStandardisstillhighlyrelevant.Chickenconsumptionislower
in our domestic markets than in much of the rest of the world, which is a good starting 
point for growth over time as chicken in itself is tasty, healthy and highly valued by con-
sumers.TheNordiccountriesareworldleadersinanimalwelfare,andthisisakeyissue
forendconsumers.Chickenisaclimate-smartproteinthathasanimportantparttoplayin
thetransitiontomoresustainablefoodconsumption.Thiswastrueatthetimeofthecom-
pany’slistingonthestockexchange,anditremainstruetoday.ScandiStandardhasalso
deliveredrobustgrowthovertime.Thecompanyisnowinastabilisationphasewherethe
emphasis is on putting the right resources in place quickly, in terms of both management 
andoperationalstructure.Thisisthewaytodeliveroncustomersatisfaction,quality,the
company’sperformance-andreturntargetsandthecompany’ssustainabilitypromise.

Otto: The Board and I share the view that a strong quality culture with a major emphasis 
on compliance and zero tolerance for unresolved non-compliances is absolutely crucial, 
bothnowandinthefuture.ThesituationinwhichtheSwedishbusinessKronfågelfound
itself in 2021 taught us that we have to work even harder to meet both our own high stand-
ardsandtheexpectationsofconsumers.Wenowhaveastructuredprocessinplaceto
identifyandaddresspotentialfuturedeviationsatourproductionplantsatanearlystage.

The fact that most of the challenges highlighted during the year were addressed before 
theendoftheyearwas,ofcourse,anencouragingsign.Thiswasmadepossibleby
 reducing the intake of birds for production in Sweden and Ireland, and by the intensive 
effortsoftheemployeesatourproductionorganisation.Aclearanddistinctmessage
fromthemanagementonwhatappliesinthiscompanywasalsoimportant.Thegrowing

confidence of our customers and consumers is the final proof of our progress in this 
continuousimprovementprocess.

Johan: As we summarize 2021, I conclude that the foundation for Scandi Standard´s next 
developmentstepisinplace.Althoughtherearestilluncertaintiesintheworld,Icanalso
see a lot of positive signs; and I am convinced that the company is more stable today 
becauseofthewayinwhichitfacedthechallengesof2021.Goingforward,thereiscon-
tinued emphasis on the ESG aspects, which are an integral part of Scandi Standard’s DNA 
andarereceivingincreasingattentionfromeveryone.During2020,thecompanysigned
theUNGlobalCompact.Thisisacommitmentthatwereneweveryyear,andweare
reportingonsustainabilityandresponsiblebusinessinthisreport.ScandiStandard’s
promise to constantly do more for our chickens, for people and for the planet we share 
is morerelevantthanever.

Otto: I believe that Scandi Standard should continue its long-term efforts to become the 
 recognised and clear leader when it comes to meeting and surpassing regulations on 
animal welfare, food safety and the work environment in our industry, while further 
strengthening the commercial position in each country, product development and correct 
pricingbeingtwocrucialparameters.Aswegetthesethingsright,Ihavenodoubtthat
Scandi Standard will set the standard for our category in the future, both in relationship 
to ourpartnersandtoourcustomersandconsumers.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all our staff for their extraordinary 
work duringthepastyear,andforthesupportthemanagementandIhavereceivedinour
efforts to overcome our challenges and make Scandi Standard ready for new growth going 
forward.

Johan: And I know I am speaking for both of us when I thank our existing shareholders 
for theirpatienceandtrust.Allthemeasuresnowbeingimplementedare,ofcourse,also
aimedatdeliveringadditionalshareholdervalue.On1April,ournewpermanentManaging
DirectorandCEOJonasTuneståltakesoffice.Withhisextensiveindustryexperiencehe
willtaketheseongoinginitiativesfurther.Iwouldthereforealsoliketotakethisopportunity
to thank you, Otto, for your very valuable efforts to build a stronger Scandi Standard from 
thegroundup.Andlastbutbynomeansleast,mywarmestthanksgotoallourstafffor
theirhardworkthisyear.

Otto Drakenberg
Managing Director 
and CEO

Johan Bygge
Chairman of the 
Board
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Trends and 
drivers for 
chicken in the 
global market

The demand for chicken has continued to rise steadily over 
recent decades, while major global issues such as climate 
changeareaffectingallfoodproduction.Chickenisavery
good type of food from both a climate and health perspective 
andhasalowenvironmentalimpact.Itisalsorichinprotein,
butlowinfatandeasytovarywithdifferentflavours.

Low climate 
impact
The climate impact of chicken is 
ten times lower than beef and 
significantly lower than Nor-
wegian salmon, according to a 
climate database produced by 
the Research Institutes of 
Sweden(RISE).Comparedto
other animal proteins, chicken is 
very efficient when it comes to 
convertingfeedintomeat.

Growing consumer 
awareness 
An increasing number of people are 
making conscious decisions and choosing 
foods both from a health point of view and 
withregardtotheenvironment.Thisis
driving the development from red meat 
and sugar to, in the first instance, chicken 
andfish,butalsotoplant-basedfoods.
At thesametime,growingconsumer
awareness is driving the need to introduce 
more detailed lists of ingredients and the 
demand for products with fewer ingredi-
ents and additives, as well as less pro-
cessed foods, These are aspects that 
promotechickenasanaturalchoice.

Scandi Standard Annual Report 2021
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Authorities are 
legislating for healthier 
foods
Growing public health issues such as obesity, 
diabetes and other diseases linked to poor 
diet have led several countries to introduce 
laws and taxes to promote the consumption 
of healthier foods, such as the sugar tax in 
Norway.Chickenisrelativelylowincalories
and high in protein, it is therefore considered 
tobehealthierforushumansthanredmeat.
Food recommendations from around the 
world unanimously indicate that a healthier 
diet should contain more white meat and less 
redmeat.

Affordable protein
Chicken is an extremely affordable 
source of protein for the individual, 
societyandtheenvironment.The
 relatively short growing period of 
chicken implies, for example, a lower 
feed and energy usage than for other 
types of animal protein, which results 
inlowerproductioncosts.

A growing population  
is driving growth
The growing population will continue to drive growth globally 
and there are no major structural changes that are expected 
toaffectdemand.Chickencontinuestobethefastestgrow-
ing animal protein source and is forecast to account for about 
halfoftotalgrowthby2029.TheOECDestimatesthatcon-
sumption will increase in Europe and Central Asia by almost 
2 kgpercapitato28kgpercapitain2029*.

*OECD/FAO(2020),OECD-FAOAgriculturalOutlook2020–2029,FAO, 
Rome/OECDPublishing,Paris,https://doi.org/10.1787/1112c23b-en.
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Changes in food consumption 
The convenience wave and “Convenience Food” supersede all food trends, includ-
ing“HoodFood”(locallyproduced)and“CleanEating”(foodwithoutadditives).
The growth of food recipe delivery services, online shopping and products that 
areboughtready-to-eatareallexamplesofthis.Thistrendcan beseeninevery
category from cheap, simple food to gourmet food, and from the unhealthy to the 
healthy.Chickenhasanaturalplaceinalltrendand foodcategoriesandismostly
bothlocallysourcedandfreeofadditivesandantibiotics.
Asurveyalsoshowschangesinattitudestoconveniencefood.Since2015,the

number of discussions in social and traditional media on this topic has gradually 
increased.Whereasbeforeitwaslinkedtothemorenegativeaspectsoffast
food, such as diabetes and sugar intake, the discussions are now about the 
 climate and the impact of food on the environment, both in terms of carbon 
dioxideemissions,andintheuseofplasticsandsingle-usepackages.

Accepted in a globalised world
In a world where globalisation is constantly increasing, people from different 
culturesandreligionsarelivingsidebyside.Althoughvarioustraditions,customs
and food habits remain, some other habits change; for example, many people in 
the West who used to eat red meat and pork are turning away from them for both 
healthandenvironmentalreasons.Itischallengingforschools,hospitals,staff
canteens and other food service companies who want to be able to offer deli-
ciousandnutritiousfoodthatissuitableforeveryone.Chickenoffersaperfect
solutionasitisacceptedbythemajorityofthemajorreligionsintheworld.
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Case:  
Hatching on site
One of our most important areas for better 
animal welfare is to provide the best possible 
conditionsforournewlyhatchedchickens.
Proper incubation and housing and early 
access to water and feed are examples of 
 factors that have a major impact on their health 
and wellbeing throughout the rearing process 
as well as on growth and development of the 
immunesystem.

– How the newly hatched chicken feels and is handled is 
crucialtoitsabilitytostayhealthyandabsorbnutrients.
This is why we have long-term partnerships with selected 
parent bird farms, and try to carefully optimise the cooper-
ationandourownprocesses.Wearealsocontinuously
investing in new intelligence and new ways of working so 
as to give our chickens the best possible start in life, says 
TommiSaksala,DirectorGroupLiveOperations.

Hatching on site
Traditionally, chickens are hatched in a hatchery and then 
transported to the farmer’s premises when they are a day 
old.Thiscanposeariskofstressornegativehealth
impacts.

One alternative is to allow hatching to take place directly 
in thechickenstallsatthefarmer’spremises,i.e.totrans-
porttheeggsthereinadvance.Thebigdifferenceforthe
chickens is that they have direct access to food and water 
and do not have to wait for this while they are being 
transported,forexample.Inconclusion,itincreasesthe
chancesofchickensbeingcalmandhappy.

This concept has been tested and successfully applied 
tosomeofourchickensinDenmarkandNorway.

Over the past two years, preparatory efforts have 
been madetoswitchtofull-scale“farmhatching”forour
operationsinIreland.Amongotherthings,wehave
invested in equipment and conducted trials with farmers, 
withpositiveresults.

3
success factors:

Direct access to food, water,  
andnotransport.
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Strategy for 
profitable and 
sustainable growth
Foodisdeeplyrootedinlocaltraditions,culturesandtastes.
Our overall strategy combines the strength of being a group 
and the ability to run efficient production processes on a large 
scale across several countries with the local context required 
tocreatestrongbrandsthatconsumersappreciate.
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MISSION
The Scandi Way – the way we work every day to become better and make a difference, 

promotinghealthandwellbeingforthepeople,thechickensandtheplanet.

CULTURE
WeareOpen | WeChallenge | WehaveaSenseofUrgency

STRATEGY 1
Product innovation 

and business 
 development

STRATEGY 2
Commercial 

 optimizations

STRATEGY 3
Drive cost out  

of supply chain

STRATEGY 4
Optimize the  
broiler value

STRATEGY 5
Agile 

organisation

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY
Being local and drive scale efficiencies

VISION

Better Chicken for a Better Life

Scandi Standard Annual Report 2021
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Our five strategic areas

Strategy review 2022

Our goal is to grow at a
similar or better rate than
the market by continuously
delivering product innovations
and building strong
localbrands.Weinvestin
product development that
contributes to products
with a higher degree of
refinement and a more
extensive product range
featuring new categories
which in turn will lead to
growth..

Our aspiration is to constantly 
streamline our operations by 
integrating joint planning, 
 systems and management to 
ensure the optimal balance 
between commercial excel-
lenceandproductioncapacity.
Investments in improved auto-
mation and the optimisation of 
cutting technology provide 
a riseinbothefficiencyand
productivity per employee, 
a betterreturnperbirdand
lesswasteinproduction.

We are constantly looking for 
new ways of capitalising on 
the strength of being a group, 
to work and act as a company 
and thereby improve efficiency 
acrosstheentirevaluechain.
Coordinating production and 
sales resources across the 
markets in order to ensure 
that thebesttechnologyand
processes are being applied 
throughout the Group is a vital 
element to achieving 
profitability.

Our focus is on a measurably 
high level of animal welfare, 
sustainability and feed quality 
along with value-based 
replace ment models to ensure 
that our chicken maintains a 
high and consistent quality 
thereby generating the con-
ditions for a higher value for 
ourfinishedproducts.

The needs of our customers 
and consumer trends in con-
stant flux require a fastpaced 
organisation that lives our 
values and that creates a 
 culture that inspires and 
attractstheverybesttalent.

Work began in 2021 on a strategy review for the entire 
Group,bothcentrallyandintheindividualcountries.This
process will continue over the first six months of 2022 and 
will be based on insights from the challenges faced by the 
companyduring2021.Theupdatedstrategysetsouta
path for long-term value creation and profitable growth by 

enhancing focus on sustainability and compliance, along-
side continued efforts to tighten up our commercial and 
operationalcapabilities.Thestrategyisrootedinaninclu-
sive approach involving many managers and employees 
throughout the development process, while also being 
refined.

Product and business 
development

Commercial  
optimisation

Cost awareness in the 
value chain Optimise broiler value An agile organisation
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Financial targets
Medium-term goals Results 2021 Results 2017–2021 Objective

Net sales
Annual average organic 
growth in line with or 
abovemarketgrowth.

+5%
(5Y CAGR)

0

2

4

6

8

20212020201920182017
0

2

4

6

8

20212020201920182017

% Net sales, 5Y CAGR EBITDA-margin1)%

Growth in line with or higher than 
growth in the market shows that 
operations are retaining or 
increasing their market share, 
provingthatwearecompetitive.

EBITDA 
margin1) 

Exceed 10 percent in the 
mediumterm. 5.8%

An EBITDA margin of more than 
10 percentisimportantforusto
be able to ensure good profitability 
andastrongcashflow.

Interest-
bearing  
net debt/
EBITDA1)

2.0—2.5xEBITDA(LTM),
but may temporarily 
exceed this level to allow 
for capturing opportuni-
ties for organic growth 
andacquisitions.

3.4
0.0
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.5
3.0
3.5
4.0

20212020201920182017

Interest-bearing ned debt/EBITDA1)

The interest-bearing net debt in 
relation to EBITDA measurement 
shows how well our capital struc-
ture reflects our size and profitabil-
ity.Ifthemeasurementiswithin
this target, we are well prepared 
for leaner times and we have the 
capacity to take advantage of 
futureacquisitions.

Dividend  
ratio

Approximately 60 percent 
of profit for the year 
adjusted for non-com-
parable items on average 
overtime.

0%

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

20212020201920182017

%  Dividend ratio

2)

This measurement shows how 
much of the profit is distributed 
amongtheshareholders.Ahigh
and stable dividend level is impor-
tant for the share to be an attrac-
tiveinvestment.

1) EBITDAadjustedfornon-comparableitems.ScandiStandardimplementedanewdefinitionfortreatmentofitemsaffectingcomparabilityinthefirstquarter2021whichimpliesastricterclassificationofsuchitems.Financialinformationfor
theyears2020to2017hasbeenrestatedrelatedtoitemsaffectingcomparabilityforthealternativeperformancemeasuresadjustedEBITDAandadjustedoperatingincome(adjustedEBIT).Foradefinitionofalternativeperformance
measures,seepage108.
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Sustainability goals 
Medium-term goals Results 2021 Results 2017–2021 Objective

Employee 
engagement

Satisfaction and 
motivationindex71.

72 
latest 

measurement 
2020

60

65

70

75

80

20212020201920182017

Index

No
measurement

No
measurement

No
measurement

1)

Motivated employees who are thriving are 
essential to the Group’s development and suc-
cess.ThisismonitoredatGrouplevelthrough
the ScandiPuls employee survey, which is 
conductedeverytwoyears.Nosurveywas
 conducted for all employees in 2021, only for 
officeworkers.

Carbon 
dioxide 
emissions,  
g CO2e per 
kg product

–5% per year
–1.4%

79.9g CO2e per 
kg product2)
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g CO2 Scandi Standard views climate change as one 
of the most crucial matters of our age, and we 
need to do our part to reduce emissions, and 
also identify and manage the risks resulting 
fromclimatechange.Thedatareportedinclude
energy use at our own larger production 
facilities.

Use of 
antibiotics

<1% 
flockstreated. 5.2%

0
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5

20212020201920182017

13 11

0,00,2 0,33

7 5,2

0,0

%  Flocks

* * * *
0,1

< 1%

Antibiotic resistance is a serious global health 
challenge.Wehaveanimportantroletoplayin
minimising the use of antibiotics in food pro-
ductionbykeepingourchickenshealthy.

Feed 
efficiency 
(feed 
conversion 
ratio) 

1.49kgfeed/kglive
weight 1.52

1,4

1,5

1,6

1,7

20212020201920182017

< 1.49

Kg feed Feed efficiency is an important indicator in 
ordertooptimisetherearingprocess.Chickens
are very good at converting feed into meat, the 
feedefficiencyisa directindicatorofthequality
of the feed, and how well the chickens are being 
takencareof.

1) OurIrishcompanyManorFarmparticipatedforthefirsttimein2018,whichmeanstheresultsareexclusiveofIreland73,higherstack.
2) Includesenergyconsumption(Scope1and2)atourlargerproductionfacilities;moredetailedinformationwithlargerscopeispresentedintheSustainabilityReport.
3) Since2018,theresultisreportedincluding(higherstack)andexcludingIreland.

3) 3) 3) 3)
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Our markets, 
product segments 
and sales channels
ScandiStandardhasoperationsinalltheNordiccountriesandinIreland.
Furthermore, we export products to over 40 countries around the world 
and we deliver to retail outlets, restaurants, restaurant wholesalers and 
foodserviceaswellastoindustry.Thebusinessisdividedintoourmain
productsegmentsReady-to-cook,Ready-to-EatandOther.Thechicken
market overall is characterised by stable organic growth, particularly in 
the Nordic markets where the consumption of chicken is still relatively 
low andisthereforeapotentialsourceofcontinuedhighgrowth.
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Our markets
Net sales per market, external sales

Largest competitors 2021

Sweden: Guldfågeln, Atria

Denmark: HK Scan

Norway: Nortura, Norsk Kylling

Ireland: Western Brand, Shannonvale

Finland: HK Scan, Atria
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Forecast Source: OECD-FAO

Global consumption of poultry

ScandiStandard’sdomesticmarketsconsistoftheNordiccountriesandIreland.Inthesecountrieswehaveour
producingplants.Allmarketsarecharacterisedbyahighlevelofdomesticprideinlocallyproducedproductsand
ScandiStandard’sbrandsarewellknownandholdastrongpositionineachmarket.Theconsumptionofchickenin
 Ireland is greater and more in line with other European countries in relation to the Nordic countries which means there 
isagreaterpotentialforhighergrowthintheNordiccountries.Ourexportmarketsconsistprimarilyoftherestof
EuropeandAsia,whereweforthemostpartsellproductssuchaswingsandfeet.

Kg
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Source: Association of Poultry Processors 
and Poultry Trade within the EU, Swedish Board 
of Agriculture and others, and the company’s 
best estimates.

Association for the EU

Annual
growth

Growth potential
Chicken consumption per capita and year

AFRICA

13
MSEK

ASIA

50
MSEKEUROPE

2,989
MSEK

NORDIC 
COUNTRIES

7,049
MSEK

TOTAL

10,101
MSEK
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Our product segments
Ready-to-cook
Ready-to-cook (RTC) is our largest product category and com-
prisesproductsforself-preparationbythecustomerorconsumer.
They can be whole birds, cuts of meat, deboned and seasoned, or 
marinatedproducts.WeselltobothRetailandFoodserviceinour
domestic markets in the Nordic countries and Ireland, and we also 
sellforexport.

The products can be divided into the subcategories of chilled 
andfrozenproducts.Chilledproductsaresoldfreshtocustomers,
so there are stricter requirements for production planning and 
logistics.Thefrozenproductsarequick-frozenafterproduction.
The products are frozen before they are packaged and most 
productsarealsofrozenindividuallytomakethemeasiertothaw.
Although products are sometimes frozen at the production plant, 
theyaregenerallyfrozenatthefreezerwarehouse.
Wealsosellchickenthatisgrilledinstoreinsomemarkets.This

means that chickens that have been prepared to be grilled for retail 
aresoldtothestoresandsoldfreshlygrilledoverthecounter.

The biggest selling product in all of our markets is the natural 
chickenfillet.Thereisalwaysariskofoverproducingwingandleg
products, as the demand for these products does not keep up with 
thedemandforfillets.Thereneedstobewhatisknownasan
‘anatomicalbalance’inthesalesmix.Thisiswhyweareworking
intensely with the innovation of products that use other parts of 
thechicken,forexample,bydeboningthem.Bone-freeproducts
are more attractive and command a higher price, for example, 
ChickenSteakwhichisadebonedchickenleg.Wearealsoworking

Share of total net sales

75%
Share of group net sales for RTC per country 

Sweden, 28%
Denmark, 20%
Norway, 19% 
Ireland, 25% 
Finland, 7%

Sales over time, RTC, MSEK
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Organic growth

1%
Operating profit

110 MSEK

on processing charcuterie products, such as bacon and sausages, 
whereothertypesofcutscanbeused.

Sales in Sweden have previously largely consisted of frozen 
products with a low degree of processing, but in recent years the 
trend has shifted towards a higher proportion of fresh and more 
processed products that offer more convenience to the consumer, 
which is a positive development as these products command a 
higherprice.Othercountriesdonothavethesametraditionof
frozen products, as chilled products are the primary product cate-
gory.Wealsoseeasimilartrendwhereconsumersdemandmore
refinedproductsinallourdomesticmarkets.Wealsodeliver
Ready-to-cookproductstoallmarketsunderretailprivatelabels.

Net sales

7,611 MSEK
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Ready-to-Eat
Ready-to-Eat (RTE) are products that have been prepared in the pro-
cessing process, which means that they can be consumed directly 
orafterbeinglightlyheatedup.Productiontakesplacemainlyatour
own plants, but in some markets we also produce through partner-
ships,whichexpandsourproductportfolioandbrandexposure.

We produce Ready-to-Eat products at three plants with slight 
variations.FarreinDenmarkisourlargestReady-to-Eatplant.
This plantproducesfrozenReady-to-Eatproducts,burgersand
mostlycoatedproductslikenuggets,butalsootherfriedproducts.
One common factor in all of the production is that freezing is part 
oftheproductionprocess.Ahighshareoftheproductionin
DenmarkgoestoMcDonald’sandotherfast-foodcustomers.
The plantinFarreproducesproductsthatarebasedonchickens
that have been slaughtered and cut at our own plants, and using 
ingredientsthathavebeenpurchasedexternally.

We also have a processing plant in Sweden connected to the 
slaughter house in Valla, which produces chilled processed prod-
ucts.OurplantinStokkeinNorwayproducespre-grilledchilled
products.

The convenience food trend is growing stronger in our domestic 
markets, particularly in Norway, where the proportion of cooked 
products is higher, and where we have enjoyed great success with 
the Fried & Sliced product series, pre-fried and sliced chicken fillets 
inarangeofspices.

Share of total net sales

21%
Share of group net sales for RTE per country 

Sweden, 21%
Denmark, 63%
Norway, 15% 
Finland, 1%

Sales over time, RTE, MSEK
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Net sales

2,112 MSEK

Organic growth

12%
Operating profit

138 MSEK
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Other
This category includes the sale of surplus products primarily 
intended for non-food uses, and is used in the industrial production 
of animal feed and for other applications, which is in line with 

Scandi Standard’s ambition to make use of the whole animal as 
this helps to minimise production waste and reduce the carbon 
footprint.

Share of total net sales

4%
Share of group net sales for other products  
per country 

Sweden, 18%
Denmark, 52%
Norway, 4% 
Ireland, 18% 
Finland, 7%

Other sales over time, MSEK
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Net sales

377 MSEK

Organic growth

–5%
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Our sales channels
Net sales per sales channel

Retail, 65%
Export, 7%
Foodservice, 19%
Food industry/Other, 9%

Retail
Retail comprises approximately 65 percent of our sales and 
growthishighestinchilledandReady-to-Eatproducts.Ourmar-
kets are characterised by a high degree of consolidation among a 
few established companies with strong market positions in each 
market.Inrecentyears,theseestablishedactorshavebeenchal-
lenged first by low-price chains and now by online shopping, even 
though online shopping continues to represent a small share of 
retail.Strictregulationsforanimalwelfareandlawsforfoodsafety
as well as full compliance are essential if consumers are to trust 
theproductswithinretail.Theleveloftrustishigh,particularlyfor
locallyproducedproducts.Ourmarketsarealsoessentiallyfree
fromsalmonella.

Foodservice
The Foodservice sales channel refers to sales to restaurant whole-
salers and catering kitchens such as schools, hospitals, nursing 
homes and similar operations, but also in some instances directly 
to restaurants and other companies who sell ready-made food, 
suchaspetrolstations.Therestaurantchannelhasahigher
underlying growth than the retail sector, and the number of 
restaurantvisitsiscontinuingtoincreaseinallourmarkets.
 Experience shows that chicken accounts for a higher proportion of 
consumptioninrestaurantsthaninmealsathome.

Traditionally the proportion of imports has been higher in this 
sales channel than in retail as the origin is not clarified in the same 
way.Weareseeingsignsinsomeofourmarketsthatawarenessis
increasing among restaurant visitors, so the origin of the food is 
becomingmoreimportant.

This sales channel accounts for 19 percent of Scandi Standard’s 
sales.Thisisapriorityareaandhasbecomemoreimportantin
recentyears.InvestmentsinmoreReady-to-Eatproductsthatsuit
this sales channel and the coordination of market canvassing will 
contributetoincreasedsales.ScandiStandardisalsoamajor
 supplier to many fast-food chains in several countries in Europe, 
includingMcDonald’s.TheGroup’sprocessingplantinDenmarkis
certifiedfordeliveriestoMcDonald’s.

Exports
Scandi Standard mostly exports to retail chains and restaurant 
wholesalersinEurope,outsideourdomesticmarkets.Products
suchaswingsandfeetarealsoexported,primarilyto Asia.
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Operations and value chain

Central production management

Feed production
Parent bird 
breeding Hatching Rearing Slaughtering Processing Sales

Sweden

Denmark

Norway

Ireland  

Finland

Overview of the stages of production that take place in each country in which Scandi Standard has operations:

We have a lot of responsibility for the business that we run: responsibility to the animals we rear, the people 
who workwithusandwhobuyourproducts,andsocietyfortheresourcesweuse.Everystageofproduction
is surroundedbythoroughplanning,checksandfollow-upstoensurethatwecanoffergoodfoodthathas
been producedunderthebestpossibleconditions.

Our business is based on a value chain where each stage is con-
tinually evaluated and developed and where the focus is always 
on careforpeople,chickensandtheenvironment.Ourambition
is tocreateandusesynergieswithintheGroupbyusingshared
processes and exchanging knowledge and ideas between the 
operations.Allproductionmanagementandtheoperationofthe
production units is organised under a central Groupwide function 
toensurethatproductionisasefficientaspossible.

Our value chain
The work to produce good food starts several generations before 
ourchickensarehatched.Thehensandroostersatourparent
farms are supplied by highly specialised bird companies, whose 

breeding is systematically based on the characteristics that the 
customersrequireintherearingtheyareinvolvedwith.Thehealth,
growth and behaviour of the parent bird and the slaughtered bird 
are checked and monitored continually during their lifecycle to 
ensure that the right qualities are promoted and that the entire 
rearing process is performed as effectively as possible with regard 
totheenvironment,careandfeeding.

Feed production
Our operations in Ireland also include production of our own feed 
forrearingchickens.Whenthefeedisbeingproduced,meticulous
checksarecarriedoutonitscompositionandnutritionalcontent.

“ The work to 
produce good food 
starts several 
generations before 
our chickens are 
hatched”
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Parent bird breeding
The parent birds live in pens where light, temperature and moisture 
are checked and adapted continually to ensure that the flocks are 
healthy and can live under conditions that are as natural as pos-
sible.Bothhereandatlaterstagesintheproductionchain,itis
important for the animals to be of the same age and size to ensure 
thatflocksoperateasefficientlyaspossible.Thehenshave
accesstoenclosednestswheretheygotolaytheireggs.Most
henslayanaverageofoneeggperday.Fromtheconveyorbeltthe
eggs are loaded onto crates and are taken to a temperature-con-
trolledeggwarehousebeforebeingtransportedtothehatchery.

Hatching
At the hatchery the eggs are first inspected to check that they have 
beenfertilisedandcontainanembryo.Theeggsarethenplaced
on trays that are put on an incubator trolley, where the tempera-
ture, moisture and carbon dioxide content in the air are carefully 
regulated.Whenthehenherselfsitsonhereggs,sheturnsthem
several times a day to make sure the yoke (the embryo) is pro-
tectedinthecentreoftheegg.Inthehatchery,theeggistilted
 forwards and backwards by machine in the trays to achieve the 
sameeffect.After18daysontheincubatortrolley,theeggsare
placedinhatchingtraystoawaithatching.Hatchingstartsonthe
egg’s 20th day in the hatchery and the process is completed just 
pastthe21stday.Anaverageof85percentofeggsproducesalive
chicken.Oncethenewlyhatchedchickensareseparatedfromthe
remnants of the shell, their quality is checked and it is then time to 
transporttheday-oldchickenstoarearingfarm.

Rearing
ScandiStandarddoesnotoperateanyfarmsontheirown.Allgrow-
ers are carefully selected suppliers who are monitored regularly to 
ensurequalityandgoodanimalwelfare.Therearingfarmsmaintain
constant supervision of the chickens to make sure that they are in 
good condition and that the environment meets all the criteria to 
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ensurethebestwell-beingoftheanimals.Thechickensliveinflocks
of the same age and are fed with carefully tested feed to ensure 
optimalgrowth.Whenthechickenscometotherearingfarm,they
weighanaverageof40grammes.Beforetheyareslaughtered
35 daysafterhatching,theyweighanaverageof2.1 kg.Duringthe
fiveweeksattherearingfarm,theyhaveeatenapproximately3.3kg
feedanddrunk5litresofwater.Itisimportantforthefeedtomain-
tain an even quality over time, which is why the nutritional content of 
thefeediscontinuallytested.InIrelandweproducefeedourselves,
howeverthisisoutsourcedinourothermarkets..

Slaughtering and processing
Transport to the slaughter house must be as calm as possible for 
thechickens.Thechickensarenormallycollectedintheearlymorn-
ingwhentheyarecalmafteranight’srest.Whentheyarriveatthe
slaughter house, they are placed in a peaceful and dark environment 
forafewhoursinordertominimisetheirstress.Beforetheyare
killed, the chickens are stunned with carbon dioxide gas with a grad-
ualandrisingconcentrationofcarbondioxide.Thegradualeffectof
gas stunning is preferable from an animal welfare perspective since 
thebirdsdon’tfeeldiscomfort.Thestunningcausesthemtoslowly

becomeunconsciousandfallasleep.Afterthat,thebirdsareso
heavily anesthetized that in practice they become brain dead and 
theirheartsstopbeating.Thestunningisirreversible,ietheanimals
cannotwakeupafterwards.Deathisthencausedbyamachinesev-
eringtheircarotidartery.Afterthistheirinsidesandfeetare
removed.Thepluckedanddrawnchickensthenpassthrougha
chillingtunneltobecooleddownbeforetheygotobecut.Thechick-
ens that are going to be sold as whole chickens go directly to pack-
aging.Theotherchickensmoveontothemainautomatedcutting
process.Wings,legsandfilletsareseparatedandeithergointheir
natural state to packaging, or to be seasoned, where they are  tumbled 
inamarinadebeforebeingpackaged.Thefilletsarecheckedbefore
packagingtomakesuretheyarecompletelybone-free.

For Ready-to-Eat products, the process continues at separate 
plantsthatproducebothchilledandfrozenprocessedproducts.

Scandi Standard endeavours to lead the way in product innova-
tion in our domestic geographic markets for chicken-based food 
andtocarryoutproductdevelopmentinallproductioncountries.
Each market has its own preferences in terms of the type of prod-
ucts preferred (chilled, frozen, Ready-to-Eat) as well as the flavours 
andcookingform.Ourtestkitchenstestnewandvariedproducts

“ Transport to the 
slaughter house 
must be as calm as 
possible for the 
chickens.

Number of slaughtered chickens per country

Sweden, 30.2% (53,619,786)
Denmark, 26.3% (46,687,098)
Ireland, 27.5% (48,809,149) 
Finland, 5.6% (10,009,746) 
Norway, 10.4% (18,389,367)

Sweden, 30.2% (53,619,786)
Denmark, 26.3% (46,687,098)
Ireland, 27.5% (48,809,149) 
Finland, 5.6% (10,009,746) 
Norway, 10.4% (18,389,367)

Scandi Standard Annual Report 2021

Operations and value chain

25



using a defined product development process and we work to 
broaden and share experiences and knowledge from this process 
acrossourvariousoperations.
Productionisguidedbycustomerforecastsandactualorders.

However, the production volumes are relatively predictable and 
productionplansareadjustedcontinually.

Blood, fat, offal and other products are also used, primarily for 
animal feed, the industrial production of food and other applica-
tions.Byusingasmuchofthechickenaspossible,weachieve
the highestlevelsofresourceefficiencyandprofitability.

Just as when the animals are being reared, the entire processing 
process undergoes meticulous checks in terms of hygiene and the 
controlledclimate.Everysub-processiscontinuallycheckedtobe
able to quickly identify and take action against any non-conform-
ances that would otherwise risk the quality of the finished products 
andinthelongterm,theconsumers’experienceoftheproducts.

Scandi Standard works constantly to develop and improve the 
processing process and to create the best possible environment 
for the chickens, the highest quality in our products, and the most 
resource-efficientoperationspossible.

Sales
Our products reach our consumers through stores, restaurants 
andothercateringoperations,suchasschoolsandhospitals.The
products are distributed via our customers’ central warehouses 
andalsodirecttostoresandrestaurants.Deliveriesaremainly
 carried out by subcontractors and sometimes by our customers’ 
owndistributors.

Our chilled products are on site in stores the day after they are 
packaged.ScandiStandard’ssalesteamshelpourretailersinthe
direct marketing of these products and also in the structuring of 
thedisplayspacesinstore.Thisensuresthehighestsalesand
the bestretentionofproductqualitybeforetheproductsaresold.
New products are advertised in the media and on advertising 
boards and we also work with indirect marketing through social 
media.Weareforexample,workingwithbloggersandalsoinvite
the media in for “inspirational cooking” at our own display 
kitchens.

“ We are constantly 
working to develop 
and improve the 
processing process 
and the environ-
ment for our 
 chickens”
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Our responsibility 
and contribution to 
sustainable development
At Scandi Standard, sustainable development is about promoting 
responsible value creation over time for owners, customers, consumers, 
employeesandotherstakeholders.Basedonourvision,ouraimisto
assume an industry-leading role in animal welfare and healthy products, 
aswellasenvironmentalandsocialresponsibility.
 Wearemanagingrisksandmakingcontinuousimprovements
throughout the value chain, as well as realising opportunities presented 
fromincreasedexpectationsandnewconsumertrends.Sustainable
business- and operational development focuses on the areas where 
Scandi Standard has the greatest impact, where we can make a differ-
ence,andthataremostimportantforourstakeholders.Forexample,we
experience an increased awareness concerning the issues of antibiotics 
and animal welfare, climate and environmental impact of our products, 
andbiodiversity-relatedrisksinourvaluechain.
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The Scandi Way
Our strategic framework for sustainable development, “The Scandi 
Way”, is based on our materiality analysis and includes prioritised 
responsibility and sustainability issues within the perspectives 
People,Chickens,PlanetandProducts.Thisframeworksetsthe
level for the Group’s sustainability work and defines the approach, 
overarching goals and key performance indicators for each focus 
area.EachcompanyandproductionfacilitywithintheGroupiscom-
mittedtocomplywithandcontributetomeetingthesharedgoals.

Organisation and governance 
Sustainability is integrated into the business operations as a part 
ofstandardprocessesandresponsibilities.AtGrouplevel,thereis
a Group Sustainability Director who is responsible for defining 
strategy and goals as well as coordinating and supporting the 
organisation.The SustainabilitySteeringCommitteeisresponsi-
ble for monitoring prioritised activities, and for reporting to the 
Board.In2021,thesteeringcommitteeconsistedoftheGroup
Sustainability Director, Managing Director and CEO, Group 
 Communications Director, Chief Operating Officer, Group Supply 
Chain Director, Director, Group Live Operations, Country Manager, 
Sweden and Group Investor Relations & M&A manager, and 
six memberswerepartof GroupManagement.

Each focus area has a strategic project manager who works with 
representatives in the various countries to advance the work 
towardsachievingthegoalsthathavebeenset.Eachcountry
has aCountrySustainabilityOwnerwhoisresponsibleforlocal
executionbasedonnationalcicumstancesandregulations.

Since 2020, sustainability targets and KPIs have been included 
in the ordinary business planning and form part of the bonus-
basedgoalsforGroupManagementandothers.Follow-uptakes
place on a quarterly basis in the Group Management, and is 
includedinthequarterlyreportingtothemarket.

Looking towards 2025
In 2020, Scandi Standard established an ambition to achieve an 
industry-leadingpositioninsustainabilityby2025.Thisputs
requirements on the continued development and acceleration of 
goals,governanceandactivities.In2021,thestrategy,processes
and objectives in focus areas such as climate impact, the carbon 
footprint of products, work safety and animal welfare have been 
further strengthened and a solid foundation and plan for the future 
hasbeendeveloped.Descriptionsofgoalsandprioritiesare
providedintherelevantsectionsoftheSustainabilityReport.

Agenda 2030 
Scandi Standard supports Agenda 2030 in 
its entirety, including the global goals for 
sustainabledevelopment.Asaresultofour
operations, we have an impact on several 
of the goals and a great responsibility and 
opportunity to help with achieving goals 
andtargets.

Global Compact
Scandi Standard is a signatory to 
the Global Compact, the UN’s 
responsiblebusinessinitiative.
It isacommitmenttoactively
implement the ten principles of 
Global Compact relating to 
human rights, labour rights, the 
environmentandanti-corruption.

Some of them are directly linked to our business  
and value chain: 

  Goal 2: End hunger, achieve food security and improved 
nutritionandpromotesustainableagriculture.

  Goal 3: Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for 
everybodyatallages.

  Goal 12: Ensure sustainable consumption and 
productionpatterns.

We also have a great responsibility to contribute to:

  Goal 8: Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable 
economic growth, full and productive employment and 
decent work for all, and 

  Goal 13: Take urgent action to combat climate change 
anditsimpacts.
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The way we act 
responsibly to create 
value and profitability 
through our products 
and by promoting 
health and wellbeing 
for people, our 
chickens and the 
planet

People
Offering an attractive, safe  

and healthy workplace

Safeguarding business  
ethics, human rights and fair 

working conditions

Building responsible supplier 
relationships and sustainable 

supply chains

Producing safe, tasty and 
healthy products

Contributing to sustainable 
and nutritious protein 

production

Minimising the carbon 
 footprint of products – 

 from farm to fork

Chickens
Pursuing best-in-class animal 
welfare and healthy chickens 

without antibiotics

Driving long-term and mutually 
beneficial relationships with 

high quality farmers

Promoting sustainability 
through high feed quality, 
efficiency and local feed  

raw materials

Planet
Decreasing environmental 
impact of our operations

Minimizing the use of plastic 
through sustainable packaging

Sharing responsibility  
for the value chain, from 

feed  production and nutrient 
 leakage to food waste

The Scandi Way

Products
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Safe and healthy products
Our most important undertaking to consumers is that our 
 products are safe and healthy to eat, and that they are produced 
fromchickensthatarethrivingandtreatedwell.Wewanttoinspire
more people to eat healthier meals with less impact on our 
environment.

Product quality and food safety
Product quality and food safety are the top of the list of priorities 
forScandiStandard.Weworkcontinuallytoimproveprocesses
andgovernance,basedoncertifiedmanagementsystems.Allour
production facilities hold third-party certification to BRC or IFS, the 
internationalqualitymanagementstandardforfoodsafety.This
includes requirements for quality-assured working methods, 
 buildings and equipment, risk analysis in accordance with HACCP, 
product traceability, staff competence and hygiene procedures as 
wellasverificationofproductsandprocesses.Moreover,we
comply with the specific requirements that different customers 
placeonusasacompany,orforaparticularproductormarket.

The challenges that we need to address include the risks of 
unwanted bacteria and quality deficiencies or food fraud when pur-
chasingingredients.Inrecentyearsworkonfoodsafetyhasintensi-
fied under the leadership of a group responsible for quality and prod-
uctsafety.Weuseanumberofmeasurableindicatorstomonitor
andcontrolproductqualityandidentifyanynon-conformances.
These include temperature and cleanliness at the plants, the 
incidenceofbacteria,controlsoffinishedproductsandcomplaints.

The right attitude for food safety
Failures in food safety are rarely due to procedures or systemic 
failures,butthecultureandattitudeamongstaffareoftencrucial.
We conduct attitude surveys at our production plants on a regular 
basis in order to map how quality is percieved by our employees, 
and in order to use the results to work specifically on local weak-
nessesidentified.Trainingsessionsarealsoheldregularlyto
ensurethatstaffhaveahighandup-to-datelevelofknowledge.

Careful control of bacteria
We are placing particular focus on checking for the presence of 
anypathogenicbacteria.InourNordiccountries,ourchickens
must be completely free from salmonella, and there must be the 
absoluteminimumlevelsofcampylobacterpossible.Regular
inspection of both these bacteria is conducted in the chicken stalls 
oratthearrivalattheslaughterhouse.Campylobacterisa
common bacteria found worldwide in both humans and animals, 
includingchickens.During2021,campylobacterwasfoundin
11,9 percentoftheflocks,whichwasScandiStandard’slowest
figureyet,andontracktowardsthelong-termtarget5–10percent.
Salmonella is rare in the Nordic countries but common in other 
partsoftheworld.Handhygieneandcookingthechickenproperly
areimportanttoavoidinfection.

Outbreak of bird flu
Avian influenza (bird flu) is a viral disease found in wild birds that can 
spread to domestic birds, and outbreaks can affect egg and chicken 
producersfinancially.However,thevirusisnotthoughttocauseany
serious symptoms in humans and consumers do not need to be 
concernedaboutthesafetyofchickenproducts.Therehavebeen
outbreaks of bird flu in several of Scandi Standard’s domestic mar-
kets during the year, leading to extensive shutdowns in order to pre-
ventwiderspreadtonewflocks.EveniffarmsdeliveringtoScandi
Standard has not been directly impacted, there is an indirect impact 
onfarmsinthequarantinezone.ThelocalScandiStandardteams
work closely with concerned farmers and relevant authorities to 
ensurethattherightmeasuresareimplemented.Thisincludes
 setting up zonal systems to guarantee disease control and prevent 
farmersandthepoultryindustrybeinghitharderthannecessary.

Critical complaints 
Scandi Standard applies a common definition and process for so 
calledcriticalcomplaints.Thesecomplaintsincluderecallsfrom
customers or consumers, presence of foreign objects in the prod-

Products
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uct,allergensorincorrectcontentorsellbydates.Theassessment
ismadelocallyineachcountry.Thetrendhasbeenpositiveduring
the year, and the number of critical complaints has fallen from 26 in 
2020to7in2021.Thisispartlyduetoimprovedprocesses,butalso
as a result of the clarification of the definition of critical complaints: 
only those complaints related to food safety, consumer health and 
regulatoryrequirementsarenowincluded.

Clean label policy 
We are constantly working on developing our products and range, 
with increased emphasis on nutrition and issues relating to addi-
tives,sugarandsaltcontent.Ourstartingpointisthatchickenisa
naturally healthy raw material, rich in protein and low in saturated 
fat.Whenprocessingandflavouring,ouraimistokeeprecipesand
ingredientsascleanandsimpleaspossible.

We have had a Group-wide Clean Label Policy since 2020 which 
is based on current legislation and describes our shared stance on 
healthyproductsandestablishesaframeworkforproductcontent.
This policy is established in all countries and applies to all products 
andrecipeswithinourownbrands.Asatoolforthiswork,each
country has a database containing information on ingredients and 
theircontentsandcomposition.ThreeGroup-wideindicatorsare
monitored on a monthly basis: The use of the flavour enhancer, 
monosodiumglutamate(MSG/E621),artificialcolouringsand
artificialflavourings.Theobjectiveisforallofthesetobezero.

The outcome for 2021 is that E621 was not present in any of 
our ownbrandproducts.Artificialcolouringhavebeenpresentin
someNorwegianproducts,butthesehavenowbeenphasedout.

As regards artificial flavourings, there is still a need for them in 
some local products in order to address taste preferences and 
requirementsforavoidanceofallergens.Examplesincludepesto
inFinlandandsmokeflavouringinSweden.

Correct product information 
Marketing and product information to consumers is performed 
locallybyeachoftheGroup’scompaniesandbrands.OurCodeof
Conduct states that Scandi Standard must provide accurate and 
non-misleading information in its labelling and marketing of 
products.Allmarketingmustcomplywiththerelevantlegislation
andethicalpractice.Claimsandinformationonthecontentand
propertiesofourproductsmustbetransparentandfact-based.

Continued development for healthy, sustainable food 
We want to inspire people to eat chicken because of its taste, 
healthbenefitsandtheclimate.Wewanttouseinnovative,attrac-
tive products to assist in the transition from red to white meat, 
which is in line with the nutrition recommendations from the World 
HealthOrganization(WHO).Chickenalsohaslessclimateimpact
than beef, which is an important advantage as the demand for 
animal protein increases and poses a major environmental 
challengefromaglobalperspective.Anotherpartoftheshiftto
more sustainable protein sources is the increased interest in and 
demandforplant-basedfoods.ScandiStandardviewsplant-based
“chicken products” as a complement and has launched plant-
basedproductsinNorwayandDenmarkduringtheyear.

Products

Targets and KPIs – Product quality and food safety
Long-term target Result 2021 Result 2020

Critical complaints1), number 0 7 26
Product recalls, number 0 6 3
Salmonella, % infected flocks 0–0.5% 0.2 0.2
Campylobacter, % infected flocks 5–10% 11.9 13.1
1) Criticalcomplaintsincluderecallsfromcustomersorconsumers,presenceofforeignobjectsintheproduct,allergensorincorrectcontentorsellbydates.
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Attractive, safe and healthy workplace
Scandi Standard’s operations are completely dependent on its 
employees.Developingandretainingmotivatedandskilled
individualsiscrucialforthesuccessoftheGroup.Weareworking
on ensuring a safe, inclusive and stimulating work environment, 
and are continually following up on commitment and motivation 
amongouremployees.

Our employees
Scandi Standard employs a total of around 3,200 people, most of 
theminourGroupcompaniesandlocalproductionoperations.
More information can be found in the table on the next page and 
Note5.

Safe working environment 
Most of our employees work in a production environment where 
therearephysicalrisksassociatedwithhealthandworksafety.
Scandi Standard maintains a zero tolerance approach to occupa-
tional accidents and works preventively and systematically on 
physical work environment risks as well as the psychosocial work 
climateandcorporateculture.Sickleaveandwork-relatedinjuries
arefollowedupateachproductionsiteandataGrouplevel.Local
interimgoalsarealsosetineachcountry.Eachproductionsiteis
conducting regular health and safety training, focusing on site 
specificrisks.

Health and safety policy
The Group’s policy on health and safety in the workplace clarifies 
Scandi Standard’s commitment to ensuring a good work environ-
ment from all dimensions, to promote health and to ensure com-
pliancewithlegislationandstandardsinthearea.Thepolicyalso
states that we must work actively to ensure an inclusive culture 
anddiversity.

Responsibility for implementation of the policy and operational 
work environment management rests with the relevant company 
andproductionsite.ProductionoperationsinDenmarkare
certifiedaccordingtoISO45001.

Improvement programme to reduce accidents
Serious accidents seldom occur, but a challenge remains when it 
comestoreducingthetotalnumberofaccidents.Thenumberof
work-related injuries leading to lost time has increased during the 
year,mainlyinSweden,FinlandandIreland.Onerootcausehas
beenthehighabsenceduetoCovid-19.Duringtheyear,aGroup-
wide improvement programme was launched with the aim of 
reducing the accident rate by reinforcing preventive and system-
aticmanagementofhealthandsafety.Thefocusisonaddressing
the identified risks at the production sites, creating a more robust 
safety culture and advancing the development of common 
workingmethodsandreportingsystems.Transparencyandclear,
consistent KPIs are key elements in the action plan, as is strength-
eningownershipandlocaltargets.

The improvement programme is headed by operations directors 
and site health and safety managers together with relevant Group 
functions.

Health promotion work
We want to promote health and well-being among our employees 
by inspiring them to lead a sustainable lifestyle, and to work on 
local goals and activities based on the circumstances in different 
countriesandplants.Manyregularactivitieshavebeenreplaced
by digital ones during the Covid-19 pandemic, such as digital 
 exercise  sessions and coffee breaks, and guidance on ergonomics 
forpeopleworkingfromhome.

Inclusive culture 
Scandi Standard’s aim is to be an inclusive organisation promoting 
diversity.Thegoalistobenefitfromthepotentialofallouremploy-
ees, promote a creative work culture, reflect our customer groups 
andsecurethesupplyofskillsgoingforward.AtScandiStandard,
we respect human rights and show zero tolerance towards dis-
crimination.ThishasalsobeenspecifiedinourCodeofConduct.

We use the employee survey to gauge our employees’ percep-
tion of the workplace as inclusive, with equal opportunities for all 

People
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Goals and KPIs – Employees
Results of the Scandi Puls employee survey (index where max = 100): Goal 2021 2020 2018 2016

Satisfaction and motivation 71 – 72 69 (731)) 72
Inclusive culture 100 (long-term) – 75 – –
Gender distribution in the Group (% women) 40–60% 44 43 42 42
Percentage of women in executive positions (%) 40–60% 26 27 26 –
Training on Code of Conduct (% office employees) 100% 91 88 – –
1) OurIrishcompanyManorFarmparticipatedforthefirsttimein2018,whichmeanstheresultsareexclusiveofIreland(73).

Theemployeesurveymeasuresanumberofparameters,includingengagementandleadership.Anindexscoreof66–72isaverage,while75isagoodresult.92%of
thosewhohavebeenemployedatScandiStandardforatleast6monthstookpartinthe2020survey.Theindexforinclusiveculturewasmeasuredforthefirsttimein
2020.TheinclusivecultureIndexisbasedonthreequestionsintheemployeesurveyonequality,diversityandparticipation.Thesurveyisconductedeverytwoyears,
andin2021onlyasmallsurveywasconductedamongofficeemployees.

Safe and healthy workplace 

Group Sweden Denmark Finland Norway Ireland 

Attendance rate (percentage of standard working hours, %) 95 93 (93) 96 (95) 94 (96) 96 (97) 95 (97) 
Work-related injuries (LTFIR, number of injuries resulting in lost 
time per million hours worked) 39.2(32.01)) 61.4(53.0) 18.0(13.2) 55.8(56.2) 23.3(2.3) 42.7(38.5)
Fatalities 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0)
1) LTIFRatGrouplevelhasbeenadjustedfrom30.7to32.0comparedwiththe2020AnnualReportduetoalaginreporting.

Work-relatedinjuriesandlosttimearefollowedupateachplantandreportedinjointsystems.Noinjuriesoraccidentsthatcausedpermanentincapacityoccurred
duringtheyear.Atotalof210injuriesresultinginlosttimeoccurredduringtheyearandthetotalnumberofhoursworkedwas5361146.Mostcommonlyoccuring
typesofaccidentsarefallinthesamelevel,squeezedbetweenitemsandoverload.ScandiStandardhasanoverallzerotoleranceapproachtoaccidents,withlocal
measurabletargetsineffortstoensureasafeworkenvironment.

People

regardlessofgender,ageandbackground.Mostpeoplegive
ScandiStandardapass(index75outof100).However,theresult
reveals a few differences between different employee categories 
with higher results among office employees (83) compared with 
productionemployees(71).Therearenosignificantdifferences
betweenagegroupsorgender.

Goals for increased gender equality
We also strive for equal professional and working groups at all 
levelsinthecompany.Ofallemployeesin2021,44(43)percent
werewomenand56(57)percentmen.Theproportionofwomenin
executivepositionswas26(27)percent.

Gender distribution among office managers, %

Gender distribution among production managers, %

Share of production workers, %

Women, 21% (35)
Men, 79% (132)

Women, 35% (36)
Men, 65% (68)

Production workers, 
86% (3,115)
Office workers, 
14% (517)
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ScandiPuls employee survey 
A major employee survey, ScandiPuls, is conducted for all 
employeeseverytwoyears.ThelatestsurveyfromOctober2020
showed high levels of commitment and satisfaction, in line with 
setgoals.Smallersurveysareconductedintheinterim,andsuch
a surveywasconductedamongallofficeworkersin2021.Inthis,
Satisfaction and Motivation are down slightly from 72 to 68, 
while Loyaltyremainshighat80comparedwith79for2020.
We scored82forInclusiveculture,alevelcomparableto2020
whentheresultwas83.

Corporate values and Code of Conduct
Our values, Openness, Challenge and Sense of Urgency, describe 
our corporate culture and alongside Scandi Standard’s Code of 
Conduct they guide us in our daily work towards achieving our 
vision“BetterChickenforaBetterLife”.Compliancewithour
values is monitored through annual performance appraisals and 
employeesurveys.

The Code of Conduct applies to all employees and sets the 
framework to act responsibly in terms of ethics, the environment, 
socialissuesandhumanrights.Allemployeeshastoreviewthe
code in the local language upon appointment, and they then sign 
toconfirmtheyunderstandwhatitmeans.Allofficeemployees
also receive mandatory e-training in the code as additional sup-
port.91(88)percent(includingnewemployees)hadcompleted
thetrainingby2021.

 Read the Code of Conduct in full

Good business ethics 
We strive for an ethical and respectful approach in all our business 
relationships.TheCodeofConductclarifiesthatzerotolerance
appliestoallformsofbriberyandcorruption.Wemustalsoactin
an exemplary and responsible fashion to ensure the correct pro-
cessing of information and to ensure the avoidance of any con-
flictsofinterest.Trainingisprovidedonanongoingbasisforthe
relevanttargetgroups.Anewtrainingoncompetitionlawhasbeen
implementedforallofficeemployeesduring2021.

Whistle-blowing function 
Weencourageouremployeestoreportanysuspectedviolations.
A whistle-blowingfunctionissetupincollaborationwithanexter-
nal company to enable the anonymous reporting of potential viola-
tionsoftheCodeofConduct.Reportedcasesarereceivedbythe
external partner and further distributed to an internal committee 
consisting of Group HR Director, CFO, Head of Group Finance and 
GroupRiskandLegalManager.GroupQualityDirectorhasalso
beenpartofthecommitteeduringtheyear.Elevencaseswere
reportedthroughtheservicein2021.Thesewererelatedtolocal
employeeissuesandpolicycompliance.Allcaseswereinvesti-
gated and answered, although none of the cases proved to be an 
actualviolation.Furtherworkhasalsobeendonelocally,when
desired.

People
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Responsible supplier relationships
Scandi Standard’s operations are highly dependent on good and 
effectivesupplierpartnerships.Besideschicken,webuyotherraw
materials, ingredients, equipment, packaging, transport and ser-
vicesfromahighnumberofsuppliers.Allpurchasingcategories
except chicken are mainly managed at Group level, which provides 
synergies along with benefits in terms of risk  management, con-
tracttermsandvaluecreationforallourproductionplants.

Our Supplier Code of Conduct 
Scandi Standard strives for mutual, responsible business relation-
ships.OurSupplierCodeofConductprovidesthefoundationfor
this, setting requirements for environmental responsibility, anti-
corruption and ethics, human rights as well as social responsibility 
thatequatetotheGroup’sownCodeofConduct.Oursuppliers
must also ensure that these requirements are passed on down the 
chain,i.e.totheirsubcontractors.TheGroup’spurchasingfunction
is responsible for the contents and implementation of the Supplier 
CodeofConduct.

The Supplier Code of Conduct states that the supplier is 
expected to comply with international and national legislation, 
respect human rights and the ILO core conventions and meet 
specified requirements in respect of social responsibility, the 
environment,businessethicsandanimalwelfare.

 View the Supplier Code of Conduct in full

Systematic approach to sustainable supply chains 
The Supplier Code of Conduct has been updated in 2021 and 
work isongoingtogetexistingsupplierstosigntheupdatedcode.
Our aim is for all suppliers with a purchasing value of more than 
SEK500,000peryeartosignthecode.Comparedto2020,this
work has also been initiated for indirect purchases, in addition to 
purchases of direct materials and transport services where the 
policyhasbeeninplaceforlonger.Fordirectmaterialsand
 transport services, 52 percent of suppliers have signed the 
updatedSupplierCodeofConduct.Thefigureforindirectpur-
chases is18percent.
Oursystematicworkisbasedonriskassessments.This

includes a risk screening at supplier level based on risk parameters, 
suchasproductioncountryaswellascategory/industry-specific
riskslinkedtotheenvironment,humanrightsandethicalissues.
In ordertoidentifyrisksandpotentialnon-conformances,weare
continually striving to ensure greater transparency in our supplier 
relationships,beyondthefirstlinkinthesupplychain.

Self-evaluation and risk assessment 
We also ask our suppliers to complete a self-assessment form in 
ordertoassessrisksandperformanceatsupplierlevel.These
responses provide supplementary data to help us prioritise where 
we need to focus our work on additional monitoring and audits, as 
wellasotherinitiatives.Theresultsofself-evaluationsconducted
show that the majority of our suppliers have well-developed sys-
tems in place for managing risks linked to the areas in the Supplier 
CodeofConduct.Weaimtoreach98percentoftheevaluated
 suppliers in our priority categories, and set up action plans for the 
suppliersthatareassessedasnotbeinguptostandard.

People
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Case:  
Sustainable focus going forward at 
Kronfågel – for people, the planet 
and chickens 
Kronfågel is Sweden’s leading chicken producer, and since the company was founded more than 
50yearsago,itsambitionhasbeenclear:tobeagoodchoiceforpeople,chickensandtheplanet.
Thiscommitmentisbasedoncontinousdevelopmentandimprovment.Thatsaid,bothKronfågel
andtheentirechickenindustryreceivedcriticisminthemedialastyear.FredrikStrømmen,thenew
interim CEO of Kronfågel and the CEO of Kronfågel’s Norwegian sister company Den Stolte Hane, 
tellsusmoreaboutthefocusgoingforward.

What is your most important mission right now?
– When I accepted the position as interim CEO of Kron-
fågel,itwas partlybecauseoftheprideItakeinNordic
chickenproduction.Ourcontrolsandprogrammesfor
maintaining the highest quality throughout the value chain, 
whether it relates to animal welfare or food safety, are 
uniquefromaninternationalperspective.Havingsaidthat,
wecanandmustcontinuetoimprove.Wemustgoon
doing our very best and carry on focusing on even better 
animalwelfareandotherfactors.Thisisoneofmybig-
gest,mostimportanttasksasinterimCEO.

How do you feel about the past year?
– It has been a tumultuous year for Kronfågel in many 
ways, and we have had reason to review our operations  
andtakeactioninanumberofareas.ButIcanalsocon-
clude that Kronfågel has made great progress in several 
areas to meet stringent demands set out by consumers 
andourselves.

Does Kronfågel maintain good animal welfare, and 
what are you doing to improve this going forward?
–Thewelfareofouranimalsisextremelyimportant.
Animal welfare, together with the environment and quality, 
is Kronfågel’s top priority, and at present we have lower 
figuresonillhealthandfewerinjuriesthanever.Sweden
has one of the world’s strictest animal welfare legislation, 
which is excellent because we work with animals, and in 
general we and our contracted growers maintain very 
 comprehensive animal welfare work throughout the value 
chain,farmoreambitiousthanrequiredbythelaw.We
work hard with our growers every day to ensure that no 
animal experience stress or are harmed at any stage of the 
process.Oneproofthatourmethodsworkisthatwehardly
needtotreatourchickenswithantibiotics.Kronfågelonly
treats animals with antibiotics if they get sick, unlike pre-
ventive antibiotics which are used in animal breeding all 
over the world and cause serious consequences with 
antibiotic-resistantbacteria.OfKronfågel’sflocks,less
than onepercentweretreatedwithantibioticsin2021.
In othercountriesinEurope,thefigurecouldbeashigh

as 50percent.A healthychickenthatisthrivingdoesnot
needantibiotics.Butwecanalwaysimprove.Wecantell
straight away when something has gone wrong thanks to 
meticulouschecksandmonitoringateverystage.Thishas
to be dealt with immediately, of course, and here Kronfågel 
failed on a few occasions last year, which we took very 
seriously.In2022,wewillbeimplementinganumberof
initiativestoreinforceanimalwelfarestillfurther.

What do you think will happen to chicken 
consumption in the future?
– Chicken is a smart choice in terms of both health and 
climate.Itisanaffordablewayformanypeopletocon-
sume healthy protein that can be varied in a number of 
ways.WHOrecommendsthatweswitchfromredtowhite
meatinitsnutritionalrecommendations.Chickenisalso
one of today’s protein sources with the lowest climate 
impact, with a carbon footprint ten times lower than beef 
andsignificantlylowerthanNorwegiansalmon.Ibelieve
that demand and the market will continue to grow; but that 
said,wemustneverrestandcontinuetoworkhard.
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Chickens

A holistic approach to good animal welfare

Group-wide Animal Welfare Policy
Scandi Standard’s Animal Welfare Policy is based on the internationally recognised Five Freedoms 
ofanimalwelfareandreflectsourholisticapproachtowhatisrequiredforhealthychickens.
The policystates:

• that genetic modification of animals is not 
permitted,

• defined space requirements and flock 
 density limits,

• that antibiotics must not be used for preven-
tive purposes and never without veterinary 
approval,

• that growth hormones must not be used,
• that beak trimming is not permitted,
• requirements for responsible shipments and 

limits on distances and transport time,
• requirementsforstunningbeforeslaughter.

ChickensaretheheartofScandiStandard’sbusiness.Ourpremise
isthatallofourchickensmustthrive,fromhatchingtoslaughter.
Good animal welfare is an intrinsic part of our operations for 
 ethical reasons, and because this has a direct impact on product 
quality,resourceefficiencyandprofitability.Wegivechickens
every chance to stay healthy and absorb nutrients by applying a 
holistic approach, knowledge and high standards of handling, 
housingandfeeding.Onlyhealthychickenscangrowina
sustainableway.

Industry-leading position 
Our ambition is to work together with our contracted farmers to 
assume a dynamic and industry-leading role to promote good 
animalwelfare.Thefoundationoftheworkisfocusedoncon-
tinuous improvements and the Nordic approach to animal welfare, 
with an animal welfare legislation that is some of the strictest in 
theworld.OurGroup-widepolicyforanimalwelfareappliestoall
partsofourbusinessandtoallsuppliers.AsScandiStandard’s
operations extend beyond the Nordic countries, it will be even 
more important to clarify our position and ensure implementation 
oftherequirementsdefined.

Group-wide Animal Welfare Policy
Scandi Standard’s Group Live Operations Director has the overall 
responsibilityfortheGroup’spolicyandimprovementwork.
In eachmarket,localmanagementtogetherwiththelocalLive
 Operations Manager is responsible for implementation and 
monitoring.Eachproductionsitehasadesignatedanimalwelfare
coordinator, and all staff handling chickens receive training in this 
areaaspartoftheirintroductiontraining.

 View the policy in full
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Chickens

Holistic view – eight focus areas 
Good animal welfare is all about ensuring the health and 
well-being of animals by preventing injury and disease, 
 providing proper nutrition and housing, and – not least – 
ensuring good and responsible handling during both rear-
ingandslaughter.ScandiStandardworksonthebasisof
a holisticapproachwitheightdefinedsuccessfactorsthat
all need to work together to provide for the best possible 
animalwelfare.Weworktogetherwithknowledgeable
 suppliers and farmers on constant improvements and clear 
emphasis on root causes at all stages, from parent birds to 
slaughter.Ouroverallgoalisforallchickenstobewell
caredforandtreatedwithrespect.

Animal 
welfare

Loading and 
transport

Lairage and 
stunning

Grower skills 
and attitude

Day-old chick 
quality

Feed quality

Housing, 
environment 

quality

Natural 
behaviour

Breed charac-
teristics
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Chickens

Growers with competence and quality 
We have long-term collaborations with selected growers in each 
country.Thegrowers’knowledgeandunderstandingofand
respectforthechickensiscrucialforgoodanimalwelfare.Regard-
less of modern tech nology and well-developed processes, their 
day-to-day handling and knowhow are by far the most important 
factorinallowingtheir chickenstothriveandgrow.Ourgrowers
are well aware that healthy chickens make the best economic 
sense.

The same requirements apply to all growers, irrespective of 
their country.Thecontractedgrowers,about350intotal,receive
support, training and regular follow-up visits from Scandi 
Standard’slocaladvisers.Thequalityofeachgrowerismeasured
by means of a number of indicators and the outcome influences 
their financial compensation; deductions are made in the event of 
non-compliance, and supplements are paid in the event of good 
quality.Intheeventofmoreseriousorrecurringdeficiencies,a
more thorough examination is made of the root causes and the 
conditionsforfuturecollaboration.Wehavehadlimitedopportuni-
ties for physical visits to growers over the last two years due to the 
pandemic.Thishaspresenteduswithachallenge,aswehavenot
been able to maintain a presence in all countries as much as we 
wouldhaveliked.Welookforwardtoevenclosercooperationand
betterresultsonanimalwelfareinthenextfewyears.

The newly hatched chicken
The well-being of the newly hatched chicken has a major impact 
onitshealthandgrowthfortherestofitslife.Choosinggood
parent animals and handling the fertilised eggs correctly during 
the incubation period will ensure that the chicks that hatch are strong 
andhealthy.Thetransportoftheday-oldchickstothegrower,and
earlyaccesstofeedandwater,arealsoimportantfactors.

Good housing
Good housing includes many parameters with associated require-
ments.Forexample,thechickensmusthaveacleanenvironment,

beabletomovefreelyandhavesufficientspace.Flockdensity
limits vary according to different production systems and differ-
encesinnationallegislation.TheGroupaverageis37.4kglive
weight per square metre; compared to EU legislation, which 
requiresamaximumof42kgliveweightpersquaremetre.
There arealsorequirementsinrespectoftherighttemperature,
light,ventilation,beddingandequipmentforfeedandwater.The
health of the flocks is monitored on a daily basis, and the housing 
environmentismeasuredusinganumberofkeyindicators.

Foot health is an important indicator of animal welfare
The straw bed where chickens spend their time has a major 
impactontheirhealth.Drybeddingmakeslifecomfortablefor
the chickens,maintainstheirimmunesystemandreducestherisk
ofspreadingdiseases.Thequalityofthebeddingischeckedby
examiningtheconditionofthefootpads.Thisismonitoredand
registered for each flock when the chickens arrive at the slaughter-
house.Goodfoothealthalsoincreasestheproportionofhigh-
qualitychickenfeetthatcanbeexportedforhumanconsumption.

Optimised feed 
The composition of feed is an important part of the cooperation 
withthegrowers.Nutrientcontentandqualityhaveamajorimpact
onboththehealthofchickensandtheefficiencyoffeeduse.All
feed is made from vegetables using carefully selected ingredients, 
withwheatandsoybeingmajorcomponents.TheIrishoperation
has its own feed experts and local feed mill, while in other 
countriesweworkwithexternalfeedsuppliers.TheuseofGMO
 (genetically modified organisms, in this case soy and corn) in feed 
iswidelydiscussed.ScandiStandardhaschosentoadhereto
local conditions and customer requirements and currently requires 
GMO-freefeedinSwedenandNorway.

Feed efficiency
Rearing chickens is resource-efficient compared with other kinds 
ofanimals.Theamountoffeedandclimateimpactperkilogramof

1.52
kg feed/kg live weight,  
Scandi Standard 2021
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Chickens

meatislowerthanforporkandbeef,forexample.Feedefficiency
is one of the most important indicators in order to optimise the 
rearingprocess.Chickensareverygoodatconvertingfeedinto
meat,thefeedefficiencyisa directindicatorofthequalityofthe
feed,andhowwellthechickensarebeingtakencareof.

Transition to local protein crops
Around 20 percent or just over 100,000 tonnes per year of our 
chickens’feedconsistsofimportedsoy.Requirementsfor
 traceability and responsible production are defined by means of 
various third-party certifications such as RTRS and ProTerra, but 
the long-term goal is to replace imported soy with other, local 
proteinsources.Thisis becausetherearebetteroptionsfromboth
an environmental and an animal welfare perspective, which at the 
sametimepromotelocalagriculturalproduction.Astrategic
development project has been operating since 2019 together 
with feedspecialiststodevelopandtestnewfeedmixes,where
a significantpartofthesoyisreplacedbylocallygrownprotein
sources.Ithasbeenpossibletomaintainanimalwelfareand
 productivity in small-scale tests, and the first tests are now being 
conductedonaproductionscale.

No to antibiotics 
Our policy on the use of antibiotics and other types of medication 
isverystrict.InaccordancewithcurrentNordiclegislation,anti-
biotics are not used as a preventive measure in the rearing 
process,unlikemanyothercountries.Onlysickanimalsmaybe
treated,followingadecisionbyaveterinarian.Theuseofanti-
biotics among Nordic growers is also very low, a sign of good 
animalhusbandry.

Our stance towards antibiotics, as well as our working methods 
andresultsintheNordiccountries,lieattheforefront.Determined
efforts have also been made to significantly reduce the use of anti-
biotics in our Irish operations, from around 70 percent when the 
companywasacquiredin2017,to15–20percent.Ourlong-term
Group target is for the percentage of flocks treated with antibiotics 
tobelowerthan1percent.

The increase in antibiotic resistance is a global health challenge 
and we believe that Scandi Standard has an important role to play 
in minimising the use of antibiotics in food production, particularly 
in terms of our acquisitions and the integration of operations in the 
GroupthatareoutsidetheNordiccountries.

Scandi Standard’s long-term target is for the share 
of flocks treated to be lower than 1 percent in all 
countries.Thisgoalhasbeenachievedbyagood
marginfortheNordiccountriesoverrecentyears.
The work on reducing antibiotic use in our Irish 
operations has been successful over the period 
2018–2021.In2021,antibioticusewasreducedby
28%atGrouplevelandthegoalof5.7%was
achievedbyawidemargin.

Percentage of flocks treated with antibiotics

*Including/excludingIreland.
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Goals and KPIs
Long-term target 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Use of antibiotics, share of treated flocks,% <1 5.2(0.3excl.Ireland) 7 (0.0excl.Ireland) 11 (0.1excl.Ireland) 13 (0.0excl.Ireland) 0.2
Foot health, foot points <5 9.3(5.3excl.Ireland) 10 (4excl.Ireland) 20 (4excl.Ireland) 14 (6excl.Ireland) 9
Feedefficiency,kgfeed/kgliveweight 1.49 1.52 1.52 1.52 1.54 1.56
Rearing mortality, % 3–3.5 3.6 3.4 3.6 3.8 3.5
Transport mortality (DOA), % 0.15–0.18 0.10 0.12 0.12 0.14 0.15

Thechickens’healthismonitoredusinganumberofparameters.Lowuseofantibioticsandgoodfoothealtharekeyindicatorsofgoodanimalwelfareandagoodhousing
environment.Thereporteduseofantibioticsabovecanbecomparedwithanestimated40−80percentofflockstreatedinmanyEuropeancountries.Foothealthismeasured
withfootpoints,wheresamplesof100perflockarecheckedattheslaughterhouse.Alowscoreequatestogoodfoothealth,valuesbelow15−20aregoodinaninternational
comparison.
 IrishManorFarmisincludedinreportedfiguresasof2018.Inordertocomparewith2017,figuresarealsoreportedexcludingIreland.
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Chickens

Ethics for transport and slaughter 
Animal ethics are a high priority in the transport and slaughter of 
thechickens.Thechickensarecollectedbytrainedstaffinadapted
vehicles.Vehicleswithtemperature-controlledventilationareused
incountrieswithcoldclimates(Sweden,Finland,Norway).
 Transport can be kept short because we choose farmers who are 
closetoourproductionplants.Theaveragetransporttimewithin
theGroupis1.4hours–wellbelowthelegalmaximum,whichis8
hoursinSweden,forexample.Transporttimesandarrivaltimesare
planned and registered to ensure that all chickens are handled 
within set time frames, and that they are always slaughtered on the 
dayoftransportation.Onarrival,thechickensareinspectedbyboth
ourownstaffandanindependentveterinarysurgeon.Thewings
arecheckedasanindicatorofhowwellloadingwashandled.
Allchickensarestunnedbeforeslaughter.Controlledatmosphere

stunning (CAS) is used at most Scandi Standard production plants, 
aswellaselectricalstunning.CAShasanumberofadvantagesin
termsofbothanimalwelfareandmeatquality.

Continued development: Centre of Excellence
A Centre of Excellence will be established in 2021 so that we can 
go on developing knowledge, practices and processes for an 
industry-leading position in quality, animal welfare, food safety and 
productivity.Thiscentreisanew,separateunitwithinScandi
Standard Group Live Operations to which three people, as well as 
externalspecialists,areattached.Itsaimistopromoteknowledge
exchange and provide the business and our farmers with world-
leading expertise in key areas such as day-old chicks, animal 
 wwelfare, feed, the housing environment and technical solutions 
in chickenhouses,managementandmonitoring.

We have started to focus on quality measurement and manage-
ment in our Irish operations during the year, and also on selected 
projectsinthevariouscountries.Oneexampleisthedevelopment
project for more sustainable feed and local feed ingredients, which 
has yielded positive results not only in small-scale tests, but also 
onanactualproductionscale.

Various chicken breeds
Therearemanydifferentbreedsofchicken.Manyfactorsaretakenintoaccountwhenchoosing
whichbreedstorear:sizeandhealth,eggproduction,feedefficiency,growth,etc.;butalsoproduction-
marketparameterssuchasfoodtrendsandconsumerpreferencesindifferentcountries.

Scandi Standard uses several different breeds of chickens, but most of them are conventional 
broilers.Whateverchickensarereared,ourpremiseisthatanimalwelfaremustbegood,ensuring
goodhealthandrespectforeverychicken.
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Case: 
New warehouse and 
distribution centre 
in Finland saves on 
transport 
The expansion of the Lieto plant will save on transport 
andreduceclimateimpact.Intermsofemissionsper
kg of distributed product, relocating the distribution 
centre has reduced Finnish carbon dioxide emissions 
bymorethan20percent.

Due to space contraints, our Finnish production facility in 
Lieto has used an external solution for warehousing and 
distributionforanumberofyears.Premiseshavebeen
rented for this purpose in Turku, around 15 kilometres from 
theproductionplant,since2017.Allpre-packedproducts
were transported to the warehouse for further distribution, 
and all input goods other than the chicken raw material, 
such as ingredients and packaging materials, were sent in 
the other direction – from the warehouse to the production 
plant–severaltimesaday.Allinall,manykilometreshave
been travelled with large transport volumes over a period 
offouryears.

In 2019, a decision was made to invest in development 
of the Lieto facility in order to accommodate further 
expansion, and also to provide its own warehouse and a 
sectionforloadinganddistribution.Theaimofthiswas
to saveonbothemissionsandcosts,andalsotoincrease
theefficiencyofoperations.Theextensionwascompleted
in March 2021, and all parts of the operations and all 

employeesarenowlocatedinLieto.Theleasewiththe
externalpremiseshasbeenterminated.
–Thedevelopmentworkhasmajorbenefits.Nowwe

avoid the additional transport, about 6–8 truck runs per 
day, and we save on both costs and greenhouse gas 
emissions.Moreover,wedonotneedtohavestaffintwo
differentplaces.

Calculated for the first eight months, emissions per kilo 
of chicken distributed have fallen by more than 20 percent, 
comparedto2019figures.Intermsoftransportdistance,
thismeanswehavesavedmanykilometresinayear.In
absolute terms, however, transport emissions are up due 
to a 10–15 percent increase in production volumes over 
thesameperiod.

– This is a step in the right direction towards our local 
climate goal: to reduce emissions by 30 percent between 
2020and2025.Weneedtodoalotmore,andwewillcon-
tinuetofocusontransport.Oneimportantaspectinvolves
continuing our discussions with our logistics partners so 

that we can gradually make the transition to alternative 
fuelsandmoreenvironmentallyfriendlyvehicles.

Focus on efficient and environmentally friendly 
logistics 
Scandi Standard aims to achieve the most efficient 
 transport solutions with as low climate impact as possible, 
whilemaintainingsafetyanddeliveryquality.Theway
 forward is through ambitious requirements, dialogue and 
cooperationwithourtransportsuppliers.Conditions
related to infrastructure, availability of alternative fuels, 
political goals and instruments vary between our coun-
tries,whichaffectsactivitiesandinitiatives.Besidesthe
new warehouse in Finland, in 2021 we saw the impact of 
another two major projects: fossil-free chiller and freezer 
storage in Denmark, and a new logistics partner in Sweden 
that will shorten transport distances through better 
geographicalplacement.
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Planet

Climate and resource efficiency throughout the value chain

The work on climate- and resourceefficient chicken production covers the entire value chain: both Scandi Standard’s in-house processing operations and the supplier stage with feed production and breeding, transport, and the 
customerandconsumerstages.Effortstoincreaseefficiencyandreducefoodwasterunthroughtheentirevaluechain,withthebasicnotionthateverychickenandthewholechickencounts–makingsurethateverysingle
chicken thrives and is reared in a resource-efficient manner, and that as much of the chicken as possible is turned into good food on plates is one of the most important initiatives that we can implement in order to reduce our 
environmentalandclimateimpact.

Feed production Rearing, laying and 
hatching

Growing Slaughtering Processing and 
 packaging

Distribution Consumption

low high high lowopportunity for influence

Soyconstitutesabout20percentofthechickens’feed.Soyis
linked to biodiversity-related risks and Scandi Standard is working 
actively to decrease such risks through sourcing of responsible 
soythroughe.g.,RTRSandProTerraaswellasinvestigating
locallysourcedalternatives.

Key environmental impact during the live 
animal stages include heating and operation 
of the farms as well as responsible manure 
handling.ScandiStandardencouragesits
growers to use non-fossil fuels for operation 
of farms and to reuse chicken litter as organic 
fertilizer replacing chemical  fertilizer and 
therebyimprovingthesoils.

During 2021, we used 4,936 tonnes of plastic pack-
agingatoursites.Plasticpackagingisaprerequisite
for food safety and minimizing food waste through 
longer shelf life but is also impacting the climate and 
theenvironment.ScandiStandardaimstominimize
the use of plastics when possible, and where it is 
needed to use recycled raw materials if possible or 
toensurerecoveryofmaterialsorenergy.

The biggest impact in the consumption 
phaseisthefoodthatisnoteaten.Food
waste both at retailers and at the end 
consumer is having an impact on the 
 climate, and Scandi Standard is working 
to decrease this through awareness, 
appropriate package sizes and durability 
oftheproducts.

During the slaughtering and processing at our plants, we use 
energy,electricityandwater.Asfaraspossible,ScandiStandard
is shifting towards green electricity as well as renewable energy 
sources.Weaimtosavewaterwherepossible,andmeasureuse
aswellasemissionstowaterateachsite.

Scandi Standard use transport both between the farms and 
theslaughterhouseandfordistribution.Thepriorityistokeep
transport distances as short as possible, which both decrease 
emissionsandincreaseanimalwelfare.Inaddition,wetryto
workwithoursupplierstochangetobiofuelswhenpossible.
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Planet

Climate goals in line with the Paris Agreement 
The climate issue is one of the most crucial matters of our age, 
and we need to do our part to reduce emissions, and also identify 
andmanagetherisksresultingfromclimatechange.Atthesame
time, we view the increased efforts to reduce society’s climate 
impact as an opportunity where chicken can be part of the solu-
tion.InlinewiththeParisAgreementandthe1.5-degreetarget,
our ambitionistoachievecompletelyfossil-freeoperations;andin
2021, Scandi Standard signed up to the Science Based Targets 
 initiative with the aim of setting and validating scientifically sound 
climatetargetsbytheendof2022.Wearealreadysettingclimate
targetsinlinewiththe1.5-degreetargetforourownoperations
(scope 1 and scope 2) and are working hard to include material 
scope 3 emissions during 2022 in line with the requirements of the 
ScienceBasedTargetsinitiative.Climatedataismeasuredand
monitored in relation to the size of the operation (grams of CO2e 
perkgofproduct)andinabsoluteterms.Baselineyearforyour
climatetargetsis2020.

Work and actions to reduce our climate impact cover every stage 
inourvaluechain.Lookingattheentirelifecycle,thecultivation
and production of feed along with the breeding of chickens 
accountforthevastmajorityofourclimatefootprint.AGroup-
wide initiative has been initiated in 2021 to calculate the carbon 
footprintofourproductsfromfarmtofork.Thiswillcontinuein
2022 to ensure that climate action is taken where it will have 
most impact.

Climate-related risks
As a food producer, we depend on a well-functioning agriculture 
sectorprimarilyfortheproductionoffeedforourchickens.
 Climate change and more extreme weather conditions can 
affect quality,costanddeliveryreliability.Otheridentifiedclimate-
related risks include dealing with risk of flooding and the climate 
protection of plants, legislation and financial instruments in the 
energy and transport sector, as well as brand-related risks linked 
to theincreasedenvironmentalawarenessofcustomersand
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1)  Energy use in production at the production 
 facilities Aars, Farre, Lieto, Stokke, Jaeren, 
Valla andShercock.

Carbon dioxide emissions from energy use in 
productionwas79.9gramsCO2e per kilogram 
ofproductduring2021.

Target:

–4.2%
reduced carbon dioxide emissions 

per year by 2030 – in line with  
the Paris Agreement and  

the 1.5-degree target
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Planet

consumers.Formore information,seethesectiononriskson
page 57 and Scandi Standard’s reporting to the Carbon Disclosure 
Project(CDP).

Efficient use of energy and water 
At each production plant, ongoing work is performed to ensure the 
efficient use of energy and water, in line with the Group’s Energy 
andWater Policy.Localgoalsaresetannuallyandmonitoredona
monthlybasis.Thesystematicworkonmappingthisandthe
actionstaken,suchasrecirculatingheatandchangingto energy-
efficientLEDlighting,hasyieldedsignificantenergysavings.
We havealsobeenworkingonthegradualphasingoutof fossil
energysourcesforseveralyears.FromMarch2021,allelectricity
purchased for our production plants will be origin-marked renew-
ableelectricity.

The graphs on the right show energy usage and water consump-
tionatourproductionplants.Greenhousegasemissionsbyscope
under the GHG Protocol are shown in the table, as well as on the 
previouspage.TheemissionsinthetableincludeallScandi
 Standard production facilities with operational control, as well as 
specifiedscope3emissions.Emissionfactorsusedforcalcula-
tions are sourced from DEFRA (2020) and for electricity a location-
based method using IEA (2018–2020) country average emission 
factors.Forscope3calculations,thecalculationprovidedbythe
supplierisusedwhenpossible.

Responsible water management 
None of our own production plants or growers are located in areas 
with direct water shortages, but fresh water is a limited resource 
thatmustalwaysbeusedresponsibly.Weworkfortheoptimaluse
of the water within the framework of strict rules set for food safety 
andhygiene.Reducedwaterconsumptionlocallyprimarily
focuses on indirectly reducing the use of energy, and reducing the 
amountofwastewaterthatneedstobetreated.Localauthorities
are setting extensive requirements on the quality of wastewater, 
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Total water consumption in 2021 was 2 320 
751 m3,6.69litresperkgproduct.
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Total energy consumption in 2021 was 
176 866461kWh,0.51kWhperkgproduct.
Compared to 2019 and 2020, also smaller 
 production sites have been included in the 
reportedfigures,whichimpactscomparability.

Energy consumption, 2021, distribution 
energy sources (kWh)

Electricity, 59%
Natural gas, 21%
District heating, 14%
Fuel oil, 4%
Biofuels, 2%

which is checked by monitoring the phosphorus and nitrogen con-
tent, the Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) content and the pH of 
thewater.FiveoftheGroup’splantscurrentlyhavetheirowntreat-
ment plants that treat wastewater from the slaughtering and pro-
cessingofchicken.

Efficient and environmentally friendly logistics 
Sustainable transport is about the safety and security of our 
 drivers and passengers, and also the chickens we transport, and of 
courseaboutthedeliveryqualityforourcustomers.Wealsowant

Split of reported emissions  
per scope according to the  
GHG protocol

Share of 
emissions

Tonnes 
CO2e

Energy 
 consumption 

(kWh)

Scope 1 – energy use
Natural gas 16.0% 6,963.5  37,871,698 
Fuel oil 5.6% 2,439.6  7,664,090 
Biofuels (straw, wood chips) 0.1% 54.7  2,818,940 
Scope 1 – owned and leased 
 vehicles
Owned heavy vehicles 4.2% 1,826.6
Leased personal vehicles 0.9% 389.5
Scope 1 – technical gases
Gases for stunning 4.5% 1,938.6
Gases for packaging 1.4% 615.2
Refrigerants 4.0% 1,726.7
Scope 2 – energy use
Electricity 30.3% 13,160.9  103,671,299 
District heating 9.9% 4,287.7  24,840,434 
Scope 3 – transports
Transports of living animals 4.6% 2,005.7
Distribution transports 18.3% 7,932.9
Scope 3 – business travel 0.3% 119.3
Total CO2 emissions 43,461.0
Total energy use  176,866,460 
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to enforce transport solutions that are as efficient and with as low 
climateimpactaspossible.Werequireourtransportsuppliersnot
only to observe our Supplier Code of Conduct, but also to provide 
us with environmental data and use EURO 6 environmentally 
classifiedvehicles.Over90percentprovideuswithemissiondata
today, and we re continously working on increasing this share and 
decreasingourenvironmentalimpactfromtransportation.

In collaboration with our hauliers, we have installed filling sta-
tions for HVO biodiesel at our production plants and at our hauli-
ers’stationsinSweden.ThevastmajorityofshipmentsofKro-
nfågel’s products within Sweden take place using 100 percent 
renewableHVObiodiesel.In2021,transportbetweenourSwedish
and Danish plants has also been partially switched to an inter-
modal solution, with the majority of the distance being rail trans-
port.Thismeansareductionofalmost400tonnesofcarbondiox-
ideperyear.Allinall,carbondioxideemissionsfromour
distribution transport in 2021 were 7,933 tonnes, and transport of 
liveanimalsabout2006tonnes.Theemissionsincludeover90
percentofpurchasedtransportationservices.

Lowest possible food waste and other waste 
The entire chicken is used during processes, with nothing being 
wasted.Anaverageof70percentofeachchickenbecomesfood,
while 30 percent is used as by-products in for example animal feed 
orbiofuels.Intermsofthevaluechainasawhole,thecustomer
and consumer is most important for reducing the amount of food 
waste.Ourcontributionistoprovideinnovativepackagingsolu-
tions, guidance for consumers, and to optimise the product flow 
to andinretailstores.

Waste at our plants comprises primarily packaging and other 
flammablematerials.Allofourlargerproductionplantssorttheir
wasteandmonitorthevolumesforeachwastefraction.Ourlong-
term goal is to achieve zero residual waste in production, with a 
targetofreducingtheamountofwastebytwopercentperyear.
However, we still need to work with our waste contractors on defin-
ingbasedataanduniformmeasurements.

Sustainable packaging
Stricter legislation and trends for a circular economy for packages 
affectScandiStandard.AllplasticpackagingintheEUmustbeable
tobereusedorrecycledby2030.ThefocusofScandiStandard’s
packaging strategy is to minimise the amount of plastic used 
whereverpossible.Wethenhavetoprioritiseclean,non-composite
materials, and to choose recycled and thinner materials where 
possible.Thiswhilekeepingfocusonproductqualityandpackag-
ingfunctionality.Forexample,inDenmark,Sweden,Irelandand
Norway we now use rPET trays entirely or partially and have also 
implemented a new technology for wrapping pallets that reduces 
theamountofplasticfilmby30percent.Wehavesettargetsforall
our product packaging to be made from renewable or recycled 
materials and to continue reduce the amount of plastic used in our 
ownproduction.Today,53percentofourtraysaremadeoutof
recycled plastics in the four markets where it is technically pos-
sible.In2021,weusedapprox.17.7gramsofplasticsperkilosold
food product (Group average excluding Ireland where aligned data 
isnotyetavailable).Thisisadecreaseof1.5percentcomparedto
2020.The mainplasticcategoriesaretraysandplasticfilm.

Planet
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Case: 
Cooperation with 
commericial 
garden reduces 
green house gas 
emissions in 
Norway

Scandi Standard’s overall climate goal is to 
reduce emissions from its operations in line 
with what is required for compliance with the 
ParisAgreement.Thismeanshalvingour
carbonfootprintintenyears.

But the bar has been set even higher at the Den Stolte 
Hane plant in Jæren, Norway: its ambition is to achieve 
emissions from the factory that are as close as possible to 
zeroinashorttime.Previousmeasuresincludeswitching
to energy-efficient LED lighting and upgrading the cooling 
system.Thereisanagreementfororigin-markedrenewa-
bleelectricityfortheplantfrom2021.Heatingisonearea
where emissions still need to be looked at: this still 
involves a separate gas boiler using non-renewable natural 
gas and causes emissions of about 1,250 tonnes of 

carbondioxideperyear.Thelong-termplanistoreplace
the gas boiler with a new, long-term solution, but a new 
emissions reduction measure is being tested in the mean-
time:a partnershipwiththeneighbouringWiigGartneri
commercial garden means that emissions from the gas 
burner now are pumped through a 60-metre long pipe into 
the greenhouse, where both the heat and the carbon diox-
idecanbeusedandabsorbedbygrowingplants.Addition
of carbon dioxide is needed in commercial greenhouse 
cultivationinordertoachievethebestharvestpossible.

– If all the carbon dioxide we produce can be absorbed by 
the plants, this will allow us to ‘zero’ emissions from our 
factory here in Jæren, says Thomas Guggedal, proud 
technicalmanageratDenStolteHane.Thenurseryplants
have the capacity to absorb up to 10 percent more carbon 
dioxidethannormalair.Year-roundproductioningreen-
houses also requires large amounts of heat, so the surplus 
fromourplantiscominginhandytoo.
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The Scandi Standard share was listed on Nasdaq Stockholm 
on27June2014underthesymbolSCST.
In2021atotalof77.8(30.0)millionsharesweretraded.
Theaveragedailyvolumewas307402(119145)shares.
The final price paid on the last day of trading in 2021 was 

41.0 (68.8)SEK,vwhichentailsadropofapproximately40percent
comparedwiththesameperiodinthepreviousyear.Theshareprice
has therefore decreased by approximately 13 percent since the 
listingin2014.TheshareisapartoftheNasdaqMidCapindex,
whichincreasedby36percentin2021.

On 31 December 2020 the market value totalled approximately 
MSEK2,708(4,545).

Ownership structure
On 31 December 2021 the number of shareholders totalled 
8,520(6,114).Theholdingofthetenlargestshareownerscor-
respondedto49(54)percentofthesharecapital.Swedish
 institutions, unit trusts and private individuals had a holding in 
the compantcorresponding70(57)percentavofthesharecapital
asof31December2021.

Dividend
To ensure continued financial flexibility the Board has resolved to 
propose to the 2022 Annual General Meeting that no dividend be 
paidforthefinancialyear2021(SEK1.25pershareforthefinan-
cialyear2020).TheproposaldoesnotreflectachangeintheCom-
pany’sdividendpolicyorfutureintentiontopaydividend.The
Company’s dividend policy is to distribute approximately 60 per-
cent of earnings, adjusted for non-comparable items, for the year 
onaverageovertime.Thedividendshouldbedeterminedinaway
that ensures that the proposed dividend is justifiable; which is 
basedontherequirementsthatthetype,scope andrisksofthe
company’sandGroup’soperationsplaceon thelevelofthecom-
pany’s and Group’s equity, as well as the com pany’s and Group’s 
consolidationneeds,liquidityandstatusin general.

Share-based incentive programme
Scandi Standard has three share-based long-term incentive pro-
grammesforkeyindividuals,LTIP2019LTIP2020andLTIP2021.
SeeNotes1and5forinformationabouttheseprogrammes.

The Scandi Standard share

–13%
Decrease in the share price 
since the listing in 2014  
(as of 31 December 2021)

49%
The percentage of the share 
capital that is controlled by 
the ten largest owners

The Scandi Standard share price development 27 June 2014 – 31 December 2021
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Sweden, 70%
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Ownership structure on 31 December 2021

Holding
No. of 

 shareholders No. of shares
Voting rights and 

share capital, %

1−500 5,658 862,277 1.31
501−1 000 1,087 892,679 1.35
1 001−10 000 1,492 4,601,804 6.97
10 001−20 000 111 1,635,746 2.48
20 001− 172 58,068,384 87.9
Totalt 8,520 66,060,890 100.0

Per share data, SEK
2021 2020

Earnings per share 1.60 3.16
Adjusted earnings per share1) 1.46 4.062)

Dividend per share 0.003) 1.25
Operating cash flow, per share 5.31 7.26
Equity per share 29.89 28.58
Average no of shares 4) 65,287,762 65,501,968
Number of shares at the end of period 66,060,890 66,060,890

1) Adjustedfornon-comparableitems,seepage52.
2)  Restatement non-comparable items has been made for 2020 in accordance with 
newdefinitionimplyingastricterclassificationofsuchitems.

3) Board’sproposaltotheAnnualGeneralmeeting2022.
4) In2021,520,000(0)shareswererepurchased.

Largest shareholder on 31 December 2021
 
Name No. of shares Capital, %

Investment AB Öresund 10,100,000 15.3
Länsförsäkringar Fondförvaltning AB 3,604,875 5.5
Eva Qviberg 3,497,000 5.3
Lantmännen Animalieinvest AB 3,303,461 5.0
Försäkringsbolaget PRI pensionsgarati, 
OMSESI 2,970,000 4.5
EuroclearBankS.A/N.V,W8-IMY 2,789,562 4.2
BrownBrothersHarriman/Lux 2,063,121 3.1
Försäkringsaktiebolaget, Avanza pension 1,991,859 3.0
Nordnet pensionsförsäkring AB 1,342,220 2.0
StateStreetBankandTrustCo. 1,313,378 2.0
Other 33,085,414 50.1
Total 66,060,890 100.0

Geographic distribution 
of the share ownership
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CFO’s statement

We have set a clear 
improvement plan 
that is expected to 
take effect in 2022.

Operating income in 2021 amounted to MSEK 222, a 
reduction with MSEK 129 (–37 percent) compared with 
2020,withanoperatingmarginof2.2(3.5)percent.

Scandi Standard has faced a number of challenges in 
2021, both operationally and commercially, particularly 
withintheReady-to-cooksegment.Externalfactorssuch
as bird flu and declining export prices in addition to 
increases in purchase prices have had a negative impact 
onourperformance.Internally,wehavefacedchallenges
in quality that have led to production reductions at two of 
ourlargestplants.

Moreover, our Ready-to-cook business in Denmark has 
continuedtofacemajorchallenges.Herewehavepoten-
tial for improvement and we have set a clear improvement 
planthatisexpectedtotakeeffectin2022.

At the same time it is pleasing to see that the Ready-to-
eat segment has had a strong year, with high growth 
(11 percent)afterhavingbeentheGroupsegmentmost
adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 due 
toitshighshareofsalesintheFoodservicesaleschannel.
This has also helped to bring about strong margin 
improvement.

Wehavebeenveryfocusedondefendingourfinancial
positioninthesecondhalfof2021despitelowerprofits,
and we took a number of precautionary measures such 
as reducingtheinvestmentratefromourinitialplanof
MSEK 400toMSEK306.TheBoardalsodecidednotto

convene a second General Meeting to propose an extra 
dividend in addition to the dividend of MSEK 81 that was 
paidinthesecondquarter.Asaresultofthesemeasures,
the increase in net interest-bearing debt was limited to 
MSEK47despitelowerprofitsandhighpurchaseprice
payments.Ournetfinancialitemsin2021wasamong
other things impacted by lower interest expenses as we 
hadalowerdebt/equityratioduringtheyear,andended
at MSEK–82(–90)fortheyear.

The group also undertook major change management 
work in the second half of 2021 in order to address our 
challenges,includingupdatingourstrategy.Thisworkwill
carryoninto2022.Atthesametime,wecontinuetofocus
on maintaining many of the measures applied to address 
the risks with COVID-19 pandemic that continue to affect 
thecompany.

In summary, 2021 was a very challenging year for 
Scandi Standard, but we are looking forward to a gradual 
improvement in 2022 as a result of the measures that are 
nowbeingputinplace.

Julia Lagerqvist
CFO
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The Board of Directors and President of Scandi Standard AB 
(publ),identitynumber556921-0627,withregisteredoffice
in Stockholm, Sweden, herewith submit the annual report 
andconsolidatedaccountsforthe2021financialyear.

• NetsalesamountedtoMSEK10,101(9,940)intheyearof2021.
Atconstantexchangeratesnetsalesincreasedby3percent.

• Operating income (EBIT) decreased by 37 percent to MSEK 222 
(351),correspondingtoamarginof2.2(3.5)percent.Adjusted
operatingincome(adj.EBIT)1) decreased by 48 percent to 
MSEK 213(410),correspondingtoamarginof2.1(4.1)percent.

• IncomeafterfinancenetdecreasedtoMSEK140(260).
• IncomefortheperiodamountedtoMSEK103(208).Earnings
pershareamountedtoSEK1.60(3.16).

• OperatingcashflowwasMSEK347(476).
• Net interest-bearing debt increased to MSEK 1,980 (1,933)
• Forthefinancialyear2020adividendofSEK1,25persharewas
paid,correspondingtoatotalofMSEK81.Toensurecontinued
financialflexibilitytheBoardhasresolvedtoproposetothe2022
AnnualGeneralMeetingthatnodividendbepaidforthefinancial
year2021.

• New segment reporting supporting our strategy for continued 
growth and value creation, focusing on the two reportable 
 segments Ready-to-cook and Ready-to-eat, effective as of 
1 January2021.

Net sales and income
Net sales 
Net sales for the Group amounted to MSEK 10,101 (9,940) in the 
yearof2021.

Atconstantexchangeratesnetsalesincreasedby3percent.
Net sales for segment Ready-to- cook, which is the largest product 
category, was in line with previous year while net sales increased 
by 11 percent for segment Ready-to-eat driven by increased sales 
totheFoodservicesaleschannel.

Income
Operating income for the Group amounted to MSEK 222 (351), corre-
spondingtoanoperatingmargin(EBITmargin)of2.2(3.5)percent.

The lower operating income is mainly driven by lower results in 
Ready-to-cook,whileReady-to-eathasimproveditsresults.

The operating income during the year was negatively affected 
bysignificantpriceincreasesonseveralinputfactorsandachal-
lengingpricesituationinexportmarkets.Productionchallenges
related to the operational capability, especially in quality, led to 
production reductions in Sweden and Ireland during the fourth 
quarter which had a short-term negative effect on operational 
income,butimprovedcontrol.Theproductionreductionhasmore-
over created conditions for long-term operational improvement 
throughmoreefficientworkingmethods.Inaddition,lossesin
Ready-to-cook Denmark, mainly related to the implementation of 
the strategy for slow-growing birds, low export prices and cost 
increases,affectedoperatingincomenegativelyduringtheyear.

Operating income (EBIT) included MSEK 9 (–59) in non-com-
parableitems,seetableonpage52.Adjustedoperatingincome
(adjusted EBIT) thus amounted to MSEK 213 (410), corresponding 
toanadjustedoperatingmargin(adjustedEBITmargin)of2.1
(4.1)percent.

ThefinancenetfortheGroupamountedtoMSEK–82(–90)for
2021.Theimprovementrefersmainlytolowerinterestexpenses.

IncomeafterfinancenetfortheGroupamountedtoMSEK
140(260)for2021.

Tax on the Group’s income for the year amounted to MSEK 
–37 (–52)for2021,correspondingtoaneffectivetaxrateof
approximately26(20)percent.

Income for the year for the Group amounted to MSEK 103 (208) 
for2021,correspondingtoearningspershareofSEK1.60(3.16).

% 2021 2020

EBITDA-margin 5.9 7.0
Operating margin (EBIT-margin) 2.2 3.5
Adjusted EBITDA-margin1) 5.8 7.6
Adjusted operating margin         
(adj.EBIT-margin)1) 2.1 4.1
Return on capital employed (ROCE)1) 5.2 8.4
Return on equity 5.5 11.5
Equity ratio 30.0 29.4
Average number of employees 3,215 3,220

1) Forthenon-comparableitems,seepage52.
2) ProposedbytheBoardtotheAnnualGeneralMeeting2022.

MSEK 2021 2020

Net sales 10,101 9,940
EBITDA 598 699
Operating income (EBIT) 222 351
Non-comparable items 9 -59
Adjusted EBITDA1) 589 756
Adjustedoperatingincome(adj.EBIT)1) 213 410
Incomeafterfinancenet 140 260
Income for the year 103 208
Earnings per share, SEK 1,60 3,16
Dividend, SEK – 2) 1,25
Operating cash flow 347 476
Net interest-bearing debt 1,980 1,933

Key figures
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Cash flow and investments
Operating cash flow for the Group in 2021 amounted to MSEK 347 
comparedtoMSEK476lastyear.Cashflowwasnegatively
impacted by a lower income before depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA) but positively affected by higher positive change of 
working capital compared with last year and by slightly lower 
capitalexpenditurecomparedwithlastyear.

Working capital as of 31 December 2021 amounted to 
MSEK –105(64),correspondingto–1.0(0.6)percentofnetsales.
The improvement compared with previous year is mainly related 
to improvements in payables & receivables offset by an increase 
in inventory.

Capital expenditure
Net capital expenditure for the Group in 2021 amounted to 
MSEK 306(355).Asignificantpartismainlyrelatedtoinvest-
ments in Sweden where Scandi Standard have continued the 
strategy of investing in newest deboning technology on thigh 
deboning.Investmentswiththesamepurposehavealsobeen
madeinseveralsitesintheothercountries.

Approximately 77 (71) percent of the capital expenditure in 
2021 referred to productivity and capacity improvement measures 
andapproximately23(29)percenttomaintenance.

Financial position
Equityasof31December2021amountedtoMSEK1,951(1,876).
Theequitytoassetsratioimprovedto30.0(29,4)percent.Return
onEquitywas5.5(11.5)percent.

Net interest-bearing debt for the Group as of 31 December 
2021amountedtoMSEK1,980(1,933).Theincreaseinnet
interest- bearing debt of MSEK 47 (–267) from the 31 of December 
2020 was in addition to the lower operating cash flow, negatively 
affected by dividends paid compared with no dividends paid last 
year, higher additional purchase price payments and higher tax 
payments compared to last year when local authorities in some 
countries last year approved a deferral of certain tax payments 
duetotheCovid-19pandemic.

Netinterest-bearingdebt/adjustedEBITDAasof31December
2021,was3.4(2.6)percent.Cashandcashequivalentsforthe
GroupamountedtoMSEK350(413)asof31December2021.

Non-comparable items in operating income1)

MSEK 2021 2020

Earn-out Debt adjustment2) 9 –52
Restructuring3) – –7
Total 9 –59

1) ScandiStandardimplementedanewdefinitionfortreatmentofitems
affectingcomparabilityinthefirstquarter2021whichimpliesastricter
classificationofsuchitems.Financialinformationfortheyear2020has
been restated related to items affecting comparability for the alternative 
performance measures adjusted EBITDA and adjusted operating income 
(adjustedEBIT).

2) Income of MSEK 22 related to decreased earn-out debt resulting from 
thefinalpurchasepricepaymentrelatingtotheacquisitionofManor
Farm and in last year an adjustment of the earn-out debt attributable to 
theacquisitionofManorFarmofMSEK52.Inaddition,fortheyear,cost
ofMSEK–13resultingfromthefinalpurchasepricepaymentrelatingto
theacquisitionoftheFinnishbusiness.

3) Costs due to restructuring of a Swedish subsidiary during 2020, with 
terminatingalong-termcontractandwrite-downsofassetsofMSEK7.

Change in net interest-bearing debt (NIBD)
MSEK 2021 2020

Opening balance net interest-bearing 
debt 1,933 2,200
EBITDA 598 699
Change in working capital 162 143
Net capital expenditure –306 –355
Other operating items –108 –10
Operating cash flow 347 476
Paidfinanceitems,net –69 –76
Paid income tax –56 –41
Dividend –81 –
Acquisition –171 –104
Other1) –17 11
Decrease (+) / increase (–) of NIBD –47 267
Closing balance net interest-bearing 
debt 1,980 1,933

1) Other items mainly consist of effects from changes in foreign exchange 
ratesandnetchangeofleasingassets.
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Segment information
Segment Ready-to-cook
MSEK 2021 2020 Change

Net sales 7,611 7,619 −0%
EBITDA 424 615 −31%
Operating income (EBIT) 110 326 −66%
Non-comparable items1) − −7 −
Adjusted EBITDA1) 424 622 −32%
Adjusted operating income 
(adj.EBIT)1) 110 333 −67%
EBITDA-margin1) 5.6% 8.1% −2.5ppt
Operating margin 

    (EBIT-margin)1) 1.4% 4.3% −2.8ppt
Adjusted EBITDA-margin1) 5.6% 8.2% −2.6ppt
Adjusted operating margin 
(EBIT-margin)1) 1.4% 4.4% −2.9ppt

1) Forthenon-comparableitems,seepage52.

Fromthefirstquarter2021ScandiStandardmanagesand
 monitors its business based on the segments Ready-to-cook, 
Ready-to-eatandOther.Afurtherdescriptionofthesegments
is providedinNote3.

Net sales for the segment Ready-to-cook (RTC) amounted to 
MSEK7,611(7,622)whichwasinlinewithpreviousyear.

Net sales for product category Ready-to-cook chilled increased 
by 1 percent while product category Ready-to-cook frozen 
decreasedwith5percentcomparedwithpreviousyear.

Net sales in the Retail sales channel decreased by 2 percent 
butincreasedby15percentinFoodservicesaleschannel.Net
sales to Export sales channel decreased by 7 percent while it 
increasedby19percentinIndustryandother.

Operating income decreased by 66 percent to MSEK 110 (326), 
correspondingtoamarginof1.4(4.3)percent.

Operating income was negatively affected by increased costs 
for direct materials, low export prices, costs for sale of stock and 
increasedcostsforproductionandinsurance.

Nonon-comparableitemswasreportedduring2021(–7).
 

Segment Ready-to-eat
MSEK 2021 2020 Change

Net sales 2,112 1,911 11%
EBITDA 187 141 32%
Operating income (EBIT) 138 95 45%
Non-comparable items1) − − –
Adjusted EBITDA1) 187 141 32%
Adjusted operating income 
(adj.EBIT)1) 138 95 45%
EBITDA-margin1) 8.8% 7.4% 1.5ppt
Operating margin 

 (EBIT-margin)1) 6.6% 5.0% 1.6ppt
Adjusted EBITDA-margin1) 8.8% 7.4% 1.5ppt
Adjustedoperatingmargin(adj.
EBIT-margin)1) 6.6% 5.0% 1.6ppt

1) Forthenon-comparableitems,seepage52.

Net sales for the segment Ready-to-eat (RTE) amounted to 
MSEK 2,112(1,911)whichwasanincreaseof11percent.

Net sales increased in the Foodservice sales channel with 
8 percentandwith15percentintheRetailsaleschannel.Netsales
to Export sales channel increased by 13 percent and increased by 
23percentinIndustryandother.

Operating income increased by 45 percent to MSEK 138 (95), 
correspondingtoamarginof6.6(5.0)percent.

Operating income was positively affected by increased 
volumesandapositiveproductmix.

Nonon-comparableitemswasreportedduringtheyear.

Segment Other
Segment Other consists of ingredients, which is surplus products 
mainly for non-human consumption, and mainly used for indus-
trialproductionofanimalfeedandotherapplications.Thisisin
line with Scandi Standard’s ambition to utilize the animal entirely, 
as it reduces production waste to almost zero and contributes to a 
lowercarbonfootprint.NoindividualpartofOtherissignificant
enoughinsizetoconstituteitsownsegment.

Ingredients
Net sales within Ingredients amounted to MSEK 377 (411) with an 
operatingincome(EBIT)ofMSEK13(7).Theincreaseinoperating
income(EBIT)wasdrivenbyincreasedpricesinfuranimalfeed.

Group cost
Group costs of MSEK –39 (–78) were recognised in the Group 
operatingincome(EBIT).Thegroupcostincludednon-com-
parableitemsofMSEK9(–52).
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Acquisition
Noacquisitionsweremadeduring2021.

In conjunction with the acquisition of the Irish operation, 
Manor Farm, in 2017, an agreement of contingent consideration 
wasmade,tobepaidinfourseparatepayments2018–2021.
The amountwasdependentontheincomedevelopment.Thefirst
instalment of the contingent consideration amounting to MSEK 4, 
waspaidin2018.Thesecondinstalmentofthecontingentconsid-
eration, amounting to MSEK 133, was paid in the third quarter of 
2019.Thethirdpart,ofMSEK117million,waspaidoutinthethird
quarterof2020andthefirstquarterof2021.During2021,thefinal
purchase price payment of MSEK 157 of the earn-out debt attribut-
able to the acquisition of Manor Farm was paid out and the operat-
ing income included in non-comparable items a reduction in debt 
ofMSEK22attributabletothefinalpayment.Inaddition,in2021a
finalpurchasepricepaymentrelatingtotheacquisitiontheFinnish
businessofMSEK13waspaidout.

The Scandi Standard share
As of 31 December 2021, the share capital in Scandi Standard AB 
(publ) amounted to SEK 659,663 (659,663), comprising 
66,060,890 (66,060,890) shares with a quota value of SEK 
0.009986(0.009986)pershare.Eachsharecarriesonevote.
All shareshaveequalrightstothecompany’sassetsandprofits.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of shares, voting rights 
or the right to participate in the Annual General Meeting, nor is the 
companypartytoanysignificantagreementswhichmightbe
affected, changed or terminated if control of the company were to 
change as a result of a public bid for acquisition of shares in the 
company,withtheexceptionoftheGroup’sfinancingagreement.
The company is not aware of any agreements between share- 
holderswhichmightlimittherighttotransfershares.Inaddition,
there are no stipulations in the Articles of Association regarding 
appointment or dismissal of Board members or agreements 
between the company and Board members or employees which 
require remuneration if such persons leave their posts, or if 
employment is terminated as a result of a public bid to acquire 
sharesinthecompany.

As of 31 December 2021, the three largest shareholders were 
Investment AB Öresund, Länsförsäkringar Fondförvaltning AB and 
EvaQvibergwithaholdinginthecompanycorrespondingto15.3,
5.5and5.3percentofthesharecapitalrespectively.Forinforma-
tiononmajorshareholders,seepage49.

Environmental activities
Scandi Standard operates 13 larger production facilities, of which 
four in Sweden, three in Denmark, three in Norway, two in the 
RepublicofIrelandandoneinFinland.Permitsandnotification
requirementsareinaccordancewithlocallegislationforallunits.
The main direct environmental impacts are noise, emissions into 
theairandwater,andtemporarystorageofhazardouswaste.
Within the framework of the group-wide improvement program 
that was initiated during the second half of 2021, the routines have 
beenstrengthenedtoremedyidentifieddeviationsmorequickly.
For further information on Scandi Standards’ environmental work, 
seethesustainabilitysectionstatedonpage30.

Corporate Governance report and Sustainability Report
In accordance with the Annual Accounts Act, Chapter 6, 11§, 
Scandi Standard has chosen to prepare the statutory Corporate 
Governance Report and Sustainability Report that is separated 
fromthestatutoryAnnualReport.TheCorporateGovernance
Report is stated on page 113 and the Sustainability report is stated 
onpage30.

Personnel
The average number of employees (FTE) in 2021 was 3,215 
(3,220),seeNote5.

Annual General Meeting 2022
TheAnnualGeneralMeeting(AGM)2022willbeheldon4May.
The Board of directors intends to decide that the Annual General 
Meeting shall be held without physical presence of shareholders, 
proxies or external parties in accordance with the Act on Tempo-
rary Exemptions to facilitate the conduct of general and general 
meetings.Toparticipateinthedecision-makingatthegeneral
meeting requires that the shareholders exercise their voting rights 
bypost.NoticeoftheAnnualGeneralMeetingincludinginforma-
tion on how shareholders can vote by mail will be available on: 
www.investors.scandistandard.com/en/agmbeforetheAnnual
GeneralMeeting.

Proposed appropriation of earnings
ToensurecontinuedfinancialflexibilitytheBoardhasresolvedto
propose to the 2022 Annual General Meeting that no dividend be 
paidforthefinancialyear2021.Forthefinancialyear2020a
dividend of SEK 1,25 per share was paid, corresponding to a total 

ofMSEK81.Theproposaldoesnotreflectachangeinthe
Company’sdividendpolicyorfutureintentiontopaydividend.

The company’s dividend policy is to distribute a dividend of 
approximately 60 percent of income for the year, adjusted for 
non-comparableitems,onaverageovertime.Thedividendshall
be determined taking into account the requirements that the 
company’s and the Group’s operations type, scope and risks 
impose on the size of the company’s and the Group’s equity and 
theinvestmentrequirementsofthecompanyandtheGroup.
The Boardproposesthattheremainingfundswillbecarried
forward.

SEK 2021 2020

Share premium reserve 645,155,862 726,508,284
Accumulateddeficit -27,115,487 −19,969,532
Income for the year 10,403,145 24,553.713
Total 628,443,520 731,092,465

Dividend to shareholders of SEK 
1.25(–)pershare – 82,308,955
To be carried forward 628,443,520 748,783,510

Total 628,443,520 731,092,465

Significant events during the financial year
Like in 2020, 2021 was affected by the Covid-19 pandemic and 
the Grouphascontinueditsworktoensurethattheimpacton
our operationswasaslimitedaspossible.Proactiveactionswas
taken to protect employees and other stakeholders and to safe-
guardthefinancialposition

Significantcostincreasesonseveralinputfactorshavehada
negative effect on operating income, especially during the second 
halfoftheyear.Inaddition,severalcasesofbirdfluduringtheyear
have affected the Group’s exports and this is expected to continue 
into2022.

During the second quarter 2021, attention was drawn to pro-
ductionchallengesintheSwedishoperations.Thisledtoexten-
sive actions throughout the Group to address these and identify 
otherpotentialdeviations.Theactionsbecamepartofthegroup-
wide improvement program initiated during the third quarter of 
2021,withtheaimofgraduallyreturningtheGrouptoprofitability
in line with 2016–2020 and laying the foundation for long-term 
sustainableandprofitablegrowthandreturns.
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During the year, Johan Bygge was elected as the new Chairman of 
the Board and Otto Drakenberg was appointed as the new interim 
managingdirectorandCEO.

Events after the end of the period
Jonas Tunestål will join the company as managing director and 
CEOon1April2022.

During the beginning of 2022 additional cost increases have 
emerged.SimultaneouslythewarintheUkrainewill,apartfrom
the human suffering it is causing, affect the prerequisites for 
Europeanfoodproduction.Thedevelopmentisaddingtotheprice
increases on many input factors, and creates increased market 
volatility.However,ScandiStandard’sbusinessmodelallowsfor
fluctuations in input prices to be transferred to the customer, and 
provides good possibilities to manage price and cost increases 
overtime.Shiftingsupply-anddemandcurvesontheEuropean
marketmayalsodriveexportpricesupwards.

Proposal regarding guidelines for remuneration to senior 
management
The 2020 Annual General Meeting, held on 15 May, 2020, resolved 
to establish the following guidelines for remuneration to senior 
management.Guidelinesforremunerationtoseniormanagement
shall be resolved by the Annual General Meeting at least every four 
years.TheBoardofDirectorsintendstochangetheguidelines
relatedtopensionstothe2022AnnualGeneralMeeting.Other
guidelines for remuneration to senior management will continue 
toapply.Theseguidelinesapplytoagreementsreachedafterthe
guidelines were resolved by the 2020 Annual General Meeting and 
to amendments to existing agreements after the guidelines were 
decidedbythe2020AnnualGeneralMeeting.

In 2021, the board has exercised its right to deviate from the 
guidelines in individual cases and for special reasons from the 
guidelines regarding the CEO’s maximum short-term variable 
remuneration, which in 2022 may deviate from the applicable 
guidelinesfrompredeterminedpresentationgoals.Intheindivid-
ual case, the Board’s reason for deviation from the guidelines has 
been to be able to recruit the person whom the Board has deemed 
mostsuitableforitsposition.

In these guidelines, the senior management means the 
 managing director of the company, the senior managers in the 
company and other group companies who, from time to time, 

report to the managing director or the CFO and who are also 
 members of the senior management, as well as board members of 
the company that have entered into an employment or consulting 
agreementwithagroupcompany.

The company’s remuneration principles and policies shall be 
designed to ensure responsible and sustainable remuneration 
decisions that support the company and the Group’s strategy, 
long-terminterestsandsustainablebusinesspractices.Salaries
and other terms and conditions of employment shall be adequate 
to enable the company and the group to retain and recruit skilled 
seniormanagersatareasonablecost.Theremunerationtothe
seniormanagersshallconsistoffixedsalary,variablesalary,
pensionandotherbenefits,anditshallbebasedontheprinciples
ofperformance,competitivenessandfairness.

Principles for fixed salary
Eachseniormanagershallbeofferedafixedsalaryinlinewith
market conditions and based on the manager’s responsibility, 
expertiseandperformance.Totheextentaboardmemberper-
forms work for the company, in addition to ordinary board work, 
a market-basedconsultingfeemaybepaid.

Principles for variable salary
All senior managers may, from time to time, be offered a variable 
salary(i.e.,cashbonuses).Thevariablesalaryshallbebasedona
setoffinancialandpersonalobjectivesdeterminedinadvance.To
which extent the objectives for awarding variable salary has been 
satisfiedshallbedeterminedwhentherelevantmeasurement
periodoftheperformancecriteriahasended.Theremuneration
committee of the board of directors is responsible for the evalua-
tionofthevariablesalarytothemanagingdirectorandCEO.The
managing director and CEO is responsible for the evaluation of the 
variablesalarytoothermembersoftheseniormanagement.

The variable salary may not amount to more than 75 percent 
of thefixedsalary(inthiscontext,fixedsalarymeanscashsalary
earnedduringtheyear,excludingpension,benefitsandsimilar)

Principles for share-related incentive programs
Remuneration resolved upon by the Annual General Meeting is not 
coveredbytheseguidelines.Accordingly,theseguidelinesdonot
apply to the share-related long-term incentive program 2022 
(LTIP 2022)whichtheBoardofDirectorsintendstoproposetothe

2022 Annual General Meeting or the outstanding share-related 
long-term incentive programs of the same kind resolved upon by 
the Annual General Meetings 2021, 2020 and 2019, or the out-
standing share-related long-term incentive program resolved by 
the 2018 Annual General Meeting, which is partly in line with LTIP 
2021,2020and2019.Theseshare-relatedlong-termincentive
programs are directed at certain key employees of the company 
and the Group and are designed to promote the long-term value 
growth and sustainability of the company and the Group and 
improve alignment between the interests of the participating 
employeesandthecompany’sshareholders.Underthelong-term
incentive programs, the participating employees may be allotted 
shares in the company free of charge, subject to a three-year 
vesting period and provided that certain performance criteria are 
fulfilled.Inordertofurtherimprovealignmentbetweenthelong-
term interests of the participants and the company’s shareholders, 
a requirement for participation is that the participant undertakes 
to retain all allotted shares (except for such shares that are sold to 
cover for tax due to the allotment of shares) for a period of two 
yearsfromthedateoftheallotmentoftheshares.Moreinforma-
tion on the company’s share-related long-term incentive programs, 
including the performance criteria which the outcome depends on, 
isavailableonthecompany’swebsitewww.scandistandard.com.

Principles for pensions
Agreements regarding pensions shall, where applicable, be 
 premium based and designed in accordance with the level and 
practice applicable in the country in which the member of senior 
managementisemployed.Pensionpremiumsforpremium
definedpensionmaynotamounttomorethan25percentofthe
annualfixedsalary.

Principles for other non-monetary benefits
Inadditiontofixedandvariablesalariesandpensions,Scandi
Standard offers occupational injury insurance and occupational 
group life insurance in accordance with local agreements and 
regulations.Inaddition,seniormanagersareentitledtoprivate
healthinsurance,telephoneandcarbenefitsOtherbenefitsmay
include, for example, life insurance, medical insurance and com-
panycars.Premiumsandothercostsrelatedtosuchbenefitsmay
notamounttomorethan10percentoftheannualfixedsalary.
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Principles for salary during periods of notice and severance pay
Fixed salary during notice periods and severance payment, 
 including payments for any restrictions on competition, shall in 
aggregatenotexceedanamountequivalenttothefixedsalaryfor
twoyears.Thetotalseverancepaymentforallmembersofthe
senior management shall be limited to the current monthly salary 
for the remaining months up to current retirement age in each 
country.

Preparation and review of matters regarding remuneration 
to senior management
These guidelines have been prepared by the remuneration com-
mitteeoftheBoardofDirectors.Whenevaluatingwhetherthe
guide- lines and the limitations set out herein are reasonable, the 
remuneration committee has considered the total income of all 
employees of the company, including the various components of 
their remuneration as well as the increase and growth rate over 
time.

The remuneration committee shall during the year monitor and 
evaluate both ongoing and completed programs for variable remu-
neration for senior management, and monitor and evaluate the 
application of the guidelines for remuneration to senior 
 management resolved by the Annual General Meeting as well as 
the current remuneration structures and compensation levels in 
thecompanyandtheGroup.

The members of the remuneration committee are independent 
inrelationtothecompanyandseniormanagement.TheManaging
Director and the other members of senior management do not 
 participate in the Board of Directors’ handling and resolutions of 
remuneration-relatedmattersiftheyhavenoeffect.

Principles for deviations from the guidelines
The board of directors may resolve to deviate from the guidelines 
if theboardofdirectors,inanindividualcase,isoftheopinionthat
there are special circumstances justifying a deviation and a devia-
tion is necessary to serve the company’s long-term interests, 
includingitssustainability,ortoensurethecompany’sfinancial
viability.

Proposal for share-related long-term incentive program
The board of Directors of the Company has resolved to propose to 
the AGM 2022 a share-related long-term incentive program 2022 
(LTIP 2022) for senior executives and key employees which is 
designed to promote the long-term value growth of the Company 
and sustainability of the company and the Group and increase 
alignment between the interests of the participating individuals in 
theprogramandthecompany’sshareholders.

LTIP 2022 retains components from the long-term incentive 
plansadoptedin2019–2021.However,theparticipantsare
required to invest in Scandi Standard shares in order to participate 
inLTIP2022.Eachsuchsharewillgiveparticipantsone(1)
 Retention Share Right which is subject to continued employment 
and two (2) Performance Share Rights each of which are subject 
to the satisfaction of a performance requirements during the term 
oftheprogram.OneofthePerformanceShareRightsaresubject
to an EPS CAGR requirement and the other Performance Share 
Right is subject to a new requirement based on annual relative 
TSR.

Theprogramcomprisesamaximumof28participants.
The vesting period is three years and provided that certain 

conditionsarefulfilled,theparticipantsmayexercisetheirper-

formance share rights through which they will be allotted shares 
in thecompanyfreeofcharge.

The participants in the LTIP 2022 undertake to retain all allot-
ted ordinary shares, except for such shares that are sold to cover 
for employment income tax due to the allotment of shares, for a 
period of two years from the date of the allotment of the ordinary 
shares.Inordertobeentitledtoanyallotmentofordinaryshares,
it shallberequiredthattheparticipantsintheprogramremain
employed and have not given or been given notice of termination 
ofemploymentwithintheGroupduringthevestingperiod.

The LTIP 2018 program was completed during 2021 with an 
allotmentof245.227sharestotheparticipantsintheprogram.

Apart from LTIP 2019, LTIP 2020 and LTIP 2021, Scandi 
 Standard has no other share- or share price related incentive 
programs.TheintentionisthataprogramsimilartoLTIP2022
will beproposedannuallytotheAGMinthecomingyears.

Full details of LTIP 2022 are included in the notice to the AGM 
2022.ForinformationaboutthetermsandthecostsforLTIP2021,
LTIP2020andLTIP2019,seeNote5.
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RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
ScandiStandard’sabilitytoreachitsfinancialandothertargetsis
dependent on the Group being able to maintain its strong market 
shares and brand positions, to continuously launch new, innova-
tiveandsafeproducts,andtohavecostefficient,flexiblepro-
ductionandeffectiveinternalprocessesandcontrols.

As all business activities involve risks, an effective risk man-
agement process is required to protect current assets and realise 
theGroup’spotential.Risksthataremanagedeffectivelycanbe
reduced and result in opportunities and value creation, while risks 
that are not managed correctly can result in damage and value 
destruction.

The Group has a formalised and proactive risk management 
process,withclearlyestablishedrolesandareasofresponsibility.
Theprocessforriskmanagementinvolvesrisksbeingidentified,
evaluated, managed and followed up as a natural part of its 
corporategovernance.

The risks are described below in no particular order of priority 
andwithoutclaimingtobeexhaustive.Otherrisksanduncertain-
ties presently unknown to the Group, or which the Group at present 
deemstobeinsignificant,couldhaveasignificantadverseimpact
inthefutureontheGroup’sopportunitiestoachieveitsfinancial
andothergoals.

Risks and uncertainties
Risks connected with Scandi Standard’s operations can generally 
be divided into strategic risks, operational risks, risks related to 
compliance with external laws and regulations and internal steer-
ingdocuments,reportingrisksandfinancialrisks.Sustainability
risksareintegratedintheseriskifapplicable.

All risks can have a negative impact on Scandi Standard’s net 
sales,financialresultsandfinancialposition,andaffectthe
Group’sabilitytoachievethestrategic,operational,financialand
othertargetsthathavebeenset.

Internal steering documents such as Codes, policies, guide-
lines and instructions have been established to ensure that all the 
risks are taken into account when making important business 
decisionsandtogovernandcontroloperations.

Strategic risks
Strategic risks are linked to business development and long-term 
planning,aswellasbrandvalue.Theserisksarelargelydealtwith
by the Board of Directors as part of the annual strategy process, 
and in the work to establish the Group’s annual business plan and 
targets.

Operational risks
Operational risks arise in the course of the day-to-day running of 
the businesses and are mainly managed by Group Management 
andothermanagerswithoperationalresponsibility.

Risks related to compliance with external laws and regulations as 
well as internal steering documents
These risks are related to inadequate compliance with applicable 
external laws and regulations as well as internal steering docu-
ments.Formoreinformationaboutimportantexternallawsand
regulations and internal steering documents, see page 117 of 
the Corporategovernancereport.TheseincludetheSwedish
Corporate Governance Code and the Scandi Standard Code of 
Conduct,forexample.Inthecaseofexternalfinancialreporting,

this is to be prepared in accordance with external laws, accounting 
standardsandotherrequirementsapplicabletolistedcompanies.

Reporting risks
Reporting risks are related to the internal and external reporting in 
generalandtofinancialreportinginparticular.

A description of internal control and risk management in the 
GrouprelatedtofinancialreportingcanbefoundintheCorporate
governancereportonpage116.

Financial risks
Through its international operations, the Group is exposed to 
varioustypesoffinancialrisks.Theseincludefluctuationsinthe
Group’sfinancialresults,financialpositionandcashflowdueto
currencyrisks,interestraterisks,refinancingandliquidityrisksas
wellascreditandcounterpartyrisks.Seealsonote22.

Sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis of important factors affecting the Group’s 
financialresultsisshownbelow.Theanalysisisbasedonvalues
as of 31 December 2021 and assumes that all other influencing 
factorsremainunchanged.

Sensitivity analysis as of 31 December 20211)

MSEK Estimated impact on operating income

In the event of a change of +/–1% on an annual basis
Average sale price +/–101(99)
Cost of goods sold +/–91(83)

In the event of a change in exchange rates against SEK by +/–5%
DKK +/–5(3)
NOK +/–13(8)
EUR +/–0(9)
1) Figuresinparenthesesrefertopreviousyear.
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Risks Description Management

Dependency on a few 
major customers

TheGroup’sfivelargestcustomersrepresentedapproximately45percentofnet
salesin2021,andthetenlargestapproximately63percent.Thisispartlyduetothe
fact that for the Group’s markets the food retail market is consolidated with only a 
fewmajorchainsineachcountry.Lossofcustomersorvolumeswithcustomerscan
haveasubstantialnegativeimpactontheGroup’snetsalesandfinancialresults.

• Annualstrategyprocess.
• Proactivemanagementofyearlycustomernegotiations.
• Reporting of sales and results to Group Management and other members of 
operationalmanagementonaweeklybasis.

• Group Management holds meetings every two weeks to review the results and 
position,toupdateforecastsandplans,andtodiscusscriticalbusinessissues.

Access to birds to 
maintain current 
operations and achieve 
growth

It is almost exclusively external contract growers in their local markets that breed 
chickens.TheGroupisdependentonbuyingsignificantvolumesinorderto
maintainitscurrentoperationsandachievegrowth.
Introductionofnewbreedscomplicatestheplanningofvolumes.

• TheGroupworkscloselywithitscontractedgrowersontheefficiencyandqualityof
thebreedingandtopromotegoodanimalhusbandry.

• Continue to strengthen cooperation with the contracted growers overall and in terms 
ofthelegalagreements,andtoformalizethefollow-up.

• Improvedinternalplanningprocessthroughoutthevaluechain.

New trends that could 
lead to lower demand 
for chicken

Demand for the Group’s products can be affected by trends in health, diets, animal 
welfare, slow-growing breeds, ethical values relating to animal husbandry, the 
environment and climate, which can also affect the Group’s net sales and 
productioncosts.

• Greater focus on sustainability work throughout the organization and the value 
chain,includingstakeholderdialogues.

• Improvedcommunicationonourproductbenefitrelatedtohealthandclimate
efficiency.

• TheGrouphasgroup-widefunctionsforsustainability,qualityandanimalwelfare.
• Long-termmarketingstudies.

Changes in retail 
marketing

The retail sector is Scandi Standard’s largest sales channel, representing more than 
halfofGroupNetsales.Retailhasamajorimpactonthebuyingbehaviorof
consumers, for example, in terms of where the goods are located in the store, shelf 
spaceandsalespromotionandthereforetheGroup’snetsales.
An increase in online sales can lead to changes in volumes and market shares for 
theGroup’smostimportantcustomers.

• The Group works actively with trade organisations and retail to promote the chicken 
category and to ensure that the demand is stimulated, for example, through store 
design,allocationofshelfspaceandsalespromotionmeasures.

Political risks and 
geopolitical risks

Markets in which the Group operates are governed by extremely strict and extensive 
regulationsonhygiene,foodsafetyandanimalwelfare.
New or changed conditions for running the business, for example, regulations on 
climate mitigation and adaptation, biodiversity and other sustainability areas, can 
resultinunforeseencostsandrequireextensiveinvestments.Inabilitytoadaptthe
business could damage the reputation of the Group among customers and 
shareholders.
Riskforinvasioningeographicalvicinity.

• Continuous improvement of work processes and quality management systems to 
ensurehighfoodsafetyandqualitythroughoutthevaluechain.

• Majorfocusonsustainabilityworkthroughouttheorganisationandthevaluechain.
• Develop stakeholder dialogue and improving sustainability governance and 
reporting.

• Certificationoftheproductionfacilitiesinaccordancewithglobalandleading
standards.

• Continuoustestsinproductionforsalmonellaandcampylobacter.
• Crisismanagementproceduresandcontingencyplans.
• Impactassesments.

Brand damage Any issues with the quality of products, production processes, animal husbandry or 
in other parts of the value chain can lower trust in the Group’s brands and result in 
lowersalesvolumes.

• Internalsteeringdocumentssuchascodes,policies,guidelinesandinstructions.
• Aprocesshasbeenestablishedtocapturelearningsandbenefitfromtheexperience
fromeventsthathaveoccurred.

Company culture and 
the ability to attract 
competent employees

Motivated employees with the right competence are crucial to drive the Group’s 
developmentandachievetheobjectivesthathavebeenset.

• Internal steering documents including Code of Conduct
• Leadershipdevelopment.
• MoreworkonEmployerbrandinge.gGraduateprogram.
• Successionplanning.
• Majorfocusonsustainabilitywork.
• Annualemployeesurveywithfollow-upandtargetedmeasures.

Strategic risks
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Operational risks

Risks Description Management

Fluctuations in demand In the event of a sudden increase or decline in demand, the Group may not be able to 
make an immediate adjustment to production, which, among other things, may 
resultinthebuild-upofinventory.Productioncostshaveasubstantialimpactonthe
Group’sfinancialresults.Themaincostitemsarepersonnel,distribution,energy
andpropertycosts.

• To some extent, the negative effect can be limited for example by freezing products 
andsellingthemlaterasfrozenproductswithalongershelflife.

• Continuousfocusonstreamliningtheproductionprocessesandflowsinproduction.
• Minimising waste, downtime and overtime are other important factors that affect 
productioncostsandtheprofitabilityofafacility.

• Continuousfocusonplanning,processesandsystems.

Price competition The domestic production of chicken based food products in the Nordic countries 
andIrelandisconsolidatedtoafewmainproducersineachcountry.Thereisstrong
competition to maintain and strengthen positions in the sales channels Retail 
marketsandFoodservice.

• TheGroupisthelargestproducerintheNordicregionandIrelandandhassignificant
economies of scale and competitive advantages as a result of its high volumes, broad 
productrangeandstrongbrands.

• Greaterinvestmentsinproductdevelopmentandinprocessedproductcategories.
• Transferofbestpracticebetweenthecountriestogaineconomiesofscale.

Export prices Fluctuations in export prices and for certain chicken parts that are sold on the 
exportmarketscaninparticularaffecttheprofitabilityoftheDanishbusiness,
whichhasahighproportionofexports.

• Established a global export department to maximize sales value for the entire 
Group’sexportsales.

• Continuous focus on driving export sales of further processed products and reduce 
exportsalesofstandardproducts.

Changes in purchasing 
costs

Total external purchasing costs of raw materials and supplies in 2021 amounted to 
approxMSEK6,200ofwhichthemajorpartreferstothepurchaseoflivechickens.
The chickens are largely sourced from third-party growing farms in each local 
market.
The Group is exposed to changes in the price of feed indirectly as it is the largest 
cost item for the Group contracted growers as well directly through the feed mill 
that is part of the Irish business and that produces feed for the Irish contracted 
growers.
The Group is also exposed to general cost changes including energy, transportation, 
insurance and packaging materials and for cost changes as an effect of geopolitical 
uncertainty.

• The Group’s purchasing department works closely with suppliers to manage 
materialssupplyandriskinthisandmonitorthefinancialstability,qualityassurance
systemsincludinganimalwelfareanddeliverycapacityofsuppliers.

• Group’s business model, which generally enables fluctuations in raw material prices 
to be carried over to customers, provides a good basis for managing price and cost 
increasesovertime.

Disease outbreaks 
among the animals

Outbreaks of diseases among the animals within the Group, in the markets where 
Scandi Standard operates, other geographical markets or at competitors’ facilities 
canhaveanegativeimpactondemandforchickenproducts.
The greatest risk is an outbreak of bird flu or similar viruses, which can result in 
trade bans that restrict the Group’s export sales, even if the disease has not been 
detectedintheGroup’svaluechain.Salmonellainfectionisaconstantchallengefor
theentirepoultryindustry.

• Nordic chicken is considered to be of the highest quality as a result of the strict rules 
regardinganimalhealthandwelfare.

• The Group has extensive experience and well-developed processes throughout the 
valuechaintopreventdiseaseoutbreaks.

• Group-wide program regarding the quality requirements for animal welfare applies to 
allcontractedgrowers,irrespectiveoftheircountry.

• The costs of any damage are minimized through insurance solutions, when 
available.

Product quality and 
product safety

SupplyingfoodwhichissafetoeatisdecisivefortheGroup’ssuccessandsurvival.
If internal production processes or processes in the rest of the value chain do not 
work as intended, it can have a negative impact on product quality and product 
safety, which can lead to lower sales volumes and less trust in the Group and its 
brands.

• Continuous focus on improving work processes and quality management systems 
toensurehighfoodqualitythroughoutthevaluechain.

• Business ethics risks, risks in the value chain and raw material risks are mostly 
managed by implementing the Group’s Supplier Code of Conduct, which is included 
in every supplier agreement, and by regularly monitoring compliance with this Code 
ofConduct.

• Testsforsalmonellaandcampylobacterareperformedcontinuouslyinproduction.
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Risks Description Management

Disruptions in 
production or in the 
supply chain

Typically,anorderfromacustomermustbeprocessedwithinonetothreedays.
Evenminordisturbancestoproductionmaymakeitdifficulttofulfilobligationsto
customers,whichcanincreasetheriskofcustomerschangingsupplier.Customers
maysometimesalsobeentitledtocompensation.
A large proportion of the Group’s products are sold as fresh food, which due to 
expiration dates must be distributed and sold to customers short time after 
production.
DeviationsfromtheGroup’sstandardscanleadtoproductionchallenges.There
mayalsobedisruptionstotheproductionasaresultofillnessofthestaff,fire,
emissionsorotherdamagetomaterialresources.

• Thecostsofanydamageareminimizedthroughinsurancesolutions,whenavailable.
• Crisismanagementproceduresandcontingencyplans.
• Firealarmonallsites.
• Cooperationwithsuppliers.
• Group-wideimprovementprogram.

Business Ethics risks 
and risks relating to 
health, safety, human 
rights, the environment 
and animal welfare 
(ESG)

Weakened trust in the Group and its brands resulting from unethical behavior, fraud, 
corruptionorbribes.
Risks relating to health, safety, human rights, the environment and animal welfare 
canoccurthroughoutthevaluechain,includingattheGroup’sfacilities.Thiscanput
the Group’s reputation at risk, which can damage trust in the Group and its brands 
amonginvestors,customersandconsumers,aswellasmakingitmoredifficultto
recruitandretainemployees.

• Well-definedinternalgovernancesystem,policiesandsystematicworkand
communicationtomaintainasoundcompanyculture.

• Regular follow-up by management and assessment of all work-place injuries to 
developmeasurestocreateasafeworkenvironmentwithaminimisedriskofinjuries.

• ImplementationoftheGroup’sCodeofConductandtheSupplierCodeofConduct.
• Whistle-blowing function to enable the reporting of illegal or unethical behavior that 
violatestheGroup’sCodeofConduct.

Risks related to climate 
change

A growing awareness of climate change can lead to restrictions in emissions that 
affect the environment, changed regulation or new taxes on energy and transport, as 
wellaschangesinconsumers’preferencesandbuyingbehavior.
Climate change leading to more extreme weather conditions and weather events can 
havenegativeimpactonourvaluechaine.g.,productionoffeedandtheGroup’s
operationsincaseofextremeweathereventsaffectingourfacilities.

• TheGroupisactivelyworkingtosecureresourceefficiencyinallpartsofthevalue
chainintermsoftheuseofenergyandwaterandmanagingwasteandby-products.
The Group has committed to set a Science Based Target inline with the Paris 
Agreement,limitingglobalwarmingat1.5degrees.Thismid-andlong-termtargetis
currentlyunderdevelopment.Formoreinformation,seethesectionon
SustainabilityWorkonpage27–47.

Virus pandemic TheoutbreakoftheCovid-19pandemicaffectsouroperationsinseveralways.The
Groups sales to Foodservice is negatively affected since the hospitality industry is 
sufferingconsequencesofthevirusoutbreak.Theabilitytoproducemayalsobe
affected by high levels of sick leave if employees for other reasons cannot be at work or 
bygovernmentdirectivesthatmayaffecttheabilitytomaintaintheproduction.Ifthe
outbreakhasmajorimpactontheGroupsresult,itmayaffecttheliquidityandfinancial
positionoftheGroup.HowlongtheCovid-19pandemicwilllastandhowthepandemic
willdevelopisunknown.IftheoutbreakhasamajorimpactontheGroupsearnings,it
couldhaveasignificantimpactontheGroupsliquidityandfinancialposition.

• The work to minimize disruption in the longer term continues and the Group works 
continuously to manage the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic

• The Group has crisis plans that are updated and activated according to 
circumstances.

• Productioncapacityisadaptedtodemand.
• Adetailedanalysisoftheexpectedliquidityandfinancialpositionismadeand
updatedcontinuously.

• Crisispackagesfromgovernmentsmaybeapplicableinsomecases.

Insurance risks TheGroupisthroughitsoperationsandassetsexposedtolossesanddamages.
The costs for any losses and damages are minimized through insurance solutions in 
linewithindustrypractice.
Insurance is only possible if the insurance solutions Scandi Standard wants or has 
committed to have, are available, and there is no guarantee that available insurance 
solutionsareprovidedwithcoverageand/orpremiumsatthedesiredlevel.

• Internalsteeringdocumentssuchascodes,policies,guidelinesandinstructions.
• Systematic work to limit the risk of losses and damages and routines for crisis 
managementandcontingencyplanstolimittheeffectoflossesanddamages.

• Procurement process for insurance, structured by and implemented with assistance 
from leading insurance broker with access to and experience from relevant 
internationalinsurancemarkets.

• Programs to make the business more insurable and thus in the long run reduce the 
costofinsurancepremiums.

Lack of internal 
processes and 
information and IT 
security

If roles and divisions of responsibility are unclear within the organisation and its 
processes and IT systems, crucial actions including decisions, controls and 
changes can be delayed or not taken at all until the Group has suffered negative 
effectsordamage,oraretakenbythewrongperson.Inefficientprocesses,controls
andITsystemscanleadtoalackofinternalcontrol.

• Internalsteeringdocumentssuchascodes,policies,guidelinesandinstructions.
• Clearlydefinedareasofresponsibilityandmandatoryreportingformanagersandall
othersinsupervisorypositions.

• Efficientprocesses,controlsandITsystems.

Operational risks cont.
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Risks Description Management

Compliance with 
external laws and 
regulations as well as 
internal steering 
documents

The Group operates in several countries, which means that there are many external 
lawsandregulationsgoverningallaspectsofthebusiness.
Ifthesearenotobserved,therecouldbebothlegalandfinancialconsequencesthat
canalsodamagetheGroup’sreputation.
As a Swedish public limited liability company listed on Nasdaq Stockholm, Scandi 
Standard has to follow the Swedish Companies Act, the Swedish Annual Accounts 
Act, Nasdaq Stockholm Rulebook, Main Market Rulebook for Issuers of Shares, the 
Swedish Corporate Governance Code, and other Swedish and foreign external laws 
andregulationsbutalsointernalsteeringdocuments.

• The Group’s management structure with strong local management in each country 
allowsforrelevantinformationtobedisseminatedquicklywithintheorganisation.

• Internal steering documents such as Procedure for the Board, Instruction for CEO, 
InstructionregardingfinancialreportingtotheBoard,CodeofConductandSupplier
Code of Conduct, Whistle-blowing policy, Information policy, Insider policy, 
IT-security policy, Finance policy and other internal steering documents are updated 
onaregularbasisandapprovedbytheBoard.

• Group-wideimprovementprogram.
• Finance and Accounting policy and the Group’s Framework for internal control of 
financialreportingandestablishingaformalprogramfordevelopmentofthe
framework.

• Whistle-blowing function

Risks related to compliance with external laws and regulations as well as internal steering documents

Risks Description Management

Currency risks, 
transaction and 
translation exposure

Transactionexposurerelatesmainlytoexportsales.Translationexposureisthe
effect of changes in exchange rates when foreign subsidiaries’ income statements 
andstatementsoffinancialpositioninDKK,NOKandEURaretranslatedintoSEK.
Seealsonote22.

• ThefinancialrisksaremanagedbytheGroup’scentralfinancefunction,basedonthe
financepolicythathasbeenestablishedbytheBoard,andriskpoliciesforeach
country.

• The Group’s currency rate risk is hedged to some extent by denominating some loans 
inthesubsidiaries’relevantreportingcurrency.

Interest, refinancing, 
liquidity, credit- and 
counterparty risks

Interest-bearingliabilitiesexposetheGrouptointerestraterisks,i.e.changesin
marketinterestratescannegativelyaffectfinancialresultsandcashflow.
Risksrelatedtorefinancingandliquidityincludetheriskthatrefinancing
opportunities are limited when loans and credit facilities are to be renewed, or due to 
non-compliance with loan terms and credit terms, risk of higher costs, as well as the 
riskoftheinabilitytomeetpaymentobligationsasaresultofinsufficientliquidity.
Credit and counterparty risks include the risks that a counterparty in a transaction 
willbeunabletodischargeitsobligations.Formoreinformation,seeNote22.

• Theinterestrateriskismanagedbybalancedcombinationofvariableandfixed
interestrates.Interestrateriskismanagedthroughfixedloans,derivativesora
combinationofboth.

• The Group’s outstanding liabilities to credit institutions, including outstanding rate 
swaps,hadaweightedaveragetermof8(12)months,asof31December2021.

• Therefinancingriskislimitedbyhavingawell-diversifiedgroupofcounterparties.
• The weighted average maturity of liabilities to credit institutions as of 31 December 
2021were2(3)years.

Financial risks 

Risks Description Management

Inaccuracies in 
reporting

Inaccuracies can affect both internal and external reporting generally but also 
specificallyfinancialreporting.Forinformationaboutinternalcontroloverfinancial
reporting,seetheCorporategovernancereportonpage122.

• FinancialandAccountingManual.
• Internalcontrolframeworkforfinancialreporting.
• Risk management process
• InternalAuditFunction.

IT-related risks Lack of information security and IT-security, including cyber security, disruptions or 
faults in critical IT systems can affect both internal and external reporting in 
general,butalsospecificallythefinancialreporting.

• ITsecuritypolicy.
• Implemented strengthened governance processes for and procedures for changes 
inITsystems.

Reporting risks 
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated income statement

MSEK Note 2021 2020

1, 2, 3, 26, 30

Net sales 10,101 9,940
Other operating revenues 4 18 21
Changesininventoriesoffinishedgoods 
and work in progress 54 30
Raw materials and consumables –6,200 –5,898 
Cost of personnel 5 –2,041 –2,067
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 6 –378 –350
Other operating expenses 7, 9 –1,332 –1,327
Share of income of associates 14 2 2
Operating income 222 351

Finance income 8, 9 2 0
Finance expenses 8, 9 –83 –91
Income after finance net 140 260

Tax on income for the year 10 –37 –52
Income for the year 103 208

Whereof attributable to:  
     Shareholders of the parent company 104 207
     Non-controlling interests –1 1

Average number of shares 65,287,762 65,501,968
Earnings per share before dilution, SEK 1.60 3.16
Earnings per share after dilution, SEK 1.60 3.16
Number of shares at the end of the period 66,060,890 66,060,890

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

MSEK Note 2021 2020

Income for the year 103 208

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified  
to the income statement
Actuarialgainsandlossesindefined 
benefitpensionplans 23 42 12
Tax on actuarial gains and losses 23 –9 –3
Total 33 10

Items that will or may be reclassified  
to the income statement
Cash flow hedges –1 6
Currency effects from conversion of foreign operations 70 –116
Income from currency hedging of foreign operations –14 16
Taxattributabletoitemsthatwillbereclassifiedtothe
income statement 0 –1
Total 55 –95

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 88 –85
Total comprehensive income for the year 192 123

Whereof attributable to:  
     Shareholders of the Parent Company 193 122
     Non-controlling interests –1 1
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Consolidated statement of financial position

MSEK Note Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

1, 2, 3, 26, 27, 28, 30

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 11 921 888
Other intangible assets 11 876 878
Property plant and equipment 12 1,889 1,817
Right-of-use assets 13 415 455
Non-current leasing receivables 15 – 0
Participations in associated companies 14 46 43
Surplus in funded pensions 23 34 –
Financial assets 15 3 1
Deferred tax assets 10 65 41
Total non-current assets 4,249 4,123

Current assets

Biological assets 16 103 103
Inventory 17 785 713
Trade receivables and other receivables 18 811 818
Other short-term receivables 18 92 78

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 18 104 131
Current leasing receivables 19 – 0
Derivative instruments 22 – 5
Cash and cash equivalents 19 350 413
Total current assets 2,245 2,262
TOTAL ASSETS 6,494 6,385

MSEK Note Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

1, 2, 3, 26, 27, 28, 30

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital 1 1
Other contributed equity 646 727
Reserves 125 70
Retained earnings 1,180 1,077
Capital and reserves attributable to owners 1,951 1,875
Non-controlling interests 0 1
Total equity 20 1,951 1,876

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 21, 22 1,884 1,863
Non-current leasing liabilities 21, 22 367 401
Derivative instruments 21, 22 5 15
Provisions for pensions 23 3 8
Other non-current provisions 24 9 7
Deferred tax liabilities 10 178 166
Other non-current liabilities 22 65 64
Total non-current liabilities 2,511 2,524

Current liabilities 
Current leasing liabilities 21, 22, 25 68 73
Derivative instruments 21, 22 5 –
Trade payables 25 1,291 1,163
Tax payables 10 55 29
Other current liabilities 22, 25 179 342
Accrued expenses and prepaid income 22, 25 433 378
Total current liabilities 2,031 1,985
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,494 6,385
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Equity attributable to the owners of the Parent Company

MSEK Note
Share 

 capital 

Other  
contributed  

equity 
Hedge  

reserve 
Translation  

reserve 
Retained  
earnings 

Equity attributable 
to the owners of the 

Parent Company 

Non- 
controlling  

interests
Total  

equity

20

Closing balance Dec 31, 2019 1 727 –15 181 845 1,738 3 1,741
Opening balance Jan 1, 2020 1 727 –15 181 845 1,738 3 1,741

Income for the year 207 207 1 208
Actuarial gains and losses on pension plans 12 12 12
Cash flow hedges 6 6 6
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations –116 –116 –116
Net gain on hedge of net investments in foreign operations 16 16 16
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income –1 –3 –4 –4
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5 –100 217 122 1 123
Dividend – –2 –2
Long term incentive programs 15 15 15
Transactions with owners – 15 15 –2 13
Other changes
Closing balance Dec 31, 2020 1 727 –10 81 1,077 1,875 1 1,876

Opening balance Jan 1, 2021 1 727 –10 81 1,077 1,875 1 1,876

Income for the year 104 104 –1 103
Actuarial gains and losses on pension plans 42 42 42
Cash flow hedges –1 –1 –1
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 70 70 70
Net gain on hedge of net investments in foreign operations –14 –14 –14
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 0 –9 –8 –8
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax –1 56 137 193 –1 192
Dividend –81 –81 0 –81
Long term incentive programs –3 –3 –3
Repurchase of own shares –32 –32 –32
Transactions with owners –81 –35 –116 0 –116
Closing balance Dec 31, 2021 1 646 –11 137 1,180 1,951 0 1,951
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

MSEK Note 2021 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income 222 351
Adjustment for non-cash items 354 424
Paidfinanceitems,net 28:1 –69 –76
Paid current income tax –56 –41
Cash flows from operating activities  
before changes in operating capital 451 658

Changes in inventories and biological assets –60 –16
Changes in operating receivables 64 13
Changes in operating payables 158 146
Changes in working capital 162 143

Cash flows from operating activities 613 801

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Business combinations 28:2 –171 –104
Investment in right-of-use assets –1 –2
Investment in property, plant and equipment –306 –355
Cash flows used in investing activities 478 –461

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
New loans 28:4 – 60
Repayment of loans 28:4 –31 –55
Payments for amortisation of leasing liabilities 28:4 –84 –82
Paid dividend –81 –
Repurchase of own shares –32 –
Other 29 –25
Cash flow in financing activities –199 –102

Cash flows for the year –63 238

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 413 194
Currency effect in cash and cash equivalents 1 –19
Cash flows for the period –63 238
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 28:3 350 413
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Parent Company financial statements
The Parent Company Scandi Standard AB (Publ) owns shares in the subsidiaries in which operations 
areconducted.TheseoperationsareshowninthesectionthatdescribestheGroup.Nooperationsare
conductedintheParentCompanyandtherearenoemployees.

Parent Company income statement

MSEK Note 2021 2020

Net sales – –
Operating expenses 29 0 0
Operating income 0 0

Finance net 9 29
Income after finance net 9 29

Group contribution 2 –4
Tax on income for the year – –
Income for the year 10 25

Parent Company statement of comprehensive income

MSEK Note 2021 2020

Income for the year 10 25
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax – –
Total comprehensive income for the year 10 25

Parent Company statement of financial position

MSEK Note Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

29, 32

ASSETS
Non-current assets 
Investments in subsidiaries 31 938 533
Receivables from Group entities 32 – 405
Total non-current assets 938 938

Current assets
Receivables from Group entities 12 27
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0
Total current assets 12 27
TOTAL ASSETS 950 965

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Restricted equity 
Share capital 1 1
Non-restricted equity 
Share premium 645 727
Retained earnings –27 –20
Income for the year 10 25
Total equity 629 732

Current liabilities 
Tax payables 0 0
Liabilities to Group entities 32 320 233
Accrued expenses and prepaid income – 0
Total current liabilities 320 233
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 950 965
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Parent Company statement of changes in equity

MSEK Note
Share 

 capital
Share  premium 

account 
Retained  
earnings

Total  
equity 

20

Equity, Jan 1, 2020 1 727 –20 707
Income for the year 25 25
Dividend – –
Equity, Dec 31, 2020 1 727 5 732

Equity, Jan 1, 2021 1 727 5 732

Income for the year 10 10
Dividend –81 –81
Repurchase own shares –32 –32
Equity, Dec 31, 2021 1 645 –17 629

Parent Company statement of cash flows

 
MSEK 2021 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income 0 0
Paidfinanceitemsnet 27 26
Paid current income tax – –
Cash flows from operating activities  
before changes in operating capital 27 26
Changes in operating receivables –
Changes in operating payables 91 –12
Cash flows from operating activities 117 13

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Lending to subsidiaries – –
Paid dividend –81 –
Repurchase own shares –32 –
Paid group contribution –4 –14
Cash flows from financing activities –117 –14
Cash flows for the year 0 0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Note 1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in preparing this annual 
reportaresummarizedinthisnote.Thesamepoliciesarenormally
appliedforboththeParentCompanyandtheGroup.Parent
 Company policies that differ from those of the Group are 
describedunderseparateheadings.

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF STATEMENTS 
ScandiStandard’sconsolidatedfinancialstatementshavebeen
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU, and the Annual Accounts 
Act.IFRSincludesInternationalAccountingStandards(IAS)and
interpretations of standards from IFRS Interpretations Committee 
(IFRSIC).InadditiontotheAnnualAccountsActandIFRS,the
Swedish Financial Reporting Board’s recommendation RFR 1, 
SupplementaryAccountingRulesforGroups,hasalsobeenapplied.

TheParentCompany’sannualfinancialstatementshavebeen
prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and the 
Swedish Financial Reporting Board’s recommendation RFR 2, 
Accountingforlegalentities.

Scandi Standard applies the cost method for measuring assets 
and liabilities, except for derivative instruments and the category 
‘financialassetsandliabilitiesmeasuredatfairvaluethroughthe
income statement’ and biological assets that are measured at fair 
valuelesscostofsalesaccordingtoIAS41.Thesefinancialassets
andliabilitiesarenotmeasuredatfairvalueintheParentCompany.
Non-current assets and non-current liabilities essentially consist 
only of amounts expected to be recovered or paid after more than 
twelvemonthsreckonedfromtheclosingdate.Currentassetsand
current liabilities essentially consist only of amounts that are 
expectedtobe recoveredorpaidwithintwelvemonthsreckoned
fromtheclosingdate.

Sometimes, the total amount in tables and statements do 
not addupduetoroundingdifferences.Thepurposeisthateach
sub-line equals its source of origin and therefore rounding 
differencescanoccur.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that have been 
adopted by the EU entered into force in 2020
Changes to the accounting policies 
No standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 
January 2021, have been implemented that have had any material 
impactontheGroupsortheParentCompany’sfinancial
statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been 
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting 
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group or the 
parentcompany.Thesestandardsarenotexpectedtohavea
materialimpactontheGroup’sortheParentCompany’sfinancial
statementsinthecurrentorfuturereportingperiods.

ASSUMPTIONS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
Toensurepreparationofthefinancialstatementsinaccordance
with IFRS, assumptions and estimates must be made which affect 
recognised assets and liabilities and income and expenses, as well 
asotherinformationdisclosed.Theactualoutcomemaydiffer
fromtheseestimatesandassumptions.Theareasinwhich
assumptions and accounting estimates have the greatest impact 
oncarryingamountsaredescribedinmoredetailinNote2.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
TheGroup’sfinancialstatementscomprisethefinancial
 statements for the Parent Company and all Group entities in 
accordancewiththedefinitionsbelow.

Parent company
The Parent Company recognises all investments in Group entities 
at cost, adjusted where applicable by accumulated impairment 
losses.

Subsidiaries 
Subsidiariesareallentitiesoverwhichthecompanyhascontrol.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has 
the rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
theentity.Subsidiariesarefullyconsolidatedfromthedateon
whichcontrolistransferredtotheGroup.Theyaredeconsolidated
fromthedatethatcontrolceases.

Theconsolidatedfinancialstatementsarepreparedaccording
tothepurchasemethod.Thecostofaninvestmentinasubsidiary
is the cash amount and the fair value of any non-cash considera-
tionpaidfortheinvestment.Thevalueoftheacquirednetasset,
the equity in the company, is determined by measuring acquired 
assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities at their fair value on 
thedateofacquisition.ThosefairvaluesconstitutetheGroup’s
cost.Ifthecostofaninvestmentinasubsidiaryexceedsthefair
valueoftheacquiredcompany’sidentifiablenetassets,the
differenceisrecognisedasconsolidatedGoodwill.

Whether a minority’s share of Goodwill should be measured 
andincludedasanassetisdeterminedforeachacquisition.Ifthe
costislessthanthefinalfairvalueofthenetassetsthedifference
isrecogniseddirectlyintheincomestatement.Acquisition-related
costsarerecognisedintheincomestatementastheyarise.

All intra-Group transactions, including receivables and 
 liabilities, income and expenses as well as unrealized earnings, 
are eliminatedintheirentirety.

Associates 
Associates are companies over which Scandi Standard has a 
significant,butnotcontrolling,influence.Thisisnormallythecase
when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting 
rights.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity 
methodofaccountingandareinitiallyrecognisedatcost.
Acquired assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as 

AmountsinMSEKunlessotherwisestated.
TheBoardofDirectorsofScandiStandardAB(publ)isdomiciledinStockholm,Sweden.
TheaddressofthemainofficeisStrandbergsgatan55.Thecorporateidentitynumberis556921-0627.
TheGroup’soperationsaredescribedintheBoardofDirectors’reportandinNote3,Segmentreporting.
TheGroup’sandParentCompany’sfinancialstatementsfor2021willbepresentedforadoptionbytheAGM,onMay4,2022.
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for subsidiaries and the carrying amount includes any Goodwill 
andotherGroupadjustments.TheGroup’sshareoftheassoci-
ate’s income after tax arising after the acquisition, adjusted for any 
depreciation/reversalsoftheconsolidatedvalue,isrecognisedon
a separate line in the income statement and is included in operat-
ingincome.Theshareofincomeiscalculatedonthebasisof
ScandiStandard’sshareofequityintheassociate.Theequity
method means that the consolidated carrying amount of invest-
ments in associates correspond to the Group’s share of the equity 
ofassociatesplustheresidualvalueoffairvalueadjustments.

Unrealized gains and losses that do not involve an impairment 
loss are eliminated in proportion to the Group’s investment 
in the associate.

Translation of foreign Group entities 
Statementsoffinancialpositionandincomestatementsforall
Group entities whose functional currency is not the presentation 
currency are translated into the Group’s presentation currency 
using the following procedures:
•  Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate on each 
reportingdaterecognisedinthestatementoffinancialposition.

•  Revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate for 
each year recognised in the income statement and statement of 
comprehensiveincome.

•  All translation differences that arise are recognised as a separate 
item under other comprehensive income in the statement of 
comprehensiveincome.

In cases where net investments in foreign operations are hedged 
withfinancialinstrumentstheforeignexchangedifferences
 arising on translation of these instruments are also recognised in 
thestatementofcomprehensiveincome.Whenaforeignopera-
tion is disposed of, the cumulative translation differences and 
exchangedifferencesforanyfinancialinstrumentsheldfor
 hedging the net investment in the company are recognised as 
part ofthegainorlossondisposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition 
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 
entity and are translated according to the same principles as 
the entity.

Foreign currency transactions and balance sheet items 
The various entities within the Group present their reports in the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which they 
operate(thefunctionalcurrency).

TheconsolidatedfinancialstatementsarepreparedinSwedish
kronor (SEK), which is the Parent Company’s functional and 
presentationcurrency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional 
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the trans action 
date.Foreigncurrencyreceivablesandliabilitiesareremeasured
atclosingdateratesattheendofeachreportingperiod.Exchange
differences arising on such remeasurement, and upon payment of 
thetransaction,arerecognisedintheincomestatement.However,
exchange differences arising on remeasurement of items that are 
hedging transactions, and that qualify for hedge accounting, are 
recognisedinothercomprehensiveincome.Gainsandlosseson
operating receivables and liabilities are netted and reported within 
operatingincome.Gainsandlossesonborrowingsandfinancial
investmentsarerecognisedasfinancialitems.

Exchange differences on receivables which represent an 
extended investment in subsidiaries are recognised in other com-
prehensive income in the same way as translation differences 
relatingtoinvestmentsinforeignsubsidiaries.

The Group’s main currencies in addition to SEK, 2021

SEK Average rate Closing rate

DKK 1.3641 1.3753
NOK 0.9980 1.0254
EUR 10.1449 10.2269

SEGMENT REPORTING 
Recognised operating segments are consistent with the internal 
reporting submitted to the chief operating decision maker, who is 
the person that allocates resources and evaluates the results of 
theoperatingsegments.AtScandiStandard,thisroleisassumed
by the Managing Director & CEO, who, on behalf of the Board, 
takes chargeofday-to-daymanagementandgovernance.

The business segments are consistent with the Group’s opera-
tional structure in which activities are divided into the segments 
Ready-to-cookandReady-to-eat.Operationsnotincludedin the
segmentsReady-to-cookand-Readya Regionandcorporate
functionsarerecognisedasOther.A furtherdescriptionofthe
segmentsisprovidedin Note 3.

The segments are responsible for their operating income and 
the assets and liabilities used in their own operations, the operat-
ingcapital.Financialitemsandtaxesdonotfallwithintheseg-
ment’sresponsibility;thesearerecognisedcentrallyfortheGroup.
The same accounting policies are used for the segments as for the 
Group,apartfromfinancialinstruments(IFRS9onlyatGroup
level).

Transactions between segments and other operations are 
carriedoutoncommercialterms.

REVENUE 
Net sales
Revenue from the sale of goods for the main businesses that 
comprise the sale of products is recognised when the buyer 
receivescontroloveraproduct.Controlisobtainedwhenthe
buyer can control the use of the asset and receive all future 
benefit fromit.

Every promise to transfer an asset to a customer distinct from 
other commitments in a contract constitutes a performance 
commitment.Eachdistinctperformancecommitmentisrecog-
nisedseparately.Acommitmentisfulfilledwhenthecustomer
receivescontroloftheasset.TheGroupassessthatthispointin
time mainly occurs upon delivery to the customer in accordance 
withcurrentdeliverytermsincontractsenteredinto.

Revenue is recognised at transaction price, which is the com-
pensation the Group expects to receive in exchange for the trans-
ferofgoodsandservices.Whendeterminingthetransactionprice,
any discounts, but also any commitments regarding goods that 
thecustomerfailstosellfurther,aregivenprimaryconsideration.
The transaction price is not adjusted for the customer’s credit risk, 
but a possible impairment of a remuneration is made according to 
IFRS 9 and the credit loss is recognized as an impairment loss in 
theincomestatement.Paymentismadeonthebasisofagreed
payment terms in contracts entered into, which normally takes 
placeatatimethatoccursafterdeliveryhastakenplace.

Netsalesincludeinvoicedsalesformainactivities.Mostofthe
Group’srevenuecomesfromthesaleofmanufacturedgoods.
Revenue is recognised excluding VAT because the Group does not 
collectthetaxonitsownaccountbutactsasanagentforthestate.

Other operating revenue 
As other operating revenue, income from activities outside the 
company’smainbusinessisreported.Thismainlyconsistof
rentalincome,insurancepaymentsandprofitonsalesoftangible
fixedassets.Otheroperatingrevenueincludesforeignexchange
gains on operating receivables and liabilities, which arise on 
translationattheclosingdayrateandprofitonderivativesthat
arenothedged.Inaddition,otherincomeandprofitsarereported
fromactivitiesoutsidethecompany’smainbusiness.

BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowing costs attributable to investments in assets that take 
at least12monthstocomplete,andforwhichtheinvestment
amountisatleastMSEK 100,arecapitalizedaspartoftheinvest-
mentamount.Otherborrowingcostsareexpensedintheperiodin
whichtheyareincurred.

Note1Accountingpoliciescont.
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TAX
TheGroup’staxexpenseconsistsofcurrenttaxanddeferredtax.
Taxes are recognised in the income statement, except when the 
underlying transaction is recognised in other comprehensive 
income (OCI), in which case the related tax effect is also recog-
nisedinOCI.Currenttaxisthetaxpayableorreceivableforthe
currentyear.Currenttaxalsoincludesadjustmentstocurrenttax
attributabletopriorperiods.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability 
method on all temporary differences arising between the tax base 
ofassetsandliabilitiesandtheircarryingamount.Deferredtaxis
measured at the nominal amount and is calculated by applying the 
tax rates and regulations that have been enacted or substantively 
enactedbythereportingdate.Deferredtaxesrelatingtotempo-
rary differences attributable to investments in subsidiaries and 
associates are not recognised, as, in each case, Scandi Standard 
is abletocontrolthedatefortheirreversalanditisnotconsidered
probablethatanysuchreversalwilloccurinthenearfuture.

Deferred tax assets relating to deductible temporary differ-
ences and loss carryforwards are recognised only to the extent 
that it is considered probable that these will result in lower tax 
paymentsinthefuture.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when 
they are attributable to the same tax authority and the companies 
in question have a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assetsagainstcurrenttaxationliabilities.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Anintangibleassetisrecognisedwhentheassetisidentifiable,
the Groupcontrolstheasset,anditisexpectedtoyieldfuture
economicbenefits.IntangibleassetssuchasGoodwill,trade-
marksandcustomerandsupplierrelationshipsareidentifiedand
measurednormallyinconnectionwithbusinesscombinations.
Expenditures on internally generated trademarks, customer 
 relationships and internally generated Goodwill are recognised in 
theincomestatementasanexpensewhentheyareincurred.

Goodwill  
Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acquisition exceeds 
the fair value of the net assets acquired by the Group in a business 
combination.ThevalueoftheGoodwillisallocatedtotheoperat-
ingsegment’scashgeneratingunitswhichareexpectedtobenefit
fromtheacquisitionthatgaverisetothegoodwillitem.Goodwillis
recognised at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is 
testedannuallyforimpairment.Goodwillimpairmentisnot
reversed.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of associates is included in the 
carrying amount of the associate and is tested for impairment as 
partofthevalueofthetotalinvestmentintheassociate.

Net gains or losses on the disposal of Group entities include 
the remaining carrying amount of the Goodwill attributable to the 
divestedentity.

Trademarks 
The value of trademarks is recognised at cost less any accumu-
latedamortisationandimpairmentlosses.Trademarkswithan
indefiniteusefullifearenotamortisedbutaretestedannuallyfor
impairmentinthesamewayasGoodwill.Consumertrademarks
that Scandi Standard intends to continue using for the foreseeable 
futureandthathaveacostofatleastMSEK 10areclassifiedas
trademarkswithanindefiniteusefullife.

The relief from royalty method is used to measure trademarks 
identifiedinabusinesscombination.

As trademarks in segments Sweden, Denmark and Norway 
haveindefiniteusefullife,noestimatedusefullifehasbeen
defined.TrademarksinsegmentIrelandhasanestimateduseful
lifeof20years.

Customer and supplier relationships
Intangible assets in the form of customer and supplier relation-
shipsareidentifiedinconnectionwithbusinesscombinations.The
value of customer relationships is calculated using the multi-period 
excess earning method, together with any other relevant informa-
tion, and is recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
impairmentlosses.

At present, existing customer relationships are considered to 
have a total useful life of 8, 10 or 20 years and existing supplier 
relationshipsausefullifeof5or10years.

Research and development 
NoresearchisconductedwithintheGroup.Expenditureondevel-
opment is recognised as an intangible asset only if it is technically 
andfinanciallyfeasibletocompletetheasset,itisexpectedto
providefutureeconomicbenefits,thecostoftheassetcanbe
measuredreliably,andthedevelopmentissubstantial.Currently,
this means that all expenditure on the development of commercial 
productsandsimilarproductsisexpensedasincurred.Expendi-
tureondevelopmentofbusiness-relatedIS/IT-systemsiscapital-
ized if the general preconditions according to the above are met 
andthetotalexpenditureisestimatedtoexceedMSEK 3.Invest-
mentsinconfigurationandcustomisationcostsincloudcom-
puting arrangements are recognised as an expense in line with 
IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) published agenda 

decisioninApril2021onconfigurationorcustomisationcostsin
cloudcomputingarrangements.Asaconsequence,certaincon-
figurationandcustomisationcostsincloudcomputingarrange-
ments that arises in 2022 and later will not meet the requirements 
tobereportedasintangibleassets.Suchcostswillaccordinglybe
recognised as an expense by the Group when it receives the con-
figurationorcustomisationservices

Capitalized expenditure is amortised on a straight-line basis 
overtheestimatedusefullifeof5to10years.

Impairment losses
Intangibleassetswithanindefiniteusefullifearenotamortised
but are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if there 
isanindicationofimpairment.Thecarryingamountsofassets
thatareamortisedareregularlytested.Attheendofeachreport-
ing period, an assessment is made as to whether there is any 
indication that the assets are impaired and need to be written 
down.Therecoverableamountisestimatedfortheseassetsand
forassetswithindefiniteusefullife.Therecoverableamountisthe
higherofanasset’sfairvaluelesscoststosellanditsvalueinuse.
An impairment loss is recognised if the recoverable amount is less 
thanthecarryingamount.Apreviouslyrecognisedimpairment
loss is reversed if the reasons for the earlier impairment no longer 
exist.However,animpairmentlossisreversedonlytotheextent
that it does not increase the carrying amount of an asset above 
the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
lossbeenrecognisedinprioryears.ImpairmentofGoodwillis
neverreversed.

For an asset that depends on other assets generating cash 
flows, the value in use of the smallest cash-generating unit to 
whichtheassetbelongsisestimated.Goodwillisalwaysallocated
tothecash-generatingunitsthatbenefitfromtheacquisitionthat
generatedtheGoodwill.

An asset’s value in use is the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows that are expected from using the asset and its 
estimatedresidualvalueattheendofitsusefullife.Whencalculat-
ing the value in use, future cash flows are discounted at an interest 
rate before tax that takes into account a market assessment of 
risk-freeinterestratesandriskinvolvedwiththespecificasset.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Items of property, plant and equipment are recognised at cost less 
accumulateddepreciationandanyaccumulatedimpairment.Cost
includes expenditure that can be directly attributed to the acquisi-
tion of the asset, including the effect of cash flow hedges relating 
toinvestmentpurchasesinforeigncurrencies.Start-upand
pre-production costs that are necessary for bringing the asset to 

Note1Accountingpoliciescont.
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itspredeterminedconditionareincludedinthecost.Formajor
investments, where the total investment value is at least 
MSEK 100andtheinvestmentperiodlastsatleast12months,
interestduringconstructionisincludedinthecostoftheasset.

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment 
increases the cost only if it is probable that the Group will have 
futureeconomicbenefitfromthesubsequentexpenditure.All
other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in 
the periodinwhichitisincurred.

Depreciation policies for property, plant and equipment 
Landisassumedtohaveanindefiniteusefullifeandistherefore
notdepreciated.Depreciationofotherproperty,plantandequip-
mentisbasedoncostlessestimatedresidualvalue.Depreciation
isstraight-lineovertheasset’sestimatedusefullife.Eachcom-
ponent of a larger item of property, plant and equipment with a 
costthatissignificantinrelationtotheasset’stotalcostandwith
ausefullifesignificantlydifferentfromtherestoftheasset,is
depreciatedseparately.Theassets’residualvaluesandusefullife
aretestedatleastannuallyandadjustedasnecessary.

The following depreciation schedules are applied: 
Buildings 25–30 years 
Propertyfixtures 10–25years
Plant and machinery  5–20 years 
Equipment, tools  5–15 years 
Vehicles 5–10 years 
Officeequipment 5–10years

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 
Allleasesarerecognisedinthefinancialpositionstatementand
are,classifiedasright-of-useassetsandleasingliabilities.Atthe
start of the lease, a right-of-use asset (the right to use a lease 
object)andafinancialliabilitytopayrentsarerecognized.Excep-
tionsaccordingtothestandard’ssimplificationrules,whichthe
Group has selected, are short-term leases (shorter than one year) 
andlowvalueleases(belowKSEK50).Thesemustbedisclosed
separately.TheGroupdoesnotreportright-of-useassetsand
lease liabilities for short term agreements and leased assets with 
alowunderlyingvalue.Expensesfortheseleasesarerecognised
over the lease period and the amounts are disclosed separately in 
thefinancialstatements,formoreinformationseeNote13.

When a contract is found to contain a lease, the right-of-use asset 
is initially measured at the value of the leasing liability adjusted for 
any lease payments made before or on the initial date of the lease 
with the addition of any direct costs and the estimated cost of 
restoringtheunderlyingasset.

The lease liability is initially estimated to the present value of 
future lease payments, discounted by the implicit interest rate of 
theagreement,orifdifficulttoidentify,themarginalloanrateof
theGroup.Ingeneral,themarginalloanrateisused.Interestcosts
aredisclosedseparately.Theleasingliabilityincludesthepresent
value of the following lease payments:
• Fixed fees,
•  Variable fees that are dependent on an index or price, initially 

measured by using an index or price at the start date,
• Amounts expected to be paid for residual value guarantees,
•  The strike price for an option to buy the asset if the lessee is 

reasonably certain to exercise the option, and
•  Penalties that are paid upon cancellation, if the lease period 
indicatesthatthelesseeplanstocancelthelease.

When the lease period is determined, the company uses avail able 
information impacting the incentive to utilize an extension option, 
ortonotusetheoptiontocancelthelease.Extensionoptionsare
only included in the lease period if the lessee is reasonably certain 
that the option will be exercised, and periods included in an option 
to cancel are only included in the lease period if the lessee is 
reasonablycertaintonotusetheoption.

Revaluation of leasing liabilities is done when changes in future 
lease payments are caused by changes in an index or price or if 
the Groupchangesitsestimateregardingbuy-out,extensionor
cancellationoftheleaseagreement.Thevalueoftheright-of-use
assetisalsochangedwiththesameamount.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shortest of the useful life of the assets and the term of the 
lease.Theright-of-useassetisadjustedforrevaluationofthe
leaseliabilityandanywritedowns.Depreciationandimpairments
aredisclosedseparately.

Revenues from any sub-lease of assets are disclosed separately, 
seeNote13.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE  
AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
ScandiStandardonlyreclassifiesassetsasheldforsaleiftheir
valueissubstantial.ThecurrentthresholdisMSEK 5.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 
Biological assets are measured and recognised at fair value less 
costofsalesinaccordancewithIAS41.ScandiStandardhas
biological assets in the form of broiler parent stock within the 
operationsofrearingday-oldchicksinSweden.Thelifespanof
the parentstockisapproximatelyoneyear,andthelifespanofthe
broilersisabout30days.Theassetsofbroilerparentstockare
measuredatfairvaluelesscostofsales.

The stock has been measured using cash flow projections 
from expected sales of day-old chicks and the direct and indirect 
costsofanimalhusbandry.Forcosts,estimateshavebeenmade
basedonpastexperience.Thereisanobservablemarketpricefor
the day-old chicks and for number of chicks produced, the grower 
normsforthevarietykepthavebeenused.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are measured, according to IAS 2, at the lower of cost 
andnetrealizablevalueatthereportingdate.Thecostisesti-
matedbyapplyingtheFIFO(firstin/firstout)methodorweighted
averageprices.Thecostofself-producedgoodsincludesraw
materials, direct salaries, other direct costs and production-related 
overheadcosts,basedonnormalproductioncapacity.Borrowing
costsarenotincludedinthemeasurementofinventories.Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in operating activities 
less deductions for the estimated costs to complete and sell the 
product.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Financial  instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of 
financialpositionincludecashandcashequivalents,trade
 receivables, shares, loan receivables, other interest-bearing instru-
ments,tradepayables,borrowingsandderivativeinstruments.
Derivativeinstrumentsarerecognisedinthestatementoffinancial
positionwhentheagreementsaremade.Otherfinancialassets
andfinancialliabilitiesarerecognisedinthestatementoffinancial
positiononthesettlementdate.Afinancialassetisderecognised
onthesettlementdateorwhenitexpires.Afinancialliabilityor
partofafinancialliabilityisderecognisedonthesettlementdate
orwhenit isextinguishedinanothermanner.

TheGroupclassifiesitsfinancialassetsinthefollowingcate-
gories; fair value through the income statement, fair value through 
comprehensiveincomeoramortizedcosts.Assetsheldforthe
purpose of collecting contractual cash flows and where these 

Note1Accountingpoliciescont.
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cash flows constitute principal amounts and interests, and have 
notbeenidentifiedasmeasuredatfairvalue,aremeasuredat
amortizedcost.Thebookedvalueoftheseassetsisadjusted
with expectedcreditlosses.Interestincomefromthesefinancial
assets is recognised using the effective interest method and is 
includedinfinancialincome.Financialassetsheldbothforthe
 purpose of collecting contractual cash flows and for sale, and 
where the assets’ cash flows constitute only capital amounts and 
interest,andhavenotbeenidentifiedasmeasuredatfairvalue,
are measuredatfairvaluethroughothercomprehensiveincome.
Interest income, write-downs and exchange rate differences are 
recognised at fair value in the income statement, while the other 
fairvaluechangesarerecognizedinothercomprehensiveincome.
Assets that do not meet the requirements for amortized cost or 
fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at 
fairvaluethroughtheincomestatement.Financialliabilitiesare
normallyrecognisedasamortisedcost.Additionalpurchaseprice
in connection with the acquisition of business and to be settled in 
cashisreportedatfairvaluethroughtheincomestatement.

The Group assesses the future expected credit losses related to 
assets recognised at amortized cost and assets recognised at fair 
valuethroughothercomprehensiveincome.TheGroupreportsa
creditreserveforsuchexpectedlossesateachreportingdate.For
accountsreceivable,theGroupappliesthesimplifiedapproachfor
creditreservei.e.thereservewillcorrespondtotheexpectedloss
overtheentirelifeofthereceivable.Toestimatetheexpectedcredit
losses, accounts receivable has been grouped based on credit 
propertiesandthenumberofdaysinrelationtomaturity.TheGroup
also uses forward-looking variables to assess the expected credit 
losses.Claimsthatarenotaccountsreceivablearedividedintothree
groups.Forthefirstgroup,expectedcreditriskisassessedbasedon
theriskofdefaultwithinthenext12months.Ifanassessmentis
madethatthecreditriskforareceivablehasincreasedsignificantly
sincethefirstaccountingdate,thereceivableistransferredtogroup
two, where the assessment of the expected credit risk is based on 
theriskofdefaultduringtheentireremainingtermofthereceivable.
If a claim is deemed to have failed, it is moved to group three, where 
anassessmentismadeoftheexpectedrecoverableamount.

Scandi Standard has updated the hedge documentation 
accordingtoIFRS9.Hedgesthatqualifyforhedgeaccounting
shall be deemed to be effective during the remaining term of the 
hedge.Sourcesofinefficiencymustbeidentified.Thehedgeditem
and hedging instrument must have an economic relationship, the 
hedging ratio must be in accordance with the company’s hedging 
strategy and credit risk must not be the dominant cause of the 
hedginginstrument’schangeinvalue.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting 
ScandiStandards’holdingsoffinancialderivativeinstruments
compriseinterestrateswapsandcurrencyforwardcontracts.
 Currency forward contracts are agreed in order to limit the effect 
onScandiStandards’profitandlossandfinancialposition,dueto
short-termchangesintheforeignexchangerates.Interestrate
swaps are agreed in order to prolong the interest period for the 
underlying liabilities and decrease the uncertainty of future 
interestexpenses.

Derivative instruments are recognised at fair value and the 
resultoftheremeasurementaffectstheincomestatement.In
case where the derivative does not qualify for hedge accounting 
and the insurance model is a cash flow hedge or hedge of net 
investments, the effective portion of the remeasurement effect is 
recognisedinothercomprehensiveincome.Hedgeaccounting
may be applied if certain criteria are met with regard to documenta-
tionofthehedgerelationshipandthehedgeeffectiveness.

Financial instruments that are hedging instruments hedge 
either an asset or a liability, a net investment in foreign operations 
orareahedgeofaforecasttransaction.

There are three different hedging relationships: cash flow 
hedges,hedgingofnetinvestmentsandfairvaluehedges.Scandi
 Standard currently only applies cash flow hedging and hedging of 
netinvestments.

Cash flow hedges 
Cash flow hedging is a hedge held to reduce the risk for an impact 
totheincomestatementfromchangesinfuturecashflows.The
future cash flows that are hedged must be deemed to have a high 
probabilitytooccur.Theportionofthehedginginstrument’s
change in value which is deemed to be effective is recognised via 
other comprehensive income as equity and any ineffective portion 
isrecognisedintheincomestatement.Whentheresultofthe
hedged item affects the income statement the result from the 
hedging instrument is transferred from other comprehensive 
incometotheincomestatement.

Scandi Standard applies cash flow hedging for currency risks 
in commercial purchases and sales as well as for interest rate 
risksinthedebtportfolio.

Hedging of net investments 
Hedging of net investments refers to hedges held to reduce the 
effect of changes in the value of a net investment in a foreign oper-
ationowingtoachangeinforeignexchangerates.ScandiStandard
hedges net investments in a foreign operation by borrowing in the 
subsidiariescurrency.Foreigncurrencygainsorlossesarising
from remeasurement of the fair value of the instruments used for 

these hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulatedinequity.Theresultisreclassifiedfromequitytothe
incomestatementupondisposaloftheforeignoperation.

Parent Company
IntheParentCompany,financialinstrumentsarerecognisedusing
thecostmethod.TheParentCompanyappliestherulesinRFR2
andthusnotIFRS9.Astheinterest-bearingassetsandliabilities
of the Parent Company are consistent in all material respects with 
those of the Group, no special disclosures are provided for the 
ParentCompany.

Determination of fair value 
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated based on 
current forward rates at the reporting date, while interest rate swaps 
arerecognisedusingestimatesoffuturediscountedcashflows.

Forfinancialliabilities,thefairvalueisestimatedthrough
discounting future cash flow of relevant market interest rate taking 
intoaccountScandiStandard’screditrisk.

Forfinancialassetsandliabilitieswithshortmaturities,below
threemonths,the fair valueisestimatedatcostadjustedforany
impairment.

PROVISIONS 
Provisions are recognised, according to IAS 37, when Scandi 
Standard has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of 
resourceswillberequiredtosettletheobligation.Theamountof
the provision recognised is the best estimate of the expenditure 
requiredtosettletheobligationatthereportingdate.Forlong-
term material amounts, provisions are measured at the present 
value of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking 
intoaccountthetimevalueofmoney.Provisionsforrestructuring
measures are made when a detailed, formal plan for measures is 
in place and well-founded expectations have been created for 
thosewhowillbeaffectedbythemeasures.Noprovisionsare
madeforfutureoperatinglosses.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Pensions 
EmployeebenefitsarerecognisedaccordingtoIAS19.Scandi
Standardhasbothdefinedcontributionanddefinedbenefit
pensionplans,mostofwhicharefunded.

Withdefinedcontributionplans,thecompanypaysfixed
 con tributions to a separate legal entity and has no obligation to 
payfurthercontributionsthereafter.Thecostsfortheseplansare
chargedtoconsolidatedprofitasthebenefitsareearned.

Note1Accountingpoliciescont.

Scandi Standard Annual Report 2021

Notes

73



Definedbenefitpensionplansdefineanamountofpensionbenefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, based on factors such 
assalary,yearsofserviceandage.TheGroup’scompaniesbear
theriskassociatedwithpayingoutpromisedbenefits.Planassets
infundedplanscanonlybeusedtopaybenefitsunderthepension
agreement.

Theliabilityrecognisedinthestatementoffinancialposition
consistsofthenetoftheestimatedpresentvalueofthedefined
benefitobligationandthefairvalueoftheplanassetsassociated
with the obligation at the reporting date, either in a pension fund or 
insomeotherarrangement.

Pensioncostsandpensionobligationsfordefinedbenefit
pension plans are calculated according to the projected unit credit 
method(PUC).Thismethodallocatesthecostsforpensionsas
the employees carry out services for the company that increase 
theirentitlementtofuturebenefits.Thecompany’sobligationis
calculatedannuallybyindependentactuaries.Theobligation
comprisesthepresentvalueoftheexpectedfuturepayments.
The discountratethatisusedcorrespondstotheinterestratefor
high-quality corporate bonds with a maturity that corresponds to 
theaveragetermfortheobligationsandthecurrency.Ifnosuch
bondsexistinthemarketagovernmentbondrateisused.Aninter-
est rate equivalent to the interest rates of high-quality mortgage 
bonds is used for Swedish plans, which represent the vast majority 
ofthedefinedbenefitplans.Thesebondsareconsideredequiva-
lenttocorporatebondsastheyhaveasufficientlydeepmarketto
beusedasthebasisforthediscountrate.

Actuarial gains and losses may arise in determining the pres-
entvalueofthedefinedbenefitobligationandfairvalueofplan
assets.Theseariseeitherwhentheactualoutcomedivergesfrom
the previously calculated assumption or the actuarial assumption 
changes.TheseactuarialgainsandlossesarerecognisedinOther
comprehensiveincome.

A special payroll tax is calculated on the difference between the 
pension obligation determined according to IAS 19 and the pension 
obligation determined according to the rules applied in the legal 
entity.Thecalculatedfuturepayrolltaxisincludedintherecognised
pensionliability.Thepresentvalueoftheprovisionisnotcalculated.
The change in the provision is recognised in other comprehensive 
incometotheextentthatitrelatestoactuarialgainsorlosses.

Termination benefits 
A provision for costs in connection with termination of personnel 
is recognised only if the company is obligated to end employment 
beforethenormalretirementdateorwhenbenefitsareprovided
asanincentivetoencouragevoluntarytermination.Estimated
terminationbenefitsarerecognisedasaprovisionwhenadetailed
planforthemeasuresispresented.

Long-term incentive programs
Scandi Standard have annual recurring long-term incentive pro-
grams (“LTIPs”) for key employees, which are intended to contrib-
utetothe companyandtheGroup’slong-termvaluegrowthand
increase shared interest in value growth between the employee 
andthecompany’sshareholders.

The programs are equity-settled, share based and imply that 
performance rights shall be allotted free of charge to the partici-
pantsinrelationtoafixedpercentageoftheirfixedsalary.

The compensation plans are accounted for in accordance with 
IFRS2,Sharebasepayments.Theaccountingcoststhatwillarise
inaccordancewithIFRS 2aredeterminedinconnectionwiththe
allotmentdateandareallocatedoverthevestingperiod(3years).

At the end of each reporting period, the company considers 
changesinanticipatednumberofvestedshares.Socialcharges
relatedtotheprogramarerecognisedasacash-settledinstrument.

Hedging of commitments according to LTIPs
No new shares will be issued due to LTIPs and in order to ensure 
the delivery of shares and for the purpose of hedging social secu-
ritychargesunderLTIPs,thecompanyacquiresownshares.

The repurchased shares reduce the Group’s equity and are 
consideredinthecalculationsofearningspershare(“EPS”).

Variable salary 
Provisions for variable salary are expensed on an ongoing basis in 
accordancewiththeeconomicsubstanceofcurrentagreements.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
Governmentgrantsarerecognisedinthestatementoffinancial
position and the income statement when there is reasonable 
assurance that any conditions attached to the grant will be com-
pliedwithandthegrantwillbereceived.Grantsarerecognisedin
the income statement on a systematic basis over the periods in 
which the Group recognises expenses for the related costs for 
which the grants are intended to compensate If the government 
grant or assistance is neither related to the acquisition of assets 
nortocompensationofcosts,itisrecognisedasotherincome.

GROUP CONTRIBUTIONS AND SHAREHOLDER 
 CONTRIBUTIONS 
Parent Company
The Swedish Financial Reporting Board has introduced rules for 
reporting Group contributions in its recommendation RFR 2, 
AccountingforlegalEntities.ScandiStandardappliesthealterna-
tive rule, which means that both Group contributions received, and 
Groupcontributionsmadearerecognisedasanappropriation.

The issuer capitalizes the shareholder contribution in shares 
andintereststotheextentthatimpairmentisnotrequired.The
recipientrecognisestheshareholdercontributiondirectlyinequity.

RELATED PARTIES 
By virtue of its control, the Parent Company has a related party 
relationshipwithitssubsidiariesandsub-subsidiaries.Byvirtueof
theirsignificantinfluence,theGroupandParentCompanyhavea
related party relationship with their associates, which include 
directlyandindirectlyownedcompanies.

Intra-Group purchases and sales of goods and services 
are conductedatmarketprices.

By virtue of their right to participate in the decisions concerning 
the Group’s strategies, members of the Group’s Operational Board 
havesignificantinfluenceovertheParentCompanyandGroupand
arethereforeconsideredtoberelatedparties.

Note1Accountingpoliciescont.
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Note1Accountingpoliciescont.

Note 2 Significant judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions

Preparationofannualfinancialstatementsinaccordancewith
IFRS in many cases requires management to make judgments 
and use of accounting estimates and assumptions in determining 
thecarryingamountsofassetsandliabilities.Theseestimatesare
based on historical experience and assumptions that are con-
sideredreasonableandrealisticinthecurrentcircumstances.
The actualoutcomemaydifferfromtheaccountingestimatesand
assumptions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are regularly 
reviewed.Theeffectofachangeinanaccountingestimateis
recognised in the period of the change, if the change affects that 
period only, or in the period of the change and future periods, if the 
changeaffectsboth.

A general description of the accounting policies where man-
agement’s accounting estimates and assumptions are expected 
tohaveamaterialeffectonScandiStandardGroup’sfinancial
positionandfinancialstatementsareprovidedbelow.Thecarrying
amounts at the reporting date can be found in the statement of 
financialpositionandassociatednotes.

Impairment of Goodwill and other assets 
Goodwillandotherintangibleassetswithindefiniteusefullifeare
tested for impairment annually or whenever there are indications 
of possible impairment – in situations such as a changed busi-
nessenvironment,adivestmentdecisionorclosureofoperations.
The Group’s Goodwill and other intangible assets amounted to 
MSEK 1,797(1,766)attheendoftheyear,whichcorrespondsto
28(28)percentoftheGroup’stotalassets.Otherassetsaretested
for impairment as soon as there is an indication that an asset’s 
recoverableamountislowerthanitscarryingamount.

In most cases, an asset’s value in use is estimated by reference 
to the present value of the future cash flows the Group expects to 
derivefromtheasset.Thecashflowprojectionisbasedon
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the 
economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of 
theassetandarebasedonthelatestfinancialplan.Animpairment
loss is recognised if the estimated value in use is lower than the 
carryingamount.

The discount rates used to calculate the present value of the 
expected future cash flows are estimated from the current weighted 
average cost of capital (WACC) established within the Group for the 
marketsinwhichthecash-generatingunitsareactiveatthetime.

Other estimates regarding expected future results and the dis-
count rates used can give different values of assets from those 
applied.ImpairmentisdescribedinmoredetailinNote6.

Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities 
Assessments are made to determine deferred tax assets and tax 
liabilities.Deferredtaxassetsarerecognisedasanassetwhenitis
considered likely that they can be utilized and offset against future 
taxableprofits.Otherassumptionsregardingtheoutcomeof
thesefuturetaxableprofits,aswellaschangesintaxratesand
rulescanresultinsignificantdifferencesinthemeasurementof
deferredtaxes.

More detailed information about the amounts can be found 
in Note 10.

Pensions 
Thevalueofpensionobligationsfordefinedbenefitpensionplans
is determined by using actuarial calculations based on assump-
tions about discount rates, future salary increases, inflation and 
demographics.Thediscountrate,whichisthemostcritical
assumption, is based on the market return on high-quality corpo-
ratebonds,namelymortgagebondswithlongmaturities.Therate
isextrapolatedtocorrespondtothepensionplan’sobligations.
A lowerdiscountrateincreasesthepresentvalueofthepension
obligation and pension cost, while a higher discount rate has the 
reverseeffect.Areductionofthediscountrateby0.25percentage
points would increase the pension obligation by MSEK 6 (7) while 
anincreasewouldreducetheobligationbyMSEK6(7).

More detailed information about the amounts can be found 
in Note 23.

Biological assets
The Group has biological assets in the form of broiler parent stock, 
intherearingofday-oldchicks.Theseassetsaremeasuredatfair
valuelesscostofsalesaccordingtoIAS41.Thevalueofthose
assetsisdependentonassumptions.Forbroilerparentstock,the
market price for day-old chicks as well as operational expenses for 
keepingthestockimpactsthevalueoftheassets.A1percent
change in the price of day-old chicks impacts the value of the assets 
byaboutMSEK 1(1).

Detailed information about the amounts and changes can be 
foundinNote16.
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Note 3 Segment reporting

INFORMATION ABOUT OPERATING SEGMENTS

Financial year, Jan 1–Dec 31  
MSEK

Ready-to-cook Ready-to-eat Other/Eliminations1) Total Group

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Total net sales 7,611 7,619 2,112 1,911 377 411 10,101 9,940 

Adjusted operating income 110 333 138 95 –35 –18 213 410 
Non-coparable items2) – –7 – – 9 –52 9 –59
Operating income 110 326 138 95 –26 –70 222 351 
Of which share of income in associates 2 2 2 2 
Finance income 2 0 
Finance expenses –83 –91 
Tax on income for the year –37 –52 
Income for the year 103 208 

Other disclosures
Assets 4,737 4,663 958 1,027 192 191 5,887 5,881 
Holding in associates 46 43 
Unallocated Assets 561 461 
TOTAL ASSETS 4,737 4,663 958 1,027 192 191 6,494 6,385 

Liabilities 1,363 1,142 374 417 920 1,087 2,658 2,646 
Unallocated liabilities 1,884 1,863 
Equity 1,951 1,876 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,363 1,142 374 417 920 1,087 6,494 6,385 

Net investments 284 306 13 29 9 20 306 355 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment –315 –290 –49 –47 –14 –14 –378 –350 
1)WhereofeliminationofgroupchargesintheyearofMSEK226(220).
2)ScandiStandardimplementedanewdefinitionfortreatmentofitemsaffectingcomparabilityinthefirstquarter2021whichimpliesastricterclassificationofsuchitems. 
Financialinformationfortheyear2020hasbeenrestatedrelatedtoitemsaffectingcomparabilityforthealternativeperformancemeasuresadjustedEBITDAandadjustedoperatingincome(adjustedEBIT).
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Note3Segmentreportingcont.

Scandi Standard’s business is operationally divided into 
segments Ready-to-cook, Ready-to-eat and Other
The Groups operational structure is a integrated matrix organiza-
tion,i.e.managersareheldresponsiblebothforproductsegments
andgeographies.AnintegralpartoftheCompanystrategyfor
continued growth and value creation is to share best practice, 
capitalizeonproductdevelopmentanddrivescaleefficiencies
acrosstheGroup.

The successful expansion of the Ready-to-eat business, which 
has grown from sales of MSEK 500 to BNSEK 2 since 2015, has 
accentuated the rationale to follow up Ready-to-cook and Ready-
to-eat separately, as they largely represent different skill sets and 
productionprocesses.In2020,ScandiStandardconducteda
comprehensive strategic review, which further strengthened the 
view that an increased focus on these two reportable segments 
will be a better way to identify, nurture and spread best practice 
to supportcontinuedgrowthandvaluecreation.Basedonthe
strategic review, Scandi Standard’s internal organization has been 
aligned, including internal reporting and decision-making pro-
cesses.Consequently,witheffectfrom1January2021,theseg-
ment reporting was updated to comprise the reportable segments 
Ready-to-cook and Ready-to-eat, as it best reflects how Scandi 
Standardprimarilymanagesandmonitorsitsoperations.

TheresponsibilityfortheGroup’sfinancialassetsandliabili-
ties, provisions for taxes, gains and losses on the re-measurement 
offinancialinstrumentsaccordingtoIFRS9andpensionobliga-
tions according to IAS 19 are dealt with by the corporate functions 
andarenotallocatedtothesegments.Allcapitalexpenditureon
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, apart from 
expendableequipment,isincludedinthesegments’investments.

Segment Ready-to-cook (RTC): is the Group’s largest segment 
and consists of products that are either chilled or frozen, that have 
notbeencooked.Theseincludewholebirds,cutsofmeat,
debonedandseasoned,ormarinatedproducts.Productsare
made available mainly via Retail and Foodservice to both domes-
ticandexportmarkets.ThesegmentcomprisesRTCprocessing
plantsinallfivecountries,thefeedbusinessinIreland,eggproduc-
tioninNorway,andthehatchingbusinessinSweden.Netsalesfor
thesegmentsconsistoftheexternalnetsales.

Note 4 Breakdown of revenue

MSEK 2021 2020

Net sales 
Sales of goods 10,101 9,940
Total 10,101 9,940

Other operating income 
Capital gains 1 0
Rental income 2 0
Government grants 0 0
Canteen sales 8 7
Insurance compensation 1 7
Other 6 7
Total 18 21

Government grants were received of MESEK 7 (20) and of these 
MSEK 0 (0) has been recognised as revenue and MSEK 7 (20) 
as a reductionofcost.Thegovernmentgrantisrelatedtothe
Covid-19 pandemic and refers to compensation for increased 
sickness-related absences through sick pay compensation and 
lowerpensionfees.

Segment Ready-to-eat (RTE): consists of products that have been 
cooked during processing and are ready to be consumed, either 
directlyorafterbeingheatedup.Productsrangefromgrilledand
pre-slicedchickenfilletswithdifferentseasoningtochickennug-
gets.SalesaremainlytoRetailandFoodservicesaleschannels,
andpartoftheproductionisexported.Thesegmentcomprises
RTE processing plants in Sweden, Denmark and Norway, com-
binedwiththird-partyproduction.Netsalesforthesegments
consistoftheexternalnetsales.Theoperationalresultincludes
theintegratedresultforthegroupwithoutinternalmargins.

Segment Other: consists of ingredients, which is surplus prod-
ucts mainly for non-human consumption, and mainly used for 
industrial production of animal feed and other applications, in line 
with Scandi Standard’s ambition is to utilize the animal entirely, as 
it reduces production waste to almost zero and contributes to a 
lowercarbonfootprint.NoindividualpartofOtherissignificant
enoughinsizetoconstituteitsownsegment.

Net sales (external sales) based on customer location

MSEK
  

2021
  

2020

Sweden 2,926 2,908
Norway 1,847 1,671
Ireland 1,768 1,862
Denmark 1,611 1,563
Finland 664 594
Germany 442 447
United Kingdom 189 228
Rest of Europe 592 503
Rest of the world 63 165
Total 10,101 9,940

During 2021 one of Scandi Standard’s customers accounted for
morethan10percentoftheGroup’stotalnetsales.Thenetsales
ofthecustomeraccountedforMSEK1,340(1,227).
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Note 5  Employees and employee benefits expenses

Average number of employees 2021
of which 

women 2020
of which 

women

Group 
Sweden 997 38% 922 37%
Denmark 911 39% 856 39%
Norway 312 62% 322 54%

Ireland 749 46% 937 47%
Finland 246 56% 183 46%
Total, Group1) 3,215 44% 3,220 43%

1)NoemployeesintheParentcompany.

Cost of personnel, MSEK 2021 2020

Salariesandbenefits,BoardofDirectorsandMDs 32 39
– of which variable salary 3 21
Salariesandbenefits,otheremployees 1,651 1,662
Social security expenses 220 226
Pension expenses1) 95 94
Other staff costs 50 62
Capitalised personnel expenses2) –5 –15
Total 2,041 2,067

1)MSEK 4(2)oftheGroup’spensioncostsrelatetoboardsandManagingDirectors.Therearenooutstandingpensionobligationsfortheseindividuals.
2)Capitalisedpersonnelexpensesofongoinginvestmentproject.

Gender representation in executive management
Group Parent Company

Female representation, % 2021 2020 2021 2020
Board of Directors 21 14 33 14
Other senior  executives 28 27 – –

Guidelines for remuneration to senior management
The AGM has passed a resolution on the guidelines for remunera-
tiontoseniormanagement.Intheseguidelines,theseniorman-
agement means the managing director of the company, the senior 
managers in the company and other group companies who, from 
time to time, report to the managing director or the CFO and who 
are also members of the senior management, as well as board 
members of the company that have entered into an employment or 
consultingagreementwithagroupcompany.

Salaries and other terms and conditions of employment shall be 
adequate to enable the company and the group to retain and recruit 
skilledseniormanagersatareasonablecost.Theremunerationto
theseniormanagersshallconsistoffixedsalary,variablesalary,
pensionandotherbenefits,anditshallbebasedontheprinciplesof
performance,competitivenessandfairness.

Principles for fixed salary 
Eachseniormanagershallbeofferedafixedsalaryinlinewith
market conditions and based on the manager’s responsibility, 
expertiseandperformance.

To the extent a board member performs work for the company, 
in addition to ordinary board work, a market-based consulting fee 
maybepaid.

Principles for variable salary 
All senior managers may, from time to time, be offered a variable 
salary(i.e.,cashbonuses).Thevariablesalaryshallbebasedona
setoffinancialandpersonalobjectivesdeterminedinadvance.
To whichextenttheobjectivesforawardingvariablesalaryhas
been satisfiedshallbedeterminedwhentherelevantmeasurement
periodoftheperformancecriteriahasended.Theremuneration
committee of the board of directors is responsible for the evaluation 
ofthevariablesalarytothemanagingdirectorandCEO.Themanag-
ing director and CEO is responsible for the evaluation of the variable 
salarytoothermembersoftheseniormanagement.Thevariable
salarymaynotamounttomorethan75percentofthefixedsalary
(inthiscontext,fixedsalarymeanscashsalaryearnedduringthe
year,excludingpension,benefitsandsimilar).

Principles for share-related incentive programs 
The general meeting may resolve on long-term incentive programs 
such as share and share price-related incentive programs for  certain 
keypersons.Suchincentiveprogramsshallbedesignedtopromote
the long-term value growth of the company and the group, sustain-
ability and alignment between the interests of the participating 
individualandthecompany’sshareholders.
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Principles for pensions, salary during periods of notice  
and severance pay 
Agreements regarding pensions shall, where applicable, be 
 premium based and designed in accordance with the level and 
practice applicable in the country in which the member of senior 
managementisemployed..Pensionpremiumsforpremium
definedpensionmaynotamounttomorethan25percentofthe
annualfixedsalaryunlessotherwiseappliespursuanttoapplicable
collectivebargainingagreements.

Fixed salary during notice periods and severance payment, 
including payments for any restrictions on competition, shall in 
aggregatenotexceedanamountequivalenttothefixedsalaryfor
twoyears.Thetotalseverancepaymentforallmembersofthe
senior management shall be limited to the current monthly salary for 
theremainingmonthsuptocurrentretirementageineachcountry.

Principles for deviations from the guidelines 
In 2021, the board has exercised its right to deviate from the guide-
lines in individual cases and for special reasons from the guide-
lines regarding the CEO’s maximum short-term variable remunera-
tion, which in 2022 may deviate from the applicable guidelines 
frompredeterminedpresentationgoals.Intheindividualcase,the
Board’s reason for deviation from the guidelines has been to be 
able to recruit the person whom the Board has deemed most 
suitableforitsposition.

The Board of directors may resolve to deviate from the guide-
lines if the board of directors, in an individual case, is of the opinion 
that there are special circumstances justifying a deviation and a 
deviation is necessary to serve the company’s long-term interests, 
includingitssustainability,ortoensurethecompany’sfinancial
viability.

Variable salary
Scandi Standard has a general program for variable salary that 
applies to senior management, local management teams and 
certainkeypersons.Targetsmaybequalitativeaswellasquanti-
tative.Decisionsaboutparticipantsandtargetsaremadeannually
byScandiStandard’sboardofdirectors.Variablesalaryisaccrued
forinlinewithexpectedpay-out.

Pension
Scandi Standard offers its employees occupational pensions 
unless otherwise regulated in local agreements or other regula-
tions.TheManagingDirectorandCEOofScandiStandardisenti-
tledtoadefinedcontributionpensionscheme,withapremiumof
15percentofthepensionablesalary.ScandiStandard’ssenior
management follows the guidelins for remuneration, which entails 
amaximumpremiumof25percentofpensionalblesalary.

Other employees
In Sweden,employeesarecoveredbydefinedbenefitpensionor
premium based pension through PRI Pensionstjänst AB or an 
alternativesolution.

In Denmark, the pension contribution corresponds to 12 or 
15 percentofthepensionablesalary.

In Norway, the pension contributions are based on individual 
definedcontributionpensionagreementswithcontributionsof
between3and23percentofthepensionablesalary.

In Ireland, the pension contribution corresponds to between  
9and20percentofthepensionablesalary.

In Finland, the pension contribution corresponds to between  
5and25percentofthepensionablesalary.

Termination and other benefits
Termination benefits/notice
The Managing Director and CEO has a notice period of six months 
for termination of employment at the company’s request and six 
monthsforterminationathisownrequest.Ifemploymentistermi-
natedatthecompany’srequest,terminationbenefitscorrespond-
ingto12months’severancepay.Theseverancepayisnotquali-
fiedforholidayandpensionpayandispaidwithone-sixthper
monthafterthenoticeperiodhasended.Otherseniormanagers
have notice periods of between 6–12 months for termination of 
employment at the company’s request and between 3–6 months for 
terminationattheirownrequest.Certainseniormanagershave
non-competitionclauseswithfinancialcompensationtobepaidto
the company if breached, corresponding to between 3–12 months 
remuneration.

Other benefits
Inadditiontofixedandvariablesalariesandpensions,Scandi
Standard offers occupational injury insurance and occupational 
group life insurance in accordance with local agreements and 
regulations.Inaddition,seniormanagersareentitledtoprivate
healthinsurance,telephoneandcarbenefits.Premiumsandother
costsrelatedtosuchbenefitsmaynotamounttomorethan
10 percentoftheannualfixedsalary.

Long term incentive program
LTIP 2018 was terminated during 2021 and led to that 245,227 
shares with a combined market value of MSEK 16 were allotted to 
theparticipantsintheprogram.Participantsintheprogramsare
seniormanagersandkeyemployees.

At the end of 2021 the following incentive programs are  ongoing, 
that have been accepted by the AGM the year they were started:
• LTIP 2020 for 33 participants, and originally a maximum of 
460,361sharescouldbeallotted.

• LTIP 2021 for 33 participants, and originally a maximum of 
432,648sharescouldbeallotted.

The Board of Directors have decided to propose to the AGM 2022 a 
long-term incentive program for 2022 (LTIP 2022) for senior execu-
tives and key employees, which is designed to promote the long-
term value growth of the company and the group and increase 
alignment between the interests of the participating individual and 
thecompany’sshareholders.LTIP2022retainscomponentsform
thelong-termincentiveplansadoptedin2019–2021.However,
the participants are required to invest in Scandi Standard shares in 
relationtoafixedpercentageoftheparticipantsfixedsalaryin
ordertoparticipateinLTIP2022.Eachsuchsharewillgivepartici-
pants one (1) Retention Share Right which is subject to continued 
employment and two (2) Performance Share Rights each of which 
are subject to the satisfaction of a performance requirements 
duringthetermoftheprogram.OneofthePerformanceShare
Rights are subject to an EPS CAGR requirement and the other 
Performance Share Right is subject to a new requirement based 
onannualrelativeTSR.Thevestingperiodisthreeyearsand
providedthatcertainconditionsarefulfilled,theparticipantscan
exercise their performance share rights through which they will be 
allottedsharesinthecompanyfreeofcharge.InorderforShare
Rights (both Retention Share Rights and Performance Share 
Rights) to entitle to allotment of ordinary shares, it shall be 
required that the participant (a) does not divest its Investment 
Shares during the Vesting Period and (b) has not given or is not 
given notice of termination of employment within the group during 
theVestingPeriod.

In order to increase the long term common interest between the 
participant and the company’s shareholders, a requirement for 
participation in LTIP 2022 must be that the participants undertake 
to retain all the allotted shares (except to cover payment of tax that 
arises in connection with the allotment of shares) for a period of 
twoyearsfromthedateoftheallotment.

Performance requirement
In addition to the vesting requirement set out above, allotment of 
ordinary shares for one of the Performance Share Rights shall be 
conditional upon the satisfaction of performance target 1 below 
(“Performance Share Right 1”) and allotment of ordinary shares for 
the second Performance Share Right shall be conditional upon the 
satisfaction of performance target 2 below (“Performance Share 
Right2”).

Target 1
The performance target is related to the total shareholder return 
(TSR) on the Scandi Standard ordinary share on Nasdaq Stock-

Note5Employeesandemployeebenefitsexpensescont.
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Note5Employeesandemployeebenefitsexpensescont.

Salaries and remuneration of  
senior management 2021, TSEK

Directors’ 
fees 

Fixed  
salary1)

Variable  
salary2) LTIP3) Pension1)

Other  
benefits5)

Total 
2021

Boardmembers,specifiedbelow 3,215 − − − − − 3,215

Managing Director and CEO  
(until June 3, 2021) Leif Bergvall Hansen − 12,198 − − 865 122 13,184
Interim Managing Director (from June, 2021) 
Otto Drakenberg − 2,768 − − 420 − 3,188
Group Management, other6) − 29,889 − 5,165 3,783 1,939 40,777
Total 3,215 44,856 − 5,165 5,068 2,061 60,365

Salaries and remuneration of  
senior management 2020, TSEK

Directors’ 
fees 

Fixed  
salary1)

Variable  
salary2) LTIP4) Pension1)

Other  
benefits5)

Total 
2020

Boardmembers,specifiedbelow 3,205 − − − − − 3,205
Managing Director and CEO  
Leif Bergvall Hansen − 5,435 3,522 4,702 812 133 14,604
Group Management, other6) − 20,451 9,015 8,098 3,098 1,438 42,099
Total 3,205 25,886 12,537 12,800 3,909 1,571 59,907

1)CertainmembersofGroupManagementareentitledtoexchangefixedsalary
forpensioncontributionwithintheframeworkofcurrenttaxlegislation. 
ThefixedsalaryforLeifBergvallHansenrelatestofixedsalaryincluding
terminationpay,severancepayandholidaypayaccordingtoagreement.

2)ThevariablesalaryisbasedontheGroup’sfinancialperformanceand
financialtargets.For2021thevariablesalaryisSEK0.

3)TheGroup’sexpense,referringtoLTIP2018–LTIP2021.
4)TheGroup’sexpense,referringtoLTIP2017–LTIP2020.

5)Mainlycar,phoneandhealthinsurancebenefits.
6)  Group Management other includes for 2021 a total of 13 individuals 
(previousyear10individuals).Thefiguresfor2021includeafixedsalaryfor
a total of 13 people, but for new people in Group management from the time 
periodwhentheytookuptheirposition.Duringtheyear,atotalof3people
left Group management who received salary and severance pay for the 
entireyear.During2021,3peoplehavebeenaddedtotheGroupManage-
ment(2peoplesinceJune2021and1personsinceNovember2021).

holm relative to the OMX Stockholm Mid Cap Index (the “Index”) 
duringacertainmeasurementperiodassetoutbelow.Ifthe
 relative TSR during the measurement period is equal to or lower 
than the Index, no Performance Share Right 1 shall entitle to the 
allotmentofordinaryshares.IftherelativeTSRduringthemeas-
urement period is higher than the Index plus 10 percent, all Perfor-
mance Share Rights 1 shall entitle to the allotment of ordinary 
shares.IftherelativeTSRduringthemeasurementperiodishigher
than the Index but lower than the Index plus 10 percent, the num-
ber of Performance Share Rights 1 that entitle to the allotment of 
ordinary shares shall be linear in relation to the allotments set out 
initemsa)andb)above.

Target 2
The performance target is related to the adjusted compound annual 
growth rate of earnings per share (“EPS CAGR”) and  measured 
duringacertainmeasurementperiod.Theminimumlevelofthe
performancetargetshallbeanEPSCAGRequalto45 percent.Ifthe
EPSCAGRis45percent,theparticipantsshallbe allottedordinary
sharesfor25percentoftheirPerformanceShareRights2.

The maximum level of the performance target shall be an 
EPS CAGRof52.5percent.IftheEPSCAGRequalsorexceeds
52.5percent,theparticipantsshallbeallottedordinarysharesfor
100 percent of their Performance Share Rights 2 (maximum allo-
cation).IftheEPSCAGRislessthan45percent,noPerformance
ShareRight2shallentitletoallotmentofordinaryshares.Where
the EPS CAGR is between the minimum and the maximum level, 
the number of Performance Share Rights 2 that entitle to allot-
mentofordinaryshareswillbecalculatedonalinearbasis.

Value and estimated costs for Long term incentive programs
The long term incentive (LTIP) programs are accounted for in 
accordancewithIFRS2,Sharebasedpayments.Thetotalcostfor
the programs is initially estimated as; number of shares to be 
allotted multiplied with the share price at program start and social 
charges.Theprogramsareexpensedlinearlyoverthevestingtime
(threeyears).

ThevestingperiodforLTIP2018expiresMay15,2021.EPS
CAGR for the period January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2020 was 
18.2percent,leadingtoallotmentsaccordingtothetermsforthe
program, corresponding to 100 percent of the performance share 
rightsandof245227shares.

ThevestingperiodforLTIP2019expiresMay15,2022.AsEPS
CAGR for the period January 1, 2019 – December 31, 2021 did not 
meet the conditions for the program, no allotment of shares under 
thisprogramwilltakeplace.

LTIP 2020 and LTIP 2021 are based on an EPS CAGR criterion, 
where EPS CAGR is calculated based on the Group’s quarterly 

reportswhichareadjustedfornon-comparableitemsandspecific
explanatoryitems.
AssumingfullfulfilmentoftheEPSrequirementandbasedon
participants who as of 31 December 2021 were still employed and 
have not been dismissed or resigned , LTIP 2020 and LTIP 2021 will 
result in allotments of 209,176 and 196,115 shares respectively in 
thecompany.Thevalueoftheperformancesharerightsamount
to MSEK 11,6 for LTIP 2020 and MSEK 12,3 for LTIP 2021, based 
onsharepricesofSEK53.80andSEK62.93.AsperDecember
2021, total accumulated accrued costs for LTIP 2020– LTIP 2021 
amountedtoMSEK9(25).

Social security charges are expected to amount in average to 
approximately9.2(21.7)percentofthemarketvalueoftheshares
allocateduponexerciseoftheperformancesharerights.Theaver-
age percentage of social charges is dependent on the mix of nation-
alitiesparticipatingintheprograms.Inordertoensurethedelivery
of shares and for purpose of hedging social charges because of the 
incentive programs, Scandi Standard AB (publ) repurchased 
520,000 own shares, whereof 245,227 shares were allotted to the 
participantsofLTIP2018during2021.Atyear-end,ScandiStandard
AB(publ)had733,726(458,953)sharesinowncustody.

Board of Directors’ Fees, SEK 2021 2020

Johan Bygge, chairman of the Board1) 935,000 −
Per Harkjaer, chairman of the Board2) − 760,000
Vincent Carton3) − 360,000
Øystein Engebretsen 465,000 465,000
Henrik Hjalmarsson4) 460,000 360,000
Cecilia Lannebo5) 435,000 −
Michael Parker 410,000 360,000
Karsten Slotte6) − 390,000
Heléne Vibbleus 510,000 510,000
Total 3,215,000 3,205,000

Board fees correspond to fees decided by the AGM and are 
regulatedbytheBoardtwiceayearinOctoberandApril.

1)  Chairman of the Board from 2021-05-08
2)  Chairman of the Board until 2021-05-07
3)  Board member until 2021-05-07
4)  Board member from 2020-05-15 
5)  Board member from 2021-05-08 
6)  Board member until 2021-05-07
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Note 6  Depreciation, amortisation and impairment  
of in tangible assets and property, plant, equip-
ment and rights-of-use assets

MSEK 2021 2020

Depreciation and amortisation 
Intangible assets 56 53
Land and buildings 34 35
Plant and machinery 160 140
Equipment,tools,fixturesandfittings 43 36
Rights-of-use assets, buildings and 
land 46 49
Rights-of-use assets, plant, machinery 
and other technical assets1) 38 38
Total 378 350

1)  Rights-of-use assets, plant, machinery and other technical assets includes 
equipment,tools,fixturesandfittings.

Impairment 
TheGrouptestsintangibleassetswithindefiniteusefullifefor
impairmentannually.TheseassetsincludeGoodwillandBrands
withindefiniteusefullives.Theintangibleassetsareallocatedto
thecashgeneratingunitsinwhichtheygeneratedcashflow.

The Group has updated its operational structure to an inte-
gratedmatrixorganization,i.e.managersareheldresponsibleboth
forproductsegmentsandgeographies.Anintegralpartofthe
Company strategy for continued growth and value creation is to 
share best practice, capitalize on product development and drive 
scaleefficienciesacrosstheGroup.

The successful expansion of the Ready-to-eat business, which 
has grown from sales of MSEK 500 to BNSEK 2 since 2015, has 
accentuated the rationale to follow up Ready-to-cook and Ready-
to-eat separately, as they largely represent different skill sets and 
productionprocesses.In2020,ScandiStandardconducteda
comprehensive strategic review, which further strengthened the 
view that an increased focus on these two reportable segments 
will beabetterwaytoidentify,nurtureandspreadbestpractice
to supportcontinuedgrowthandvaluecreation.Basedonthe
strategic review, Scandi Standard’s internal organization has been 
aligned, including internal reporting and decision-making pro-
cesses.Consequently,witheffectfrom1January2021,theseg-
ment reporting is updated to comprise the reportable segments 
Ready-to-cook and Ready-to-eat, as it best reflects how Scandi 
Standardprimarilymanagesandmonitorsitsoperations.Thecash
generating units are the Groups operating segments which com-
priseofReady-to-cookandReady-to-eat.

Cash flow expectations for the segments are based on business 
plansagreedbyGroupmanagementforthenextfiveyearsandon
2percentorganicgrowththereafter.Thecashflowsarediscounted
byacalculatedWACCbeforetaxat8.6(6,9–8.6)percentforthe
segments Ready-to-cook and Ready-to-eat based on the estimated 
returnrequirementforthesegments.

For the impairment testing at the end of 2021 all cash generat-
ingunitsareexpectedtoperforminlinewiththemarket.EBITDAis
expected to improve slightly over the forecasting period towards 
theGroup’smedium-termtargetof10percent.

The impairment test as of the end of the year shows that there 
is no need for impairment of the intangible assets in any of the 
cashgeneratingunits.

The assumptions included in the calculations are forward 
looking and as such are inherently uncertain and based on man-
agementassumptions.Toevaluatetheriskthatachangeinany
of theassumptionswouldhavedecreasedtheoutcomeofthe
impairmenttest,sensitivityanalyseshavebeenperformed.

The WACC used is based on long term variables and as such 
shouldbestableovertime.Nevertheless,returnrequirementscan
change and testing for this variable shows no impairment when 
increasingtheWACCthreepercentagepoints.

Cash flow expectations in the cash generating units are an 
importantvariableintheimpairmenttest.Thecashflowsusedare
based on management’s best estimate of the future cash flow in 
eachcashgeneratingunit.Thereisariskthatthesecashflowswill
belowerthanexpectedovertime,especiallyinthelongterm.Long
term assumptions are based on a growth rate below the expected 
marketgrowthtobeprudent.Thecashflowsforthecomingfive
years have greater impact on the value of the assets and are more 
importanttotest.

Segment Ready-to-cook has had a challenging 2021 where the 
operating income was negatively impacted by several different 
factorssuchasthebirdflu,significantpriceincreasesonseveral
input factors, a continued challenging price situation in export 
markets as well as consequences from the measures taken to 
addresstheproductionchallengesinSwedenandIreland.The
expectationisthatthemarginswillrecoveroverthecomingyears.
Based on management expectations, this improvement will be 
drivenprimarilybypricedevelopmentandoperationsefficiency.
Scandi Standard’s business model allows for fluctuations in input 
prices to be transferred to the customer and provides good possi-
bilitiestomanagepriceandcostincreasesovertime.Theimpair-
ment test shows no impairment need even if the EBITDA margin 
weretodropbymorethanthreepercentagepoints.

Segment Ready-to-eat has had a strong market development 
during 2021 with 11% Net Sales growth vs 2020 and with improv-

ingmargins.Thedevelopmentwasdrivenbyincreasedsalesinthe
Foodservice sales channel and we note an increasing demand 
withinthisprofitablesegment.Inordertotakeadvantageofgrowth
opportunities, investments are planned to increase capacity further 
inFarre,thelargestproductionplantforready-to-eatproducts.The
impairment test shows no impairment need even if the EBITDA 
marginweretodropbymorethanthreepercentagepoints.

Further information about Goodwill and intangible assets 
pleaseseeNote11.

Note 7 Fees and reimbursement to auditors
MSEK 2021 2020

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)
Audit services 6 6
Audit related services 1 1
Tax services 1 1

Other services 0 0
Total 8 8

Annualauditincludestheauditofthefinancialstatementsofthe
Parent Company and the Group, the accounting records and the 
administration of the Board of Directors and the Managing 
Director.Italsoincludesotherdutiesincumbentontheauditorof
the company as well as advice arising from observations made 
whileperformingtheauditorcarryingoutsuchotherduties.

The share of the total fees of MSEK 5 to PwC AB (Sweden) 
whichreferstonon-auditservices,definedbytheEUauditlegisla-
tion,amountstoMSEK 0(0)whereofMSEK0(0)regardingaudit
servicesandMSEK0(0)regardingtaxservices.Theservices
include advice from an accounting perspective for preparation of 
thefinancialreports,as wellasotherguidanceregardingaccount-
ingandtax.
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Note 8  Finance income and finance expenses

Income Expenses Total

MSEK 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Loans and other receivables 
Other income 0 – – – 0 –
Other interest income 1 0 – – 1 0
Total 2 0 – – 2 0

Derivatives used in hedging
Interest and currency swaps – – –7 –5 –7 –5
Total – – –7 –5 –7 –5

Other financial liabilities 
Interest expenses, pension plans – – –3 –3 –3 –3
Interest expenses, borrowing – – –30 –36 –30 –36
Interest expenses, earn-out – – – –4 – –4
Other borrowing expenses – – –8 –7 –8 –7
Other interest expenses – – –13 –12 –13 –12
 Financial cost, leasing – – –11 –14 –11 –14
Currency effects – – –2 –10 –2 –10
Change in value of share in 
pension fund – – –9 – –9 –
Total – – –76 –86 –76 –86
Total 2 0 –83 –91 –82 –91

Note 9  Exchange differences affecting income

MSEK 2021 2020

Exchange differences affecting operating income 5 –7
Exchangedifferences,financialitems –2 –10
Total 3 –17

Exchange differences in operating income are included in:
Otheroperatingincome/expense 5 –7
Total 5 –7

Note 10 Taxes

Tax on income for the year, MSEK 2021 2020

Current tax expense (−) / tax income (+)
Taxexpense/incomefortheyear –55 –56
Adjustment of tax attributable to prior years –4 –5
Total current tax –59 –61

Deferred tax expense (−) / tax income (+)
Deferred tax from changes in temporary differences –15 –2
Deferred tax from changes in changed tax rates – 0
Deferred tax income in capitalized losses carry forward 38 15
Deferred tax expense use of capitalized losses carry  forward – –
Reassessment attributable to losses carry forward –1 –4
Total deferred tax 22 9
Total recognised tax expense –37 –52

2021 2020

Reconciliation of effective tax % MSEK % MSEK

Incomeafterfinancenet 140 260

Anticipated tax according to enacted Swedish tax rate –20.6 –29 –21.4 –56
Effect of other tax rates for foreign subsidiaries –1.0 –1 4.1 13
Unrecognised tax loss, incurred during the year –1.1 –2 –2.2 –7
Non-deductible expenses –1.7 –2 –0.6 –2
Non-taxable income 0 0 0 0
Effect of tax related to previous year –1.9 –3 1 3
Reversal of income of associates 0.3 0 –0.2 –1
Change in deferred tax due to changes in tax rates in 
 Sweden and Norway – – 0 0
Reassessment of deferred tax on carry forward losses – – –1.4 –4
Recognised effective tax –26.0 –37 –20.5 –52

Tax items recognised in equity through other 
 comprehensive income, MSEK 2021 2020

Actuarialgainsandlossesondefined 
benefitpensionplans 9 3
Cash flow hedges 0 –1
Total tax effects in other comprehensive income 8 2
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Change in deferred tax in temporary  differences  
and loss carryforwards, MSEK

Amount at  
beginning of period

Recognised in  
income statement

Recognised  
in OCI

Changesinacquisition/ 
divestment of companies

Translation  
differences

Amount at  
end of period

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Intangible assets –146 –160 7 8 – – – – –3 6 –142 –146
Buildings 16 21 –3 –5 – – – – 0 –1 14 16
Machinery and equipment –55 –50 –13 –6 – – – – –1 1 –69 –55
Right-of-use assets –2 6 1 –8 – – – – 0 0 –1 –2
Other assets –5 –12 1 7 – – – – 0 0 –4 –5
Pension provisions 2 5 0 0 –9 –3 – – 0 – –7 2
Other liabilities 16 18 –6 0 0 –1 – – 0 0 11 16
Losses carryforward 63 52 37 14 – – – – 1 –2 102 63
Other –15 –13 –2 –1 – – – – 0 0 –18 –15
Total –125 –134 22 –9 –8 –4 – – –2 4 113 –125

Deferred tax assets/tax liabilities  
MSEK

Deferred  
tax assets

Deferred tax  
liabilities Net

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Intangible assets – – 142 146 –142 –146
Buildings 16 18 2 2 14 16
Machinery and equipment – – 69 55 –69 –55
Right-of-use assets 6 – 6 2 –1 –2
Other assets 6 2 10 7 –4 –5
Pension provisions – 2 7 – –7 2
Other liabilities 11 16 – – 11 16
Losses carryforward 102 63 – – 102 63

Other – – 17 15 –17 –15
Total 141 102 254 226 –113 –125

Nettingofoffsettableassets/liabilitiesbyjurisdiction –76 –61 –76 –61 – –
Total net deferred tax asset/ tax liability 65 41 178 166 –113 –125

Deferredtaxassetsandliabilitiesnettablewithinthesamejurisdictionwerenettedin2021and2020.

Note10Taxescont.

Losses carryforward 
At the end of the year, the Group had losses carry forward of MSEK 
600(407), of which MSEK 475 (299) were recognised as base for 
thedeferredtaxassetMSEK102(63).MSEK24(24)ofthe
deferred tax assets relates to losses carry forward in Finland, 
whichhavebeenpartlycapitalized.Thematurityforlossesin
Finlandis10yearsandnothingexpiresbeforefiveyears.The
remaining part of the deferred tax asset for 2020, MSEK 72 (39) is 
related to  Denmark and MSEK 6 (0) is related to Sweden, where the 
lifetimeisunrestricted.WhentheoperationinFinlandwas
acquired in 2015 it showed a low level of capacity utilization and 
generatedanegativeincome.During2021theyhavereachedtheir

net sales prognos but operating income has been negatively 
impactedbycostinflationsnotyettransferredtocustomers.
The businesspositioninthemarketcontinuestobestrongandit
is the estimate of management that a continued increase in sales 
in connection with capacity strengthening investments partly 
takenintouseduring2021willfurtherimproveearnings.

The operations in Denmark showed a negative result for 2021 
attributabletothepoorresultintheReady-to-cooksegment.The
negative outcome is mainly related to the implementation of the 
strategyforslowgrowingbirds,lowexportpricesandcostincreases.
Comprehensive changes are now being implemented and the posi-

tive effects of these measures are expected primarily during second 
halfof2022.Managementestimatethatasaresultofthestructural
changes,thecompanyisexpectedtoreachprofitabilityintimeto
enabletheutilizationofthetaxlossescarriedforward.

The Group has evaluated the recoverablities based on 5 year 
longtermplanwhichhaveshownconvincingevidencethatsuffi-
cienttaxableprofitwillbeavailableagainstunusedtaxlosses.
Hence the management has come to the conclusion that the tax 
asset reported concerning the losses in Finland, Denmark and 
Swedenshouldbefurtherreportedinthestatementoffinancial
position.
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Note 11 Intangible assets

Goodwill Other intangible assets

 Brands
Customer and  

supplier relationships 
Capitalized expenditure  

on internal development work
Total other  

intangible assets 

MSEK 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Accumulated cost 921 888 455 445 726 706 83 48 1,264 1,199
Accumulated amortisation – – –66 –61 –283 –227 –40 –33 –388 –321
Carrying amount 921 888 389 384 443 479 44 15 876 878

Balance at beginning of year 888 940 384 403 479 546 15 7 878 957
Investments – – – – – – 35 – 35 –
Additions – – – – – – – – – –
Sale and disposals – – – – – – – – – –
Amortisation for the year – – –4 –4 –46 –46 –6 –3 –56 –53
Reclassifications – – – – – – – 11 – 11
Translation differences 33 –52 9 –15 10 –22 0 0 19 –37
Book value 921 888 389 384 443 479 44 15 876 878

Allocation of Goodwill, brands and  
customer/supplier relationships
Ready-to-cook 765 735 3151) 3071) 443 479
Ready-to-cook 622) 652)

Ready-to-eat 156 153 121) 121)

Total 921 888 389 384 443 479

1)Brandswithindefiniteusefullife(Kronfågel,Ivars,Vitafågeln,Bosarp,Danpo,BornholmenHanen,DenStolteHane).
2)Brandwithalimitedusefullife(ManorFarm). 

Furtherinformationaboutdepreciation,amortisation,impairmentandimpairmenttesting,pleaseseeNote6.
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Note 12 Property, plant and equipment
Land and  

land improvements
Buildings  
and land

Plant and machinery and 
other technical assets

Equipment, tools,  
fixturesandfittings

Construction  
in progress

Total property, plant  
and equipment

MSEK 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Accumulated cost 45 41 1,017 984 3,214 2,907 455 425 193 212 4,924 4,570
Accumulated depreciation –16 –13 –519 –477 –2,220 –2,023 –280 –236 – – –3,036 –2,749
Accumulated impairment – – – – – – – – – –3 – –3
Book value 29 28 498 507 995 884 175 189 193 209 1,889 1,817

Balance at beginning of the period 28 16 507 526 884 864 189 157 209 185 1,817 1,748
Investments1) – – 14 11 163 92 3 21 92 232 273 356
Acquisitions – – – – – – – – – – – –
Sales and disposals – – – – –1 – – – –1 – –2 –
Depreciation for the period –1 –2 –33 –34 –160 –140 –43 –36 – – –238 –210
Reclassifications 1 14 – 24 87 101 23 53 –110 –202 1 –11
Translation differences – –1 –9 –20 22 –34 3 –4 3 –6 37 –65
Book value 29 28 498 507 995 884 175 189 193 209 1,889 1,817

1)Doesnotincludecapitalisedinterest.

Nogovernmentgrantsaffectinginvestmentvalueswerereceivedin2021or2020.Forfurtherinformationaboutdepreciation,amortisationandimpairment,seeNote6. 

Note 13 Rights-of-use assets

Informationaboutthematuritystructurefortheleasingliabilities,seeNote22.

Buildings  
and land

Plant and machinery and  
other technical assets1)

Total   
rights-of-use assets

MSEK 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Accumulated cost 623 598 176 182 799 781
Accumulated depreciation –289 –245 –92 –78 –381 –324
Accumulated impairment –2 –2 – – –2 –2
Carrying amount 331 351 84 104 415 455

Balance at beginning of the period 351 322 104 104 455 427
Expenditure/Increaseof 
right-of-use assets 14 94 18 43 32 137
Acquisitions – – – – – –
Salesanddisposals/Decreaseof
 right-of-use assets 0 4 –1 –1 –1 3
Depreciation for the period –44 –46 –38 –38 –82 –85
Impairment for the period –2 –2 – – –2 –2
Reclassifications – – –1 – –1 –
Translation differences 12 –21 2 –4 14 –26
Book value 331 351 84 104 415 455
1)Plantandmachineryandothertechnicalassetsincludeequipment,tools,fixturesandfittings.

Further information about leasing contracts that are not apparent in  
the financial statements or have to be disclosed separately.
Non-current leasing receivables and current leasing receivables MSEK 0 (0) 
and MSEK 0(0)isasubleaseofright-of-useasset.
MSEK 2021 2020

Net interest expenses –11 –14

Leasing fees for
 shorttermleases –7 –7
 assetswithalowunderlyingvalue, 

not included in the fees for short term leases –2 –3
 variableleasingfees 

not included in leasing liabilities –12 –13

Reported in the statement of cash flows
 investmentsinright-of-useassets –1 –2
 paymentsforamortizationofleasingliabilities –84 –82
Total cash flow for leasing contracts –118 –122
Of which revenues for sub-lease of assets
 interestincome 

(included in the net interest expenses) 0 0
 rentalincome 

(included in amortization of leasing liabilities) 2 1
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Group holdings in associates, December 31, 2021

Corporate name Corp. identity no. Domicile
Number of 

shares 
Share of 

 capital, % 
Carrying amount  

in Group 2021, MSEK 
Carrying amount  

in Group 2020, MSEK 
Associates in the Group: 
Denmark FarmfoodA/S 27 121 977 Loegstoer 10,000 33.3 30 29
Norway NærbøKyllingslaktAS 985 228 175 Nærbø,Hå 3,875 50.0 16 14
Total 46 43

Note 15 Non-current financial assets

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Otherlong-termfinancial 
fixedassets – –
Other shares and interests 3 1
Total 3 1

Non-current leasing receivables – 0
Total 3 1

Non-currentleasingreceivablesisasubleaseofright-of-useasset.

Note 16  Biological assets

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Balance at beginning  
of the period 103 99
Change in number of hens and 
age distribution 1 –4
Change in revenue and margin 
per hen –0 3
Change in production cost 0 0
Other –1 5
Balance at end of the period 103 103

The biological assets consist primarily of parent broiler stock that 
producesday-oldchickssoldtocontractbroilerproducers.The
lifespan of the parent broilers is about 60 weeks and the main 
sourceofrevenueissalesoftheday-oldchicksthattheyproduce.
Each hen produces about 170 chicks between week 25 and week 
60.Productioncostsincludedirectandindirectcostssuchas
feed,rentandenergyused.Attheendoftheyeartherewereabout
455,000 (488,000) hens in stock with a total fair value less cost of 
salesofMSEK 74(73).

Note 17 Inventory

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Raw materials and consumables 208 199
Goods in progress 23 13
Finished goods and merchandise 554 501
Total 785 713

MSEK 373(358)ofinventoriesthisyearweremeasuredatnet
realizablevalue.ImpairmentlossesofMSEK 40(39)wererecog-
nizedduringtheyear.PreviousimpairmentsofMSEK4(4)have
been reversed during the year since the impairment is no longer 
remains.Theinventoryisnotsubjectforpledgeassetsor
contingentliabilities.

Note 14 Participations in associated companies

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 43 43
Share of income in associates 2 2
Other adjustment – –
Translation difference 2 –3
Carrying amount 46 43

AnyimpairmentandreversalofimpairmentisrecognisedintheincomestatementclassifiedasShare
ofincomeinassociates.

Information of associates in 2021

MSEK Assets Liabilities Net sales 
Income for  
the period

FarmfoodA/S 216 91 315 3
NærbøKyllingslaktAS 30 20 71 0

Information of associates in 2020

MSEK Assets Liabilities Net sales 
Income for  
the period

FarmfoodA/S 162 86 295 5
NærbøKyllingslaktAS 29 19 78 1
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Note 19  Current interest-bearing assets and  
cash and cash equivalents

 
MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Cash and bank balances 350 413
Current leasing receivables – 0
Total 350 413

Receivableswithamaturityofuptooneyeararerecognised.
Currentleasingreceivablesisasubleaseofright-of-useasset. 
ascurrentinterest-bearingassets.

Note 18  Trade receivables and other receivables

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Trade receivables 811 818
Other current receivables 92 78
Prepaid expenses and accrued 
income 104 131
Total 1,007 1,028

The closing loss allowances for 
trade receivables as follows:

Trade receivables

2021 2020

Opening loss allowance  
as at 1 January 2020  
– calculated in accordance 
with IFRS 9 35 31
Increase in loss allowance, 
acquired companies – –
Increase in loss allowance 
 recognised in the income state-
mentduring theyear 15 5
Receivables written off during 
the year as uncollectible –17 0
Unused amount reversed 0 –1
Closing balance 31 December 32 35

Prepaid expenses and  
accrued income, MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Prepaid rent 0 1
Prepaid insurance – 0
Prepayments to contract  
broiler producers 21 25
Prepaid interest 0 0
Other prepaid expenses 83 104
Other accrued income 0 1
Total 104 131

Age analysis of trade receivables,  
MSEK 

Dec 31,  
2021

Expected  
loss rate in %

Loss  
allowance

Dec 31,  
2020

Expected  
loss rate in %

Loss  
allowance

Receivables, not yet due 634 – – 595 – –
Receivables, past due 
     < 31 days 132 – – 142 – –
     31–60 days 20 – – 37 – –
     61–90 days 21 – – 23 – –
     > 90 days 36 89% 32 57 61% 35
Total 842 32 853 35

Provision for doubtful debts –32 –35
Total 811 818

Forinformationofassessmentoftradereceivables,seeNote22.
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Note 20 Equity

Share capital
The share capital amounted to SEK 659,663 (659,663) and 
 represented 66,060,890 (66,060,890) shares of which the number 
ofsharesoutstandingwas 65,327,164(65,601,937).Thereisonly
one class of shares with equal voting rights and rights in the 
company’sprofitsandcapital.Thequotavalueoftheshareis
SEK 0.009986(0.009986).Eachsharecarriesonevote.

Other paid-up capital
Shareholder’s equity paid up by shareholders and dividend to 
shareholders.In2021,thedividendamountedtoMSEK81.No
dividendhasbeenpaidoutduring2020.520,000shareswere
repurchased in 2021, no repurchase of own shares were made 
in 2020.

Fair value reserve
For cash flow hedges where the hedged transaction has not yet 
occurred, the hedge reserve comprises the cumulative  effective 
portion of gains or losses arising from remeasuring the hedging 
instrumentsatfairvalue.Thecumulativegainorlossrecognised
in the hedge reserve will be recycled to income statement when 
thehedgedtransactionaffectstheincomestatement.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve includes all exchange rate differences that 
ariseupontranslationoffinancialstatementsofforeignopera-
tionsthathavepreparedtheirfinancialstatementsinanother
currencythanthepresentationcurrencyfortheGroup’sfinancial
statements.TheParentCompanyandGrouppresenttheirfinan-
cialstatementsinSwedishkronor(SEK).

Gains and losses on hedging instruments that qualify as 
hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation are also included 
inthetranslationreserve.

Retained earnings
This item includes mainly accrued earnings in the Group,  
actuarial gains and losses in pension plans, treasury shares 
and performance-basedincentiveprograms.

Non-controlling Interests
51 percent of the shares in Rokkedahl Food Aps, which was 
acquired1September2018.

Earnings per share 2021 2020

Income for the period attributable to owner of the Parent company, MSEK 104 207
Average number of shares 65,287,762 65,501,968
Earnings per share, SEK 1.60 3.16

Equity per share 2021 2020

Equity attributable to owners of the Parent company, MSEK 1,951 1.875
Number of outstanding shares 65,327,164 65,601,937
Equity per share, SEK 29.87 28.58

Changes in share capital
No.ofshares Share capital

Registered Transaction Change
After 

transaction
Quota 

value SEK Change
After 

transaction

Feb 1, 2013 Incorporation 50,000 50,000 1,000,000 50,000 50,000
Jun 26, 2013 New share issue 500,716,726 500,766,726 0.000500 200,287 250,287
Jun 26, 2013 Reduction of share capital – 500,766,726 0.000200 –150,215 100,072
Jun 26, 2013 Reduction of share capital –50,000 500,766,726 0.000100 –50,000 50,072
May 19, 2014 Bonus issue – 500,766,726 0.000999 449,928 500,000
May 19, 2014 Reclassificationofshares – 500,766,726 0.000999 – 500,000
May 20, 2014 New share issue 4,569,376 505,286,102 0.000999 4,563 504,563
Jun 27, 2014 Reclassificationofshares – 505,286,102 0.000999 – 504,563
Jun 27, 2014 Reversed split 1:10 –454,757,492 50,528,610 0.009986 – 504,563
Jun 27, 2014 New share issue 95,186 50,623,796 0.011847 95,186 599,749
Jun 27, 2014 Set-off of shareholder 

loans 9,437,094 60,060,890 0.009986 – 599,749
Aug 28, 2017 New share issue 6,000,000 66,060,890 0.009986 59,914 659,663
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Note 21 Interest-bearing liabilities

Non-current interest-bearing liabilities

MSEK Dec 31, 221 Dec 31, 2020

Non-current liabilities to 
credit institutions 1,884 1,863
Derivative instruments 5 15
Financial liabilities, leases 367 401
Total 2,257 2,279

Current interest-bearing liabilities

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Derivative instruments 5 –
Other short-term 
 interest-bearing debt 68 73
Total 73 73

Financing of the Scandi Standard Group is mainly carried out 
throughthegroupcompanyScandinavianStandardNordicAB.
Externalfinancinginthesubsidiariesisonlyconductedifthisis
optimalfortheGroup.

Syndicated multicurrency term agreement
In 2016, a syndicated loan agreement was signed, replacing previous 
outstandingdebt.Thefinancingisafive-yearfacilityofMSEK1,450
anda revolvingfacilityofMSEK750.Bothfacilitieswereextendedin
2018bytwomoreyearsandaretoberepaidinDecember2023.The
loan agreement also gives Scandi Standard the opportunity to extend 
theloanfacilityifneeded,fromMSEK1,250toMSEK2,000.The
facilities are available to Scandinavian Standard Nordic AB and 
selectedsubsidiaries.Furthermore,theabilityfortheGrouptotakeon
newdebtisregulatedbytheloanagreement.Thechangehasbeen
presented as a loan extension of existing loan agreement, as the loan 
conditionsreconcilewithpreviousconditions.

As a precautionary measure to continue to secure the Group´s 
liquidity need during Covid-19 pandemic, the existing credit facility 
of MSEK 200 and the additional facility of MSEK 200 agreed with 
ourfinanciersatthebeginningofthepandemicwereextended
duringtheyear.Thesecreditfacilitieshavenotbeenutilisedduring
theyear.

Covenants
The syndicated loan agreement sets forth a covenant on leverage 
(quota ratio of net interest-bearing debt in relation to EBITDA on a 
rolling twelve-month basis) and a covenant on interest cover (ratio of 
financechargesinrelationtoEBITDAonarollingtwelve-monthbasis).

Thedefinitionofleverageintheloanagreementisdifferentfromthe
definitionusedwhencalculatingtheGroup’sfinancialtargets.Scandi
Standardcompliedwithitscovenantsattheendof2021.

Note 22 Financial instruments and financial  
risk management

ScandiStandardisexposedtodifferenttypesoffinancialriskin
thecourseofitsinternationaloperations.Financialriskistherisk
offluctuationsintheGroup’sfinancialresults,positionandcash
flowasaresultofcurrencyrisk,interestratesrisk,andrefinancing-
andliquidityriskandcredit-andcounterpartyrisks.

CURRENCY RISK 
In the course of its operations, Scandi Standard is exposed to 
currency risk, in the form of exchange rate fluctuations affecting 
theGroup’sfinancialresultsandposition.

The Group’s currency exposure includes both transaction 
exposureandtranslationexposure.TheGroup’scurrencyrisk
management is aimed at minimizing the short-term effect of 
exchange rate fluctuations and their adverse impact on the 
Group’sfinancialresultsandposition.

Transaction exposure 
Cash flows from purchase and sale of goods in currencies other 
than the respective currency of each Group company leads to 
transactionexposure.Eachbusinessunitshallidentifytheirexpo-
sure to foreign exchange risk on a regular basis and report fore-
castedcashflowsinforeigncurrenciestoGroupFinance.
 Transaction exposure should be reduced actively by netting the 
cashflow(matchingin-andoutflowspercurrency).Scandi
Standards’financialpolicystipulatesthattransactionexposure
should only be hedged for an actual committed transaction above 
MSEK1andwithapaymenttermof60daysormore.Theendof
thehedgetermisexpectedpaymentdate.

Distribution of trade receivables by currency 
MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

SEK 84 74

DKK 125 123
NOK 134 124
EUR 475 492
Other currencies 24 40
Total 842 853

Distribution of trade payables by currency 

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

SEK 334 310
DKK 404 389
NOK 229 180
EUR 323 278
Other currencies 2 5
Total 1,291 1,163

Translation exposure 
Translation exposure is the effect of changes in exchange rates 
when foreign subsidiaries’ income statements and statements of 
financialpositionaretranslatedintotheGroup’spresentation
currency(SEK).Currencyhedgingofinvestmentsinforeign
 subsidiaries (net assets including Goodwill on acquired surplus 
values) is managed by means of loans in the subsidiaries’ curren-
ciesandisreferredtoastheequityhedge.Theseloansarerecog-
nisedattheclosingrateonthereportingdate.Inthecompany,
exchange differences attributable to these loans (net of tax) and 
translation differences from the net assets of subsidiaries are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
consolidatedequity.Atpresent,netinvestmentsinDKK,NOKand
EURarehedged.

If the Swedish krona would change against other currencies by 
5percent,equitywouldbeimpactedbyMSEK+/−136(148),not
takingintoaccounttheequityhedge.Iftheequityhedgeistaken
intoaccount,equitywouldbeimpactedbyMSEK+/−78(91),all
otherthingsbeingequal.

Exchange rate fluctuations also affect the translation of foreign 
subsidiaries’incomestatementstoSEK.Asthistranslationis
not hedged,thetranslationdifferenceisexposedtocurrencyrisk
andassuchisincludedinthesensitivityanalysisbelow.

Foreign-exchange sensitivity in transaction exposure 
ScandiStandardisprimarilyexposedtoDKK,NOKandEUR.
The differentcurrenciesrepresentbothinflowsandoutflows
againstthefunctionalcurrency.

If, on translation of operating income, the Swedish krona would 
change against subsidiaries’ currencies by 5 percent, this would 
haveanimpactofMSEK+/−8(20)onoperatingincome,allother
thingsbeingequal.Theimpactisbrokendownasfollows: 
DKK/SEK+/−5(3)MSEKandNOK/SEK+/−13(8)MSEKand
EUR/SEK+/−0(9)MSEK.Thecalculationdoesnottakeinto
account any changes in prices and customer behaviour caused 
by theexchangeratemovements.
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INTEREST RATE RISK 
Interest-bearing borrowing means that the Group is exposed to 
interestraterisk.Interestrateriskistheriskthatchangesinmarket
interestrateswillhaveanadverseeffectontheGroup’sfinancial
resultsandcashflows.Thestrategyformanagingtheinterestrate
risk exposure is to have a balanced combination of floating and 
fixedinterestrates.Interestrateriskcanbemanagedthrough
fixedloans,derivativesoracombinationofboth.Consideration
shall be made to how sensitive the Company’s consolidated cash 
flows are to changes in market interest rates levels over a longer 
period.Thedurationisaffectedbynatureofthebusiness,pres-
enceoffinancialcovenants,gearingleveloftheCompanyaswell
as future forecasted cash flows and the Group´s capability to 
repaydebt.InanannualreviewtheBoardshallapprovethepro-
portion of anticipated debt to be hedged for each year based on 
recommendationfromManagement.Uponsuchresolutionthe
Managementshallexecutehedgesassoonaspossible.

Derivatives approved by the Board for managing interest rate 
risk are interest rate swaps (IRS), interest floors, interest caps and 
currencyinterestswaps.AtDecember31,2021,theGroup’sout-
standing liabilities to credit institutions, including outstanding 
interestrateswaps,hadaweightedaveragefixed-rateperiodof
8 (12)months.Aspertheendofthereportingperiod,a1percent-
agepointchangeininterestrateswouldnotentailanysignificant
changeinthefairvalueoffinancialassets.Duringthecoming
12-monthperiod,a1percentagepointincrease/decreasein
 interest rate on interest-bearing liabilities would be impact by 
MSEK+/–23 (23).

REFINANCING RISK AND LIQUIDITY RISK 
Refinancingriskistheriskthatcostswillbehigherandopportuni-
tiesforfinancinglimitedwhenloansandothercreditarrangements
arerenewed.Liquidityriskistheriskindischargingpaymentobliga-
tions.ScandiStandardlimitsitsrefinancingriskbyhavingawell-di-
versifiedgroupofcounterpartiesforitsloanfacilities.Theaverage
 time to maturity for the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities, excluding 
leasingobligationsperDecember31,2021was2(3)years.

By constantly maintaining cash assets or unused credit 
 facilities, the Group ensures it has sound payment capacity, 
therebyreducingtheliquidityrisk.Paymentcapacity,i.e.cashand
cash equivalents and unused credit facilities, on December 31, 
2021wasMSEK 1,068(1,136).

LiquidityriskfromvendorfinancingisMSEK352(326).This
is attributedtoreversedfactoringarrangementsprolongingpay-
ment terms in Sweden, Denmark and Norway from 14–25 days 
to 60–90days.

The tables ‘Maturity structure’ show undiscounted contractual 
cash flows so these amounts are therefore not found in the 
balancesheet.

Maturity structure of liabilities to credit institutions  
by currency 2021
MSEK 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026− Total

SEK 11 750 – – – 762
NOK 12 510 – – – 522
DKK 6 398 – – – 404
EUR 4 261 – – – 265
Total 33 1,919 – – – 1,953
Of which interest 33 33 – – – 66

Maturity structure of liabilities to credit institutions  
by currency 2020
MSEK 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025− Total

SEK 11 11 749 – – 771
NOK 9 9 498 – – 516
DKK 5 5 390 – – 401
EUR 9 4 256 – – 269
Total 34 29 1,893 – – 1,956
Of which interest 29 29 29 – – 87

Maturity structure of derivative instruments,  
nominal amounts December 31, 2021
MSEK 2022 2023 2024 2025− Fair value

Currency 
 derivatives 214 – – –5
Interest rate 
derivatives 307 – 307 – –5
Total 521 – 307 – –11

Maturity structure of derivative instruments,  
nominal amounts December 31, 2020
MSEK 2021 2022 2023 2024− Fair value

Currency 
 derivatives 321 – – – 5
Interest rate 
derivatives – 305 – 300 –15
Total 321 305 – 300 –10

Maturity structure of liabilities regarding leasing by currency 2021
MSEK 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026− Total

SEK 19 16 14 14 43 106
NOK 33 33 31 16 80 192
DKK 25 18 14 11 103 172
EUR 6 4 3 2 6 21
Total 82 71 62 43 232 491
Of which interest 9 8 6 5 27 54

Maturity structure of liabilities regarding leasing by currency 2020
MSEK 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025− Total

SEK 26 20 17 17 39 119
NOK 30 29 29 27 87 203
DKK 28 24 17 13 111 193
EUR 5 4 3 2 7 21
Total 89 77 67 60 244 536
Of which interest 11 9 7 6 30 63

Maturityofshort-termdebtisuptooneyear.Maturityoftrade
payablesisnormallywithinapproximately60days.

CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK 
Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that the counterparty in 
a transactionwillbeunabletodischargeitsobligations,thereby
causingafinanciallossforScandiStandard.Counterpartyrisk
is limitedbyonlyacceptingcounterpartieswithhighcredit-
worthiness.

Customer credit risk 
The credit risk associated with trade receivables is managed 
throughspecialcreditratingreviews.ScandiStandardhascredit
control procedures in place and obtains information about the 
financialpositionofcustomersfromvariouscredit-ratingagencies.

Note22Financialinstrumentsandfinancialriskmanagementcont.
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Note22Financialinstrumentsandfinancialriskmanagementcont.

Hedging instruments with associated hedged items and Derivative instruments

Assets Liabilities
Average hedg-
ingprice/-rate

Nominal amount 
Remaining term Nominal amount Booked value Booked value

Annual  
change in value

Accumulated 
change in value

MSEK < 1 year > 1 year Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020 Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020 Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Cash flow hedges
Interest related contract
Interest swap 1.00% 307 307 615 605 – – –5 –15 10 –5

Currency related contract
FX hedges

GBP/SEK 11.73 50 – 50 64 – 3 –2 – –5 –2
USD/SEK 8.39 71 – 71 99 – 10 –5 – –16 –5
DKK/SEK 1.35 92 – 92 217 – –8 2 – 10 2
NOK/SEK – – – – –59 – 0 – – 0 0
EURGBPUSD/DKK – – – – – – – – – – X

Total hedging 521 307 829 926 – 5 –11 –15 –1 –11

Currency hedging of foreign 
operations
Currency related contract

Derivatives instruments – Loan – 1,147 1,147 1,126 – – 1,147 1,126 14 –
Hedged item – currency 
 hedging of foreign operations – 1,147 1,147 1,126 1,147 1,126 – – –14 –

Total derivative instrument – – 1,147 1,126 – –

Types of hedge accounting applied in the consolidated financial statements

Type of exposure Type of hedged items Hedged risk Hedging instruments Hedging model1)

Interest exposure Loans with variable interest rates Interest rate risk Interest rate swaps Cash flow hedges

Currency exposure
Forecasted purchase and sales in foreign 
currency Currency risk Currency derivatives Cash flow hedges

Currency exposure Investments in foreign operations Currency risk Loan in foreign currency Currency hedging of foreign operations

1)Deviationsincriticalconditionsbetweenhedginginstrumentsandhedgeditemsrepresentthemainsourceofinefficiencyforalltypesofhedging.
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Note22Financialinstrumentsandfinancialriskmanagementcont.

Financial assets and liabilities by measurement category December 31, 2021 

December 31, 2021, MSEK
Measured at  

amortised cost
Measured at fair value  

through income statement1)
Derivatives used in  
hedge accounting1)

ASSETS 
Financial assets 3 – –
Trade receivables and other receivables 811 – –
Derivative instruments (Level 2) – – –
Cash and cash equivalents 350 – –
Total financial assets 1,164 – –

LIABILITIES 
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 1,884 – –
Other non-current liabilities – – –
Derivative instruments (Level 2) – – 11
Current interest-bearing liabilities – – –
Other short-term payables (Level 3) – – –
Trade payables 1,291 – –
Total financial liabilities 3,175 – 11

Financial assets and liabilities by measurement category December 31, 2020 

December 31, 2020, MSEK
Measured at  

amortised cost
Measured at fair value  

through income statement1)
Derivatives used in  
hedge accounting1)

ASSETS 
Financial assets 1 – –
Trade receivables and other receivables 818 – –
Derivative instruments (Level 2) – 5
Cash and cash equivalents 413 – –
Total financial assets 1,232 – 5

LIABILITIES 
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 1,863 – –
Other non-current liabilities – – –
Derivative instruments (Level 2) – – 15
Current interest-bearing liabilities – – –
Other short-term payables (Level 3) – 180 –
Trade payables 1,163 – –
Total financial liabilities 3,027 180 15

1)TheGroup’sfinancialassetsandliabilitiesaremeasuredinaccordancewiththefollowingfairvaluehierarchy: 
Level1:Quotedprices(unadjusted)inactivemarketsforidenticalassetsandliabilities. 
Level2:Inputsotherthanthequotedpricesincludedinlevel1thatareobserveablefortheassetorliability,i.e.quotedpricesordataderivedtherefrom. 
Level3:Unobservableinputsformeasurementoftheassetorliability.

Measurement techniques
Derivatives in Level 2 are foreign currency forwards and interest 
rateswaps.

Fair value measurement for foreign currency forwards is the 
present value of future cash flows based on the forward exchange 
ratesatthebalancesheetdate.

Fair value measurement for interest rate swaps is the present 
value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield 
curves.Othershort-termpayablesinLevel3includeEarn-out,
reported fair value is based on an assessment of future sales and 
earningsperformanceforCartonBros.

Reported value for Non-current interest-bearing liabilities is a 
goodapproximationoffairvalueascreditriskisnotsignificantly
changed.

Forotherfinancialinstrumentswithnospecificmarketvalue,
thefairvalueisdeemedtocorrespondtothecarryingamount.
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Note 23 Pensions

ScandiStandardhasbothdefinedcontributionanddefinedbenefitpensionplans.Thedefinedbenefit
plans,asrecognisedintheconsolidatedstatementoffinancialposition,aremainlyfundedandrelate
toPRIpensionsinSweden.TheseplansarefundedinLantmännen’s‘GemensammaPensionsstiftelse
Grodden’ pension fund, which enables a number of companies that are part of, or have been part of, 
LantmännenGrouptosafeguardtheirpensionobligations.Eachcompanyhasitsownpartofthe
fund’sassets.Thereisnoobligationforthecompaniesinthefundtomakeadditionalcontributionsto
thefund.TheobligationsarealsocreditinsuredviaPRIPensionsgaranti.PRIPensionsgarantiisa
mutualinsurancecompanythatguaranteesemployees’futurepensions.Nowthattheassetsarein
a separatefund,theobligationscanbereducedbythemarketvalueofthefund’sassetswhenrecog-
nisedinthestatementoffinancialposition.KronfågelABandSweHatchABareconnectedtothefund
withregardtoobligationsaccrueduptotheendofMay2013.Afterthisdate,allnewpensionearnings
withintheGrouparefinancedbydirectcharges.

TheobligationsinIrelandconcernclosedpensionplans.
Pensionplanswithsurplusesarerecognisedasanassetinthestatementoffinancialposition

under“Surplusinfundedpensionplans”.Otherpensionplansthatareunfundedorpartiallyfunded
are recognisedunder“Provisionsforpensions”.

Defined benefit obligations and value of plan assets in the Group:

Defined benefit plans, MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Funded plans
DefinedbenefitobligationsunderSwedish
PRI Pensionsgaranti,plans 165 190
Fair value of plan assets –199 –181
Total net value of funded plans –34 9

Surplus in funded pension plan recognised as asset 34 –
Partially funded pension plan recognised as liability – 9

Unfunded plans
Other unfunded obligations 3 –1
Total unfunded plans 3 –1

Provision for pensions, net value –32 8

DefinedbenefitpensionplansareinSwedenandIreland.

Pension cost in the income statement, MSEK 2021 2020

Defined benefit plans
Incurred pension expense during the year
Interestincome/expenses –3 –3
Change in value of share in pension fund –9 –
Cost of defined benefit plans –12 –3

Costofdefinedcontributionplans –95 –94
Total pension cost –107 –97

The cost is recognised in the following lines  
in the income statement
Employeebenefitsexpenses,Note5 –95 –94
Finance expenses, Note 8 –12 –3
Total pension cost –107 –97

Pension-related charges in other  
comprehensive income, MSEK 2021 2020

Defined benefit plans
Return on plan assets in excess of what is recognised as 
interest income in the income statement 24 10

Remeasurement of pension  obligations:
−Experiencebasedadjustmentofobligation 5 4
−Effectofchangesindemographicassumptions 7 1
−Effectsofchangesinfinancialassumptions 6 –3
Total remeasurement of pension  obligations 18 2

Total actuarial gains (+) and losses (−) 42 12

Taxingain/loss –9 –3
Total recognised in other comprehensive income 33 10
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Changes in obligations, assets and net amount:

Definedbenefit
 obligations 

Plan  
assets Net

31 December, MSEK 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Opening balance, funded plans 190 199 –181 –176 9 23
Service cost –2 –2 – – –2 –2
Interest recognised  
in income  statement 2 3 –2 –3 0 –
Paymentofpensionbenefits –7 –8 – – –7 –8
Compensation received – – 7 8 7 8
Return in plan assets in excess  
of recognised interest – – –24 –10 –24 –10
Remeasurement of pension 
 obligations recognised in other 
 comprehensive income –18 –2 – – –18 –2
Closing balance, funded plans 165 190 –199 –181 –34 9

Unfunded plans 3 –1 – – 3 –1
Closing balance, pension liability 168 190 –199 –181 –32 8

Areductionofthediscountrateby0.25percentagepointswouldincreasethepensionobligationby
MSEK 6(7)whileanincreaseofthediscountrateby0.25percentagepointswouldreducetheobliga-
tionbyMSEK 6(7).Achangeintheexpectedlifespanofoneyearwouldchangetheobligationby
MSEK 8(9).A changeoftheinflationrateof0.25percentagepointswouldchangetheobligationby
aboutMSEK 6(7).Thepensionfund’sreturnwas13(7)percentandachangeof1percentagepoint
wouldchangethevalueofplanassetsbyaboutMSEK 2(2).

Fundedplanscoverto44.9(47.2)percentpaid-uppolicyholdersandto55.1(52.8)percentretired
persons.Durationis14(15)years.

Expectedpaymentsunderdefinedbenefitpensionplansin2022areMSEK 8.

For certain employees in Sweden insurance premiums are paid to Alecta under the ITP plan (individual 
supplementarypension).Theplanisamulti-employerdefinedbenefitplan.Alectaiscurrentlyunable
todisclosetheinformationrequiredtorecognisetheplansasadefinedbenefitpensionplan.
Consequently,pensionplansunderAlectaarerecognisedasdefinedcontributionplans.MSEK 4(4)of
totalpensioncostofMSEK 113(94)fordefinedcontributionplansarerelatedtoAlectapremiumsfor
ITPplans.Alectamaydistributeitssurplustopolicyholdersand/ortheinsured.Attheendoftheyear,
Alecta’ssurplusdefinedascollectivefundingratiowas172(148)percent.Thecollectivefundingratio
reflects the market value of the assets of Alecta as a percentage of its pension obligations, calculated 
withAlecta’sActuarialassumptions,whichdonotfollowIAS19.

Note23Pensionscont.

Fair value of plan asset categories and share of total plan assets

2021 2020

MSEK % MSEK %

Property 85 42.9 79 45.1
Fixed-interest investments 28 13.9 30 17.3
Equity investments 65 32.4 53 29.8
Alternative investments 20 10.2 17 9.7
Cash and cash equivalents 1 0.5 2 1.1
Total 199 100 181 100

Equityinvestmentsarealllistedequity. 

Actuarial assumptions 2021 2020

Discount rate 1.65% 0.90%
Future pension increase 1.50% 2.00%
Inflation 2.00% 1.50%
Mortality table DUS14 DUS14
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Note 24 Other provisions

In corporate groups the size of Scandi Standard, there are nor-
mallyanumberofongoingdisputes.ScandiStandardassesses
the most likely outcome of the disputes currently at issue, and 
whereanoutflowoffinancialresourcesisprobable,acorrespond-
ingamountisrecognisedasaprovision.

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Other provisions 9 7
Total 9 7

Note 25  Trade payables and other current liabilities

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Trade payables1) 1,291 1,163
Other current liabilities 179 342
Current leasing liabilities 68 73
Accrued expenses and prepaid 
income 433 378
Total 1,971 1,955

1)MSEK449(403)relatestoinvoicesfinancedviaavendorfinancing
arrangement.

Accrued expenses and prepaid income

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Accrued personnel-related 
expenses 240 253
Bonuses and discounts 56 23
Other accrued expenses 137 102
Total 433 378

Note 26 Related party transactions

Salariesandbenefitsreceivedbyseniormanagementarereported
inNote5.Nodividendsfromsubsidiariesorassociateshavebeen
receivedintheParentCompanyduringtheyear.Thereisnoout-
standing receivables or liabilities related to associated companies 
asofDecember31,2021.Furtherinformationaboutassociated
companiescanbefoundinNote14.

Other transactions with key persons are for 2021 purchases of 
feed from Lantmännen ekonomiska förening in which the Group 
has shares and for 2020 membership fee for Swedish poultry for 
a boardmember.

Related party transactions

2021 2020

Intra-group purchases,  
share of total purchases, % 8.1 7.9
Intra-group sales,  
share of total sales, % 8.4 6.9
Purchases of goods and services 
from associates, MSEK 75 68
Sales of goods and services to 
associates, MSEK 49 53
Other transactions with 
associates, MSEK 4 1
Other transactions with 
key persons, MSEK 20 5

Note 27  Pledged assets and contingent liabilities

Pledged assets
MSEK

For own liabilities

Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Real estate mortgages – 271
Total – 271

Contingent liabilities
MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Guarantee multicurrency 
credit facility 2,200 2,200
Rent guarantee 71 156
Other contingent liabilities 113 102
Total 2,384 2,458

Other contingent liabilities consist for the most part of guarantees 
forsubsidiariesandsuppliers.
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Note 28  Notes to the statement of cash flows

1) Paid finance items net, MSEK 2021 2020

Interest received 0 0
Interest paid –61 –69
Otherpaidfinancialitems –7 –7
Total –68 –76

2) Business combinations, MSEK 2021 2020

Acquired assets and liabilities
Property, plant and equipment – –
Intangible assets – –
Inventories – –
Trade and other receivables – –
Liabilities – – 
Cash and cash equivalents – –
Total – –
Additional consideration,  
recognized liability 171 104
Provision for acquisition  
of minority – –
Loans in acquired business  
combination – –
Paid consideration 171 104

Cash and cash equivalents  
in acquired business  combination – –
Cash flow effect 171 104

3) Cash and cash equivalents, MSEK 2021 2020

Cash and bank deposits 350 413
Total 350 413

TheGroup’stotalliquidity,definedascash,bankdepositsand
credit available under the provisions of applicable loan agree-
ments,amountedtoMSEK 1,068(1,136)attheendoftheyear.

 

Liabilitiesfromfinancingactivities

Changes in gross debt, MSEK
Interest-bearing 

liabilities 
Leasing liability Total 

Gross debt December 31, 2020 (Note 21) –1,873 –473 –2,346

Cash flows

new loans – – –

repayments 31 84 115

changes in credit facility – – –
Total 31 84 115

Foreign exchange adjustments –48 –16 –64

Acquisitions – – –

Other non-cash movements –5 –30 –35

Total –53 –46 –99
Gross debt December 31, 2021 (Note 21) –1,894 –435 –2,330

4) Reconciliation of Net interest-bearing debt
The net interest-bearing debt and the movement of it is analysed 
below,forthepresentedperiods.

Net interest-bearing debt 1), MSEK 2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 350 413

Interest-bearing liabilities – repayable  
within one year –73 –67
Interest-bearing liabilities – repayable  
after one year –2,257 –2,279
Net interest-bearing debt –1,980 –1,933

Cash and bank deposits 350 413
Gross debt – variable interest rates –2,330 –2,346
Net interest-bearing debt –1,980 –1,933
1)TheGrouputilisesthesamedefinitionofNetinterest-bearingdebtasthe
currentCredit agreement.
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Parent Company and Group holdings of interests in Group companies, December 31, 2021 
Thetableincludesdirectly-ownedsubsidiariesandindirectly-ownedcompanies.

Company name
Corporate  
identity no. Domicile Share, %

Carrying amount, 
MSEK

Scandinavian Standard Nordic AB 556921-0619 Stockholm, Sweden 100 938
 ScandiStandardApS 25 710 029 Farre, Denmark 100
 NaapurinMaalaiskanaOY 2644740-9 Lieto, Finland 100
 KronfågelHoldingAB 556529-6372 Stockholm, Sweden 100
  KronfågelAB 556145-4223 Stockholm, Sweden 100
   SweHatchAB 556033-3386 Stockholm, Sweden 100
   ABSkånefågel 556056-1457 Örkelljunga, Sweden 100
  BosarpskycklingAB 556673-6608 Stockholm, Sweden 100
  DanpoA/S 31 241 316 Farre, Denmark 100
   RokkedahlFoodsApS 33 576 382 Nibe, Denmark 51
 ScandiStandardNorwayAS 911 561 077 Oslo, Norway 100
  DenStolteHaneAS 980 403 715 Jæren, Norway 100
 ScandiStandardIrelandHoldingAB 559119-0789 Stockholm, Sweden 100
  CartonBrosULC 7313 Dublin, Ireland 100
Total, Parent Company 938

Note 32 Financial instruments

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Loans and receivables 
Non-current interest-bearing 
receivables from subsidiaries – 405
Total – 405

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost 
 Liabilities to subsidiaries 320 233
Total 320 233

TherearenoderivativeinstrumentsintheParentCompany.
SeeNote22forinformationoninterest-bearingliabilities.

Note 33 Proposed appropriation of earnings

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting 
2022thatnodividendbepaidforthefinancialyear2021toensure
continuedfinancialflexibility.

The following earnings are at the disposal of the  
Annual General Meeting: 

SEK

Share premium reserve 645,155,862
Accumulateddeficit –27,115,487
Income for the year 10,403,145
Total 628,443,520

Dividend to shareholders –
To be carried forward 628,443,520
Total 628,443,520

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements
Note 29  Fees and reimbursements to auditors

MSEK 2021 2020

Öhrlings Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers AB
Annual audit 0 0
Total 0 0

Note 30  Pledged assets and contingent liabilities

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Contingent liabilities 4 4
Guarantee for subsidiaries 8 11
Guarantor long-term multi-
currency credit facilities 2,200 2,200
Total 2,211 2,215

Note 31 Investments in subsidiaries

MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Accumulated cost of acquisition 938 533
Carrying amount 938 533

MSEK 2021 2020

Balance at the beginning  
of the period 533 533
Carrying amount 533 533
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Proposed appropriation of earnings and the Board of Directors’  
and the Managing Director’s certification

The following earnings are at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting:
SEK

Share premium reserve 645,155,862
Accumulateddeficit –27,115,487
Income for the year 10,403,145
Total 628,443,520

SEK

Dividend to shareholders –
To be carried forward 628,443,520
Total 628,443,520

TheBoardofDirectorsandtheManagingDirectorandCEOherebycertifythattheconsolidatedfinan-
cial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
as adoptedbytheEuropeanUnionandgiveatrueandfairviewoftheGroup’sfinancialpositionand
performance.TheParentCompany’sfinancialstatementshavebeenpreparedinaccordancewithgen-
erallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesandgiveatrueandfairviewoftheParentCompany’sfinancial
positionandperformance.

The Board of Directors’ Report for the Group and Parent Company provides a true and fair overview 
ofthedevelopment,financialpositionandperformanceoftheGroupandParentCompany,and
describessignificantrisksanduncertaintiesfacedbytheParentCompanyandGroupcompanies.

TheGroup’sandParentCompany’sannualfinancialstatementswillbepresentedforadoptionbytheAnnualGeneralMeetingon4May2022.
Ourauditreportwassubmittedon24March2022.

Öhrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Ann-Christine Hägglund
Authorized Public Accountant

Otto Drakenberg
Interim managing director and CEO

Michael Parker
Board member

Øystein Engebretsen
Board member

Henrik Hjalmarsson
Board member

Cecilia Lannebo
Board member

Heléne Vibbleus
Board member

Johan Bygge
Chairman of the Board

Stockholm, 24 March 2022
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Auditor’s report
To the Annual General Meeting of Scandi Standard AB (publ), Corporate Identity Number 556921-0627

Report on the audit of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts

Opinions
We have audited the annual accounts and consolidated accounts 
ofScandiStandardAB(publ)fortheyear2021.Theannual
accounts and consolidated accounts of the company are included 
onpages51–98inthisdocument.

In our opinion, the annual accounts have been prepared in 
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in all 
materialrespects,thefinancialpositionoftheparentcompanyand
thegroupasof31December2021anditsfinancialperformance
and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with the Annual 
AccountsAct.Theconsolidatedaccountshavebeenpreparedin
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in all 
materialrespects,thefinancialpositionofthegroupasof
31December2021anditsfinancialperformanceandcashflowfor
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU, and the Annual 
AccountsAct.Thestatutoryadministrationreportisconsistentwith
theotherpartsoftheannualaccountsandconsolidatedaccounts.

We therefore recommend that the general meeting of share-
holdersadoptstheincomestatementandstatementoffinancial
positionfortheparentcompanyandthegroup.

Our opinions in this report on the annual accounts and consoli-
dated accounts are consistent with the content of the additional 
report that has been submitted to the parent company’s audit 
committeeinaccordancewiththeAuditRegulation(537/2014)
Article11.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Stand-
ards on Auditing (ISA) and generally accepted auditing standards 
inSweden.Ourresponsibilitiesunderthosestandardsarefurther
describedintheAuditor’sResponsibilitiessection.Weareinde-
pendent of the parent company and the group in accordance with 
professional ethics for accountants in Sweden and have otherwise 
fulfilledourethicalresponsibilitiesinaccordancewiththese
requirements.Thisincludesthat,basedonthebestofour
 knowledge and belief, no prohibited services referred to in the 
AuditRegulation(537/2014)Article5.1havebeenprovidedtothe
auditedcompanyoritscontrolledcompanieswithintheEU.

Webelievethattheauditevidencewehaveobtainedissufficient
andappropriatetoprovideabasisforouropinions.

Our audit approach
Scope of the audit
We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing 
therisksofmaterialmisstatementintheconsolidatedfinancial
statements.Inparticular,weconsideredwherethemanaging
director and board of directors made subjective judgements; for 
example,inrespectofsignificantaccountingestimatesthat
involved making assumptions and considering future events that 
areinherentlyuncertain.Asinallofouraudits,wealsoaddressed
the risk of management override of internal controls, including 
among other matters consideration of whether there was 
 evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement 
duetofraud.

Wetailoredthescopeofourauditinordertoperformsufficient
worktoenableustoprovideanopinionontheconsolidatedfinan-
cial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the 
group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in 
whichthegroupoperates.

Our group audit includes 15 reporting units operating in four 
countriesintheNordicregionandtheRepublicofIreland.Wehave
scoped our audit procedures for the reporting units within each 
country, taking into account the current control environment and 
business processes at the individual reporting unit level and also 
by assessing business performance reviews and group manage-
ment’soversightandfollow-upactivitiesoneachunit.

In establishing the overall group audit strategy and plan, we 
determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the 
reportingunitrespectivelybythecomponentauditor.Forthemost
significantentities,werequiredafullscopeauditoftheircomplete
financialinformation.

Thegroupconsolidation,financialstatementdisclosures,
a numberofcomplextransactionsandSwedishentitieswere
auditedbytheGroupengagementteam.Theseprocedures
include among others impairment test of goodwill and other 
intangibleassetswithindefinitelife,long-termincentiveprograms
formanagement,businesscombinationsandpensionobligations.

The entities in scope for the group audit procedures represent 
approximately90percentofgroupnetsales.

Ourauditiscarriedoutcontinuouslythroughouttheyear.For
the interim report covering the period 1 January to 30 September 
2021,weissueapubliclimitedreviewreport.Inconnectionwith
the issuance of the group’s interim reports for the third quarter and 
year-end, we report our observations to group management and 
theauditcommittee.Wealsoreportourmainobservationstothe
entireboardofdirectorswhentheannualfinancialstatements
havebeenprepared.

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materi-
ality.Anauditisdesignedtoobtainreasonableassurancewhether
thefinancialstatementsarefreefrommaterialmisstatement.
Misstatementsmayariseduetofraudorerror.Theyareconsid-
ered material if individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
thebasisoftheconsolidatedfinancialstatements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain 
quantitative thresholds for materiality, including the overall group 
materialityfortheconsolidatedfinancialstatementsasawhole.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to 
determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstate-
ments,bothindividuallyandinaggregateonthefinancialstate-
mentsasawhole.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters of the audit are those matters that, in our profes-
sionaljudgment,wereofmostsignificanceinourauditofthe
annualaccountsandconsolidatedaccountsofthecurrentperiod.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, the annual accounts and consoli-
dated accounts as a whole, but we do not provide a separate 
opiniononthesematters.
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Valuation of inventories 
Refer to Annual report note 17 and note 1 Accounting policies

Theinventoryoffinishedgoodsincludesfrozen,chilledandready-madechickenproductsand
amountstoSEK554millionon31December2021.AlargeshareofthisitemislocatedinSwedenand
Denmark.Inventoryoffinishedgoodsisasignificantassetintheconsolidatedbalancesheet.During
theyear,thecompanyimpairedtheinventoryoffinishedgoodsinanamountofSEK40million.

Theinventoryoffinishedgoodsismeasuredatthelowerofcostornetrealisablevalue.Thenet
realisablevalueistheestimatedsalesvaluelessexpectedsellingexpenses.

An assessment of the estimated sales value requires assumptions and assessments by manage-
ment that include subjective aspects, such as obsolescence and assessments of future events about 
demandandpriceperformance,whicharesubjecttouncertainties.Thevaluationoftheinventoryof
finishedgoodsisthereforeakeyauditmatterintheaudit.

Our audit included an assessment of the group’s accounting policy of provision for obsolescence, 
analyticalproceduresandinquirieswithcontrollersofinventoryaccounts.

Wehaveperformedspotchecksonproductcalculationsfortheinventoryoffinishedgoods,inward
and outward deliveries from inventory and taken part in stock-taking at all relevant inventory sites to 
verifytheexistence.

Our audit included the examination of the management’s assessments of obsolescence and 
impairment, by scrutinising the inertia of inventory, anticipated future selling prices for frozen products 
inparticularandproductssoldonexportmarkets.

We have performed spot checks to ensure the cost of sold products is not less than the net 
realisablevalueinthebeginningof2022.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Our audit included procedures to verify that business combinations have been recognised according 
to applicable accounting policies and that the impairment tests of goodwill and other intangible assets 
withindefinitelifehavebeenperformedbytheuseofgenerallyacceptedvaluationmethods,are
 mathematically correct, and by the use of reasonable assumptions of, among others, future cash-flow 
estimatesanddiscountrates.

Wehavealsoevaluatedthemodelforimpairmenttestsandsignificantassumptionsinimpairment
testing of future cash-flow estimates and discount rates for calculating the cash-generating unit’s 
valueinuse.

In our evaluation, we have compared with the historic business performance and the group’s fore-
castsandstrategicplanningaswellaswithexternaldatasourceswhenpossibleandrelevant.

We have evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis of changes in the assumptions that could 
leadtoimpairment.

We held discussions with management to ensure there are no material changes in the customer 
and supplier portfolio that could lead to a risk for impairment of intangible assets in customer and 
supplierrelationships.

We have assessed that disclosures in Note 6 and 11 relating to goodwill, brands, customer and 
supplierrelationshipsareappropriate.

Measurement of goodwill and intangible assets (brands, customer and supplier relationships) 
Refer to the Annual Report Note 6 Depreciation and impairment of Goodwill and intangible assets and 
Note 11 Intangible assets and Note 1 Accounting policies.

The majority of Scandi Standard’s intangible assets have been acquired externally, mostly through 
businesscombinations.Assetswithanindefiniteusefullifesuchasgoodwillandcertainbrandsare
notsubjecttoyearlydepreciation.Instead,anannualtestwillshowwhetherthecarryingamountfor
thecashgeneratingunitcanstillbesupported.

Amortisation with respect to acquired customer and supplier relationships and certain brands is 
conductedaccordingtoplanned.

In 2021, Scandi Standard changed its segment reporting and CGU from countries to Ready to Cook 
andReadytoEat.

ThecarryingvalueofgoodwillamountstoSEK921millionon31December2021.Intangibleassets
relatingtobrandswithanindefinitelifethatarenotsubjecttoamortisationcomprisevariousbrand
namesacquiredinSweden,DenmarkandNorway.Thecarryingvalueofsuchbrandsamountsto
SEK 327millionon31December2021.Goodwillandbrandsaresignificantassetsintheconsolidated
balancesheet.Noimpairmentchargehasbeenrecognisedagainstgoodwillorbrandwithindefinitelife
in2021.

Management’s estimates of the intangible assets’ potential to generate future cash flows and other 
assumptionsaredecisivewhenpreparingtheannualimpairmenttests.Giventhesignificantelements
of assumptionsandestimates,thisconstitutesakeyauditmatter.
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Other information than the annual accounts  
and consolidated accounts
This document also contains other information than the annual 
accounts and consolidated accounts and is found on pages 1–50 
and103–108and130.Otherinformationalsocontainstheremu-
neration report which we received before the date of our auditor’s 
report.

The board of directors and managing director are responsible 
forthisotherinformation.

Our opinion on the annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts does not cover this other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion regarding this other 
information.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts and con-
solidated accounts, our responsibility is to read the information 
identifiedaboveandconsiderwhethertheinformationismateri-
ally inconsistent with the annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts.Inthisprocedure,wealsotakeintoaccountourknowl-
edge otherwise obtained in the audit and assess whether the 
informationotherwiseappearstobemateriallymisstated.

If we, based on the work performed concerning this informa-
tion, conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information,wearerequiredtoreportthatfact.Wehavenothingto
reportinthisregard.

Responsibilities of the board of directors  
and the managing director
The board of directors and managing director are responsible for 
the preparation of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts 
and that they give a fair presentation in accordance with the 
Annual Accounts Act and, concerning the consolidated accounts, 
inaccordancewithIFRSasadoptedbytheEU.Theboardofdirec-
tors and managing director are also responsible for such internal 
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of annual accounts and consolidated accounts that are free from 
materialmisstatement,whetherduetofraudorerror.

In preparing the annual accounts and consolidated accounts, 
the board of directors and managing director are responsible for 
the assessment of the company’s and the group’s ability to con-
tinueasagoingconcern.Theydisclose,asapplicable,matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting.Thegoingconcernbasisofaccountingishowevernot
applied if the board of directors and managing director intend to 
liquidate the company, to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternativebuttodoso.

The audit committee shall, without prejudice to the board of 
directors’ responsibilities and tasks in general, among other 
things,overseethecompany’sfinancialreportingprocess.

Auditor’s Responsibilities
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the annual accounts and consolidated accounts as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
andtoissueanauditor’sreportthatincludesouropinions.Rea-
sonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaran-
tee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and generally 
accepted auditing standards in Sweden will always detect a mate-
rialmisstatementwhenitexists.Misstatementscanarisefrom
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the eco-
nomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual 
accountsandconsolidatedaccounts.

A further description of our responsibility for the audit of the 
annual accounts and consolidated accounts is available on Revis-
orspektionen’swebsite:www.revisorsinspektionen.se/revisorn-
sansvar.Thisdescriptionispartoftheauditor’sreport.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

Opinions
In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts, we have also audited the administration of the board of 
directors and managing director of Scandi Standard AB (publ) for 
the year 2021 and the proposed appropriations of the company’s 
profitorloss.

We recommend to the general meeting of shareholders that 
theprofitbeappropriatedinaccordancewiththeproposalinthe
statutory administration report and that the members of the board 
of directors and managing director be discharged from liability for 
thefinancialyear.

Basis for opinion
We conducted the audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditingstandardsinSweden.Ourresponsibilitiesunderthose

standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
section.Weareindependentoftheparentcompanyandthegroup
in accordance with professional ethics for accountants in Sweden 
andhaveotherwisefulfilledourethicalresponsibilitiesinaccord-
ancewiththeserequirements.

Webelievethattheauditevidencewehaveobtainedissuffi-
cientandappropriatetoprovideabasisforouropinions.

Responsibilities of the board of directors  
and the managing director
The board of directors and managing director are responsible for 
theproposalforappropriationsofthecompany’sprofitorloss.At
the proposal of a dividend, this includes an assessment of whether 
thedividendisjustifiableconsideringtherequirementswhichthe
company’s and the group’s type of operations, size and risks place 

on the size of the parent company’s and the group’ equity, consoli-
dationrequirements,liquidityandpositioningeneral.

The board of directors and managing director are responsible 
for the company’s organisation and the administration of the 
company’saffairs.Thisincludes,amongotherthings,continuous
assessmentofthecompany’sandthegroup’sfinancialsituation
and ensuring that the company’s organisation is designed so that 
theaccounting,managementofassetsandthecompany’sfinan-
cialaffairsotherwisearecontrolledinareassuringmanner.The
managing director shall manage the ongoing administration 
according to the board of directors’ guidelines and instructions 
and, among other matters, take measures that are necessary to 
fulfilthecompany’saccountinginaccordancewithlawandhandle
themanagementofassetsinareassuringmanner.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities
Our objective concerning the audit of the administration, and 
thereby our opinion about discharge from liability, is to obtain audit 
evidence to assess with a reasonable degree of assurance 
whether any member of the board of directors and managing 
director in any material respect:
• has undertaken any action or been guilty of any omission which 

can give rise to liability to the company, or
• in any other way has acted in contravention of the Companies 
Act,theAnnualAccountsActortheArticlesofAssociation.

Our objective concerning the audit of the proposed appropriations 
ofthecompany’sprofitorloss,andtherebyouropinionaboutthis,
is to assess with reasonable degree of assurance whether the 
proposalisinaccordancewiththeCompaniesAct.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards in Sweden will always detect actions 
or omissions that can give rise to liability to the company, or that 
theproposedappropriationsofthecompany’sprofitorlossare
notinaccordancewiththeCompaniesAct.

A further description of our responsibility for the audit of the 
administrationisavailableonRevisorspektionen’swebsite:www.
revisorninspektionen.se/revisornsansvar.Thisdescriptionispart
oftheauditor’sreport.

THE AUDITOR’S EXAMINATION OF THE ESEF REPORT
Opinions
In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts, we have also examined whether the board of directors 
and the managing director have prepared the annual accounts and 
the consolidated accounts in a format that facilitates uniform 
electronic reporting (the ESEF report) according to Chapter 16, 
Section 4 a of the Securities Market Act (2007:528) for Scandi 
StandardAB(publ)fortheyear2021.

Our examination and our opinion refer only to the statutory 
requirement.

In our opinion, the ESEF report 933f16b5cc32fba496f64601 
ec2b5735375877416fb89f66561939974542b69c has been 
preparedinaformatthatinallsignificantrespectsfacilitates
uniformelectronicreporting.

Basis for opinion
We have conducted our examination in accordance with FAR’s 
recommendation,RevR18ReviewoftheESEFreport.Ourrespon-

sibilities under this recommendation are further described in the 
Auditor’sResponsibilitiessection.WeareindependentofScandi
Standard AB (publ) in accordance with professional ethics for 
accountantsinSwedenandhaveotherwisefulfilledourethical
responsibilitiesinaccordancewiththeserequirements.

Webelievethattheevidencewehaveobtainedissufficientand
appropriatetoprovideabasisforouropinion.

Responsibilities of the board of directors  
and the managing director
The board of directors and the managing director are responsible 
for ensuring that the ESEF report has been prepared in accordance 
with Chapter 16, Section 4 a of the Securities Market Act 
(2007:528) and for ensuring that there is such internal control as 
the board of directors and the managing director regard as neces-
sary to prepare the ESEF report in a manner that is free from mate-
rialmisstatement,whetherduetofraudorerror.

Auditor’s Responsibilities
Our responsibility is to express an opinion with reasonable assur-
ance on whether, based on our examination, the ESEF report, in all 
significantrespects,hasbeenpreparedinaformatthatsatisfies
the requirements of Chapter 16, Section 4 a of the Securities Mar-
ketAct(2007:528).

RevR 18 requires that we plan and implement our audit proce-
dures to achieve reasonable assurance that the ESEF report has 
beenpreparedinaformatthatsatisfiestheserequirements

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with RevR 18 
and generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden will always 
detectamaterialmisstatementwhenitexists.Misstatements
may arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, indi-
vidually or when aggregated, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
theESEFreport.

TheauditingfirmappliesISQC1(InternationalStandardon
QualityControl)QualityControlforauditfirmsthatauditand
reviewfinancialreportsandperformotherassuranceengage-
ments, as well as related services and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented 
policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical require-
ments, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements.

The review involves performing various procedures to obtain 
evidence that the ESEF report has been prepared in a format that 

facilitates uniform electronic reporting of the annual accounts and 
consolidatedaccounts.Theauditorselectswhichproceduresare
to be performed, including assessing the risks of material mis-
statementinthereporting,whetherduetofraudorerror.Inmaking
these risk assessments, the auditor considers the parts of the 
internal control relevant to how the board of directors and the 
managing director prepare the basis for designing audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in view the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
internalcontrol.Thereviewalsoincludesanevaluationofthe
appropriateness and reasonableness of the board of directors’ and 
themanagingdirector’sassumptions.

The audit procedures primarily comprise a technical validation 
oftheESEFreport;i.e.whethertheESEFreportfulfilsthetechnical
specificationsstatedintheEuropeanCommission’sdelegated
regulation(EU)2019/815andcheckingthattheESEFreportcom-
plies with the audited annual accounts and consolidated 
accounts.

The review also includes an assessment of whether the ESEF 
report has been marked with iXBRL, which enables a fair and 
complete machine-readable version of the consolidated income 
statements, balance sheets and statements of equity, as well as 
thecashflowstatement.

Öhrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB was appointed auditor of 
Scandi Standard AB (publ) by the general meeting of the share-
holders on 7 May 2021 and has been the company’s auditor since 
9September2013.

Stockholm, 25 March 2022
Öhrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Ann-Christine Hägglund
Authorised Public Accountant
Auditor in Charge 
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MSEK, unless otherwise stated 2021 2020 2019 20182) 20171)

Net sales 10,101 9,940 9,891 8,797 7,101
EBITDA 598 699 748 662 525
Operating income 222 351 424 333 295
Income for the year 103 208 237 200 168
EPS, SEK 1.60 3.16 3.60 3.05 2.73

Adjusted EBITDAa) 589 756 753 696 520
Adjusted EBITDA-margina), % 5.8 7.6 7.6 7.9 7.3
Adjusted operating incomea) 213 410 431 367 290
Adjusted operating margina), % 2.1 4.1 4.4 4.1 4.1
Dividend, SEK 1.25 1.25 – 2.00 1.80

Operating cash flowb) 347 476 536 354 213
Capital expenditure, net 306 355 419 371 199
Return on capital employed  
(ROCE)a), % 5.2 8.4 10.3 9.5 9.9
Equity to assets ratio, % 30.0 29.4 27.7 26.5 28.2
Average number of employees 3,215 3,220 3,266 3,005 2,264

a)Adjustedfornon-comparableitems,seetabletotheright.
b)Reclassificationofcashfloweffectforleasingassetshasbeenmadefor2020and2019.
1)NotrecalculatedforeffectsinaccordancewithIFRS16.
2)Whenapplicable,thecomparativefiguresfor2018havebeenrestatedforchangedaccountingprinciplesaccording
toIFRS16Leases.

Non-comparable items in EBITDA a)

and operating income 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Earn out Debt adjustmentb) 9 –52 – – 30
Restructuring of productionc) – –7 –7 –23 –
Transaction costsd) – – – –11 –25
Total non-comparable items  
in EBITDA 9 –59 –7 –34 5

a)ScandiStandardimplementedanewdefinitionfortreatmentofitemsaffectingcomparabilityinthefirstquarter
2021whichimpliesastricterclassificationofsuchitems.Financialinformationfortheyears2020to2017hasbeen
restated related to items affecting comparability for the alternative performance measures adjusted EBITDA and 
adjustedoperatingincome(adjustedEBIT).

b)IncomeofMSEK22relatedtodecreasedearn-outdebtresultingfromthefinalpurchasepricepaymentrelatingto
the acquisition of Manor Farm and in last year an adjustment of the earn-out debt attributable to the acquisition of 
ManorFarmofMSEK52.Inaddition,fortheyear,costofMSEK–13resultingfromthefinalpurchasepricepayment
relatingtotheacquisitionoftheFinnishbusiness.For2017,revaluationofcontingentconsiderationinconnection
withtheacquisitionoftheremaining20%ofthesharesinSødamsinDenmark.

c) For 2020, costs due to restructuring of a Swedish subsidiary during the fourth quarter 2020, with terminating a long-
termcontractandwrite-downsofassets.ClosingofhatcheryinFinlandinthesecondquarter2019andchangeof
productioninSwedenduring2018.

d) Transaction costs for completed and non-completed acquisitions, as well as costs related to the formation of the 
ScandiStandardGroup.

Five-year summary
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Segment information by quarter
Ready-to-cook, MSEK Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 2019 Q1 2020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 2021
Net sales 1,879 1,883 1,900 1,806 7,467 1,899 1,912 1,983 1,824 7,619 1,938 1,943 1,942 1,789 7,611
Adjusted EBITDA 151 155 165 150 621 138 170 175 139 622 147 142 88 47 424
Depreciations –52 –52 –53 –53 –210 –57 –60 –58 –65 –240 –65 –64 –69 –68 –266
Adjusted EBITA 99 103 112 97 411 81 111 117 74 382 82 77 20 –21 158
Amortizations –12 –12 –13 –12 –50 –13 –13 –12 –12 –50 –13 –12 –12 –13 –50
Adjusted EBIT 87 92 99 84 362 68 98 105 63 333 69 65 7 –32 110
Non-comparable items – –7 – – –7 – – – –7 –7 – – – – –
EBIT* 87 85 99 84 354 68 98 105 56 326 69 65 7 –32 110
Adjusted EBITDA margin, % 8.0% 8.2% 8.7% 8.3% 8.3% 7.3% 8.9% 8.8% 7.6% 8.2% 7.6% 7.3% 4.5% 2.6% 5.6%
Adjusted EBITA margin, % 5.3% 5.5% 5.9% 5.4% 5.5% 4.2% 5.8% 5.9% 4.0% 5.0% 4.2% 4.0% 1.0% –1.1% 2.1%
Adjusted EBIT margin, % 4.6% 4.9% 5.2% 4.7% 4.8% 3.6% 5.1% 5.3% 3.4% 4.4% 3.6% 3.3% 0.4% –1.8% 1.4%
EBIT margin, % 4.6% 4.5% 5.2% 4.7% 4.7% 3.6% 5.1% 5.3% 3.0% 4.3% 3.6% 3.3% 0.4% –1.8% 1.4%

*Includesincomefromassociatedcompanies.

Ready-to-eat, MSEK Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 2019 Q1 2020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 2021
Net sales 489 498 542 514 2,042 476 426 532 476 1,911 444 536 589 543 2,112
Adjusted EBITDA 37 34 42 25 139 26 21 55 39 141 38 47 58 44 187
Depreciations –12 –12 –14 –14 –52 –12 –12 –11 –11 –47 –12 –12 –12 –12 –49
Adjusted EBITA 25 22 28 11 87 13 9 44 28 94 26 35 46 31 138
Amortizations –1 –1 –1 –1 –2 – – – – – – – – – –
Adjusted EBIT 25 21 28 11 85 13 9 44 29 95 26 35 46 32 138
Non-comparable items – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
EBIT* 25 21 28 11 85 13 9 44 29 95 26 35 46 32 138
Adjusted EBITDA margin, % 7.7% 6.8% 7.8% 4.9% 6.8% 5.4% 5.0% 10.4% 8.2% 7.4% 8.6% 8.7% 9.8% 8.1% 8.8%
Adjusted EBITA margin, % 5.2% 4.3% 5.2% 2.2% 4.2% 2.8% 2.2% 8.2% 5.8% 4.9% 5.9% 6.5% 7.8% 5.8% 6.5%
Adjusted EBIT margin, % 5.1% 4.2% 5.2% 2.1% 4.2% 2.8% 2.2% 8.2% 6.1% 5.0% 5.9% 6.5% 7.8% 5.8% 6.6%
EBIT margin, % 5.1% 4.2% 5.2% 2.1% 4.2% 2.8% 2.2% 8.2% 6.1% 5.0% 5.9% 6.5% 7.8% 5.8% 6.6%

*Includesincomefromassociatedcompanies.
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Other, MSEK Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 2019 Q1 2020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 2021
Net sales 91 91 99 100 381 103 110 106 92 411 88 85 102 103 377
Adjusted EBITDA 6 7 4 1 18 2 5 5 0 11 –1 0 5 11 15
Depreciations –2 –3 –1 –1 –7 –1 –1 –1 –1 –4 0 –1 –1 0 –3
Adjusted EBITA 4 4 3 0 11 1 4 4 –1 7 –2 –1 5 11 13
Amortizations – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
Adjusted EBIT 4 4 3 0 11 1 4 4 –1 7 –2 –1 5 11 13
Non-comparable items – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
EBIT* 4 4 3 0 11 1 4 4 –1 7 –2 –1 5 11 13
Adjusted EBITDA margin, % 6.5% 7.3% 4.3% 0.8% 4.6% 1.8% 4.3% 4.4% –0.5% 2.6% –1.5% –0.1% 5.4% 10.7% 4.0%
Adjusted EBITA margin, % 4.3% 4.5% 2.9% 0.1% 2.9% 0.7% 3.3% 3.6% –1.2% 1.7% –2.0% –1.0% 4.5% 10.3% 3.3%
Adjusted EBIT margin, % 4.3% 4.5% 2.9% 0.1% 2.9% 0.7% 3.3% 3.6% –1.2% 1.7% –2.0% –1.0% 4.6% 10.5% 3.4%
EBIT margin, % 4.3% 4.5% 2.9% 0.1% 2.9% 0.6% 3.3% 3.6% –1.2% 1.7% –2.0% –1.0% –8.4% 10.5% –0.1%

*Includesincomefromassociatedcompanies.

Group Cost, MSEK Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 2019 Q1 2020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 2021
Net sales – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
Adjusted EBITDA –5 –8 –5 –7 –24 –6 –4 –3 –5 –18 –3 –17 –12 –4 –37
Depreciations 0 0 0 –1 –2 –1 –2 –2 –3 –8 –3 –3 –3 –3 –11
Adjusted EBITA –5 –9 –5 –8 –26 –7 –6 –6 –7 –26 –6 –20 –15 –7 –48
Amortizations – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
Adjusted EBIT –5 –9 –5 –8 –26 –7 –6 –6 –7 –26 –6 –20 –15 –7 –48
Non-comparable items – – – – – – – –31 –21 –52 – –4 –13 26 9
EBIT* –5 –9 –5 –8 –26 –7 –6 –37 –28 –78 –6 –24 –28 19 –39
Adjusted EBITDA margin, % – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
Adjusted EBITA margin, % – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
Adjusted EBIT margin, % – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –
EBIT margin, % – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

*Includesincomefromassociatedcompanies.

Segment information by quarter, cont.
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TOTAL, MSEK Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 2019 Q1 2020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 2021
Net sales 2,458 2,472 2,541 2,420 9,891 2,479 2,448 2,621 2,393 9,940 2,469 2,564 2,632 2,435 10,101
Adjusted EBITDA 190 187 207 169 753 159 192 232 173 756 180 171 139 98 589
Depreciations –67 –67 –69 –68 –271 –72 –75 –72 –80 –299 –80 –80 –84 –84 –328
Adjusted EBITA 123 120 138 101 482 87 117 159 93 457 100 92 55 14 261
Amortizations –13 –13 –13 –13 –52 –13 –13 –12 –12 –50 –13 –12 –12 –12 –50
Adjusted EBIT 110 108 125 87 431 75 105 147 83 410 88 79 43 3 213
Non-comparable items – –7 – – –7 – – –31 –28 –59 – –4 –13 26 9
EBIT* 110 101 125 87 424 75 105 116 56 351 88 75 30 30 222
Adjusted EBITDA margin, % 7.7% 7.6% 8.2% 7.0% 7.6% 6.4% 7.8% 8.8% 7.2% 7.6% 7.3% 6.7% 5.3% 4.0% 5.8%
Adjusted EBITA margin, % 5.0% 4.9% 5.4% 4.2% 4.9% 3.5% 4.8% 6.1% 3.9% 4.6% 4.1% 3.6% 2.1% 0.6% 2.6%
Adjusted EBIT margin, % 4.5% 4.4% 4.9% 3.6% 4.4% 3.0% 4.3% 5.6% 3.5% 4.1% 3.5% 3.1% 1.6% 0.1% 2.1%
EBIT margin, % 4.5% 4.1% 4.9% 3.6% 4.3% 3.0% 4.3% 4.4% 2.3% 3.5% 3.5% 2.9% 1.1% 1.2% 2.2%

*Includesincomefromassociatedcompanies.

Segment information by quarter, cont.
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Alternative KPIs*

From income statement, MSEK 2021 2020

Net sales A 10,101 9,940

Income for the year B 103 208
+ Reversal of tax on income for the year 37 52
Income after finance net C 140 260
+Reversaloffinancialincomeandexpenses,net 81 91
Operating income D 222 351
+ Reversal of depreciation, amortization  
and impairment 378 350
+ Reversal of share of income of associates –2 –2
EBITDA E 598 699

Non-comparable items in income for the period F –9 59
Adjusted operating income for the period D+F 213 410
Adjusted operating margin, % (D+F)/A 2.1 4.1
Non-comparable items in EBITDA G –9 57
Adjusted EBITDA E+G 589 756
Adjusted EBITDA-margin, % (E+G)/A 5.8 7.6

TheScandiStandardGroupusesthebelowalternativeKPIs.TheGroupbelievesthatthepresentedalternativeKPIsareusefulwhenreadingthefinancialstatementsinordertounderstandtheGroup’sability 
togenerateresultsbeforeinvestments,assesstheGroup’sopportunitiestodividendsandstrategicinvestmentsandtoassesstheGroup’sabilitytofulfilitsfinancialobligations.

From statement of financial position, MSEK Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Total assets 6,494 6,385
Non-current non-interest-bearing liabilities
−Deferredtaxliabilities –178 –166
−Othernon-currentliabilities –65 –64
Total non-current interest-bearing liabilities –243 –230

Current non-interest-bearing liabilities
Trade payables –1,291 –1,163
Tax payables –55 –29
Other current liabilities –179 –342
Accrued expenses and prepaid income –433 –378
Total current non-interest-bearing liabilities –1,958 –1,912
Capital employed 4,293 4,243
Cash and cash equivalents –350 –413
Operating capital 3,943 3,830

Average capital employed H 4,268 4,204
Average operating capital I 3,887 3,901

Operating income, LTM 222 351
Adjusted operating income, LTM J 213 410
Finance income K 2 0

Adjusted return on capital employed, % (ROCE) (J+K)/H 5.2 8.4
Adjusted return on operating capital, % (ROC) J/I 5.7 9.0

Interest-bearing liabilities 
Non-current interest-bearing liabilities 1,884 1,863
Non-current leasing liabilities 367 401
Derivatives instruments 11 10
Current interest-bearing liabilities 68 73
Total interest-bearing liabilities 2,300 2,346
Cash and cash equivalents –350 –413
Net interest-bearing debt 1,980 1,933

From statement of cash flows, MSEK 2021 2020

Operating activities

Operating income 222 351
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 378 350
Share of income of associates –2 –2
EBITDA 598 699

Non-comparable items in EBITDA G –9 57
Adjusted EBITDA 589 756
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Adjusted income for the period
Income for the period adjusted for non- 
comparableitems.

CAGR
Yearlyaveragegrowth.

Capital employed
Total assets less non-interest-bearing liabilities, 
includingdeferredtaxliabilities.

Average capital employed 
 Average capital employed as of the two last 
years.

Adjusted return on capital employed (ROCE)
Adjusted operating income last twelve months 
(LTM) plus interest income divided by average 
capitalemployed.

COGS
Costofgoodssold.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Income for the period, attributable to the share-
holders,divided bytheaveragenumberof
shares.

Adjusted Earnings per share (EPS)
Adjusted income for the period divided by 
averagenumberof shares.

EBIT 
Operatingincome.

Adjusted operating income (Adj. EBIT) 
Operating income (EBIT) adjusted for non- 
comparableitems.

EBITA
Operating income before amortization and 
impairmentandshareofincomeofassociates.

Adjusted EBITA
Operating income before amortization and 
impairment and share of income of associates 
adjustedfornon-comparableitems.

Adjusted EBITA-margin
Adjusted EBITA as a percentage of net sales

EBITDA
Operating income before depreciation, amortiza-
tion and impairment and share of income of 
associates.

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted operating income before depreciation, 
 amortization and impairment and share of 
incomeof associatesadjustedfornon-
comparableitems.

EBITDA-margin 
EBITDAaspercentofnetsales.

Adjusted EBITDA-margin
AdjustedEBITDAasapercentageofnetsales.

Equity per share
Equity attributable to the shareholders, divided 
by the  outstanding number of shares at the end 
oftheperiod.

Net interest-bearing debt
Interest-bearing debt excluding arrangement 
feeslesscashandcashequivalents.

Net sales
Net sales is gross sales less sales discounts and 
jointmarketingallowances.

Non-comparable items
Transactions or events that rarely occur or are 
unusual in the ordinary business operations, and 
henceareunlikelytooccuragain.

Operating capital
Total assets less cash and cash equivalents and 
non- interest-bearing liabilities, including 
deferredtaxliabilities.

Average operating capital
Average operating capital as of the last two 
years.

Adjusted return on operating capital (ROC)
Adjusted operating income last twelve months 
(R12M)dividedby averageoperatingcapital.

Operating cash flow
Cash flow from operating activities excluding 
paidfinanceitemsnetandpaidcurrentincome
tax.withtheadditionofnetcapitalexpenditure
andnetincreaseinleasingassets.

Adjusted operating cash flow 
Cashflowadjustedfornon-comparableitems.

Operating margin (EBIT margin)
Operatingincomeaspercentofnetsales.

Adjusted operating margin (Adj. EBIT margin) 
Adjustedoperatingincome(Adj.EBIT)asper-
centof net sales.

Other operating expenses 
Other operating expenses include marketing, 
grouppersonnelandotheradministrativecosts.

Other operating revenues
Other operating revenue is revenue not related to 
sales of chicken, instead such as rent of excess 
land/buildingstoother usersandpaymentby
non-employeesforuseofthe company’s
canteens.

Production costs
Production costs include direct and indirect 
personnel costs related to production and other 
production-relatedcosts.

Raw materials and consumables 
Costs of raw materials and other consumables 
include the  purchase costs of live chicken and 
otherrawmaterialssuch aspackagingetc.

Return on capital employed (ROCE)
Operating income last twelve months (R12M) 
plus interest income divided by average capital 
employed.

Return on equity
Income for the period last twelve months 
(R12M)dividedbyaveragetotalequity.

Return on operating capital (ROC)
Operating income last twelve months (R12M) 
dividedby averageoperatingcapital.

RTC
Ready-to-cook.Productsthatrequirecooking.

RTE
Ready-to-eat.Productsthatarecookedandmay
beconsumeddirectlyorafterheating-up.

R12M
Rollingtwelvemonths.

Specific Explanatory items (exceptional items)
Transactions or events that do not qualify as 
non-comparable items as they are likely to occur 
fromtimetotimeintheordinarybusiness.
Disclosure about these items are useful to 
understand and assess the performance of the 
business.

Working capital
Total inventory and operating receivables less 
non-interest-bearingcurrentliabilities.

Definitions
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About the Sustainability Report
Our goal and ambition is to continuously develop our work 
and the reporting of our responsibility and contribution 
to ensuresustainabledevelopment.Weformulateour
 sustainability report based on statutory requirements and 
accepted frameworks, in order to provide credible, relevant 
andcomprehensiveinformationtoourstakeholders.

Sustainability report in compliance  
with the Annual Accounts Act
Scandi Standard is subject to the requirement for sustain-
ability reporting in compliance with the Swedish Annual 
AccountsAct.Togetherwiththissection,ourstatutory
Sustainability Report includes, Operations and value chain 
on pages 23–26, Our responsibility on pages 27–47 and 
Risksandriskmanagementonpages57–61.TheSustain-
ability report includes all of Scandi Standard’s subsidiary 
companies.TheSustainabilityReportaddressesScandi
Standard’s material sustainability issues and risks, 
describing our work on them and the related internal 
steeringdocuments.

In this year’s reporting process, we have also taken into 
account the more stringent requirements for climate 
reporting that will apply in the future, and taken note of 
the guidelinesfromTCFDandtheEUfornon-financial
reportingpertainingtoclimate-relatedinformation.In
2021, we have also reported to the CDP for the entire 
Group in terms of climate and biodiversity and reported in 
linewithEU’snewtaxonomy.

GRI SRS and Global Compact
Scandi Standard’s sustainability report for 2021 has been 
prepared in compliance with the Global Reporting Initiative’s 
standards,Coreoption.ReadmoreaboutGRIat
www.globalreporting.org.Atableofcontentsappearsinthe
following pages in the form of a GRI index, which indicates 

mandatoryandselectedGRIinformationthatis includedin
thereport,aswellasreadingreferencestowheretofindthe
information.Forcertainindicators,reportingand/orcom-
mentsareprovideddirectlyintheindextable.TheGRIreport
conatins an own material topic, animal welfare, where three 
own disclosures are made 1) use of antibiotics (share of 
treated flocks), 2) feet health, which is an animal welfare 
indicatorwhere100feetperflockisscoredbetween0–2.
The foot score is reported between 0–200, with a lower 
numberindicatingabetterfoothealth.,3)feedefficiencyis
measringaveragevolumeoffeed(kg)perkiloliveweight.
Thisiscurrentlyonlyreportedforconventionalbroilers.
The indexalsocontainsreferencestotheprinciplesinthe
Global Compact initiative, which Scandi Standard signed 
on toduringtheyear.Thisreportthereforerepresentsour
CommunicationonProgressto GlobalCompact.

Reported information and data refer to Scandi 
 Standard’s operations in their entirety, where nothing 
else isstated.

Business model
For Scandi Standard, sustainable development is about 
promoting responsible value creation over time for  owners, 
customers,consumersandotherstakeholders.Ourcorpo-
rate vision, “Better Chicken for a Better Life” is to contribute 
to the joy of food and a sustainable food supply, by provid-
ing healthy, innovative chicken products that are produced 
inaresponsibleandresource-efficientway.Fora more
detailed description of our vision, mission, values, opera-
tionsandvaluechain,seepages1–3and23–26.

Material sustainability aspects and risks
In2017ScandiStandardidentifiedmaterialsustainability
aspects and risks by compiling an initial materiality analy-
siswhichwasupdatedduring2021.Theprocesshasbeen

internal and external with representation from all parts of 
the business as well as the perspective of relevant stake-
holders.Themajorityofgroupmanagementtogetherwith
the country sustainability owners have been involved 
amongst others, and the formal decision was taken in the 
sustainabilitysteeringcommitteeasdescribedonpage28.
The board has been involved through the reporting pro-
cess.Itwasbasedontheimpactofoperationsthroughthe
value chain, stakeholder expectations, our mission and our 
strategic goals, but the objective has also been to consider 
ScandiStandard’simpactonsocietyatlarge.Theinput
vales for this work included the accumulated knowledge 
and existing documentation from stakeholder dialogues 
and risk analyses, along with market analyses and external 
frameworks such as the Global Compact initiative and 
Agenda2030aswellasrelevantinvestorratings.Theresult
is presented in our updated version of Scandi Way on page 
29,whereourtwelvemostmaterialquestionswereraised.

The materiality analysis is a dynamic process, which 
is beingcontinuouslychecked,revisedandnuanced
in relationtothecompany’sordinarymarketandrisk
 analyses and in dialogue with investors, customers and 
other stakeholders We think that it is positive that 
demands from shareholders and investors are increasing 
in terms of measurable goals and KPIs, as well as for clear 
reporting of risk management, for example, concerning 
the climate,supplierrelationshipsandanimalhealth.
The tableonpage111providesanoverviewofScandi
Standard’s sustainability impact, based on the sus-
tainability areas in the Swedish Annual Accounts Act as 
well as the results of the materiality analysis and risk 
mappingfortheGroup.
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Stakeholder dialogue
Scandi Standard’s priority stakeholder groups include 
owners and investors, employees, customers and con-
sumers,alongwithsuppliersandpartners.Thedialogue
takes place with these groups on an ongoing basis 
through regular activities and interfaces, and through 
specialforumsandinitiativescoveringarangeofissues.
We see a growing demand and need for a detailed discus-
sion with owners and investors concerning the ESG per-
spective,andwehadadirectdialoguewithseveralfinan-
cial companies during the year, both existing and potential 
owners,aboutourwork,ourgoalsandriskmanagement.
We have also developed our method of working to stay 
better updated in terms of the information that is required 
by the various ESG indices, and ensure we provide a 
description of governance and performance based on this 
inamoreexpeditiousway.Anemployeesurveyhasbeen
conductedthatcoveredallofficeemoployees,with
 follow-up of, among other factors, the work environment, 
engagementandcompanyvalues.

As far as customers and consumers are concerned, the 
dialogue with them is held primarily on a local basis and is 
basedontherelevantcompaniesandmarkets.

A group-wide effort related to stakeholder dialouge and 
engagement with the goal of creating a common ways of 
working including targets, priorities and strategies has 
beeninitiated.

Sustainability policies
Scandi Standard’s Code of Conduct constitutes the 
Group’s general sustainability policy and applies to every 
manager and employee and all parts of our company, 
as wellastomembersoftheBoard.TheCodeofConduct
states that environmental, economic and social responsi-
bility is an integral part of the business strategy and 
describes the approaches and guidelines that apply 
to materialsustainabilityaspectsintheareasofenviron-
ment, social conditions, human resources, respect for 
humanrightsandanti-corruption.ScandiStandard’s
 Supplier Code of Conduct imposes corresponding require-

ments on the Group’s suppliers and has been updated in 
theyear.Additionally,ScandiStandardhasanumberof
Group policies that clarify and specify stances and frame-
works across a range of important areas: Work environ-
ment, Health and Safety, Clean Label for products, 
AntibioticsandAnimalWelfare.

Whistle-blowing function
A whistle-blowing function has been set up, in collabora-
tion with an external company, to enable the anonymous 
reporting of possible violations in relation to the Code of 
Conduct.Afewcaseswerereportedandinvestigatedby
the special committee over the course of the year, related 
to employee and employment law related issues, and 
policycompliance.However,noneofthesecasesproved
tobeanactualviolation.
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Sustainability aspect Scandi Standard’s impact Comment/reference regarding governance, risk management and KPIs

Social conditions Health (for employees and 
consumers)

Food safety and hygiene, Animal 
welfare (product responsibility)

Responsibility in the supply chain

Description: Page 30–31 Safe and healthy products, Page 32–34 Scandi Standard as a workplace, and 37–41 
Chickens in good health

Risks and risk management: Pages 57–61
Policy: CodeofConduct,sectionSocialconditions,Environment/Animalwelfare,andProducts. 

SupplierCodeofConduct.PoliciesforHealthandSafety,CleanLabel,Antibiotics,AnimalWelfare
KPIs: Pages 31, 33, 40

Environment Climateandresourceefficiency
(energy, transport, water and 
waste management in 
production,feedefficiency,etc.)

Description: Page43–46Climateandresource-efficiencyatallstages
Risks and risk management: Pages 57–61
Policy: CodeofConduct,sectionEnvironment.Permitsandnotificationobligationincompliancewithnational

and local environmental legislation for each plant
KPIs: Pages 44–45

Human resources Good workplace (work 
environment, health, safety, 
gender equality and diversity)

Description: Page 32–34 An attractive and healthy workplace
Risks and risk management: Pages 57–61
Policy:  Code of Conduct, Social conditions section (including human rights, working conditions and work 

environment).NewhealthandsafetypolicyDiversityandequalitypolicy
KPIs:  Page 33

Respect for human 
rights

Good workplace

Responsibility in the supply chain

Description: Page 35 Responsible supplier relations, Page 32–34 An attractive and healthy workplace
Risks and risk management: Pages 57–61
Policy: Code of Conduct, Social conditions section (including human rights, working conditions and work 

environment).DiversityandequalitypolicySupplierCodeofConduct
KPIs: Pages34–35.Follow-upiscarriedoutthroughtheemployeesurveyaswellasthroughfollow-upand

deviation reporting concerning the Code of Conduct and Supplier Code of Conduct
Anti-corruption Good business ethics Description:  Ethical business risks occur in relationships with customers, suppliers and partners, as well as in the 

subcontractor chain
Risks and risk management: Pages 57–61
Policy: Code of Conduct, Business Ethics section, Supplier Code of Conduct
KPIs:  Page 34 – 35 Follow-up and deviation reporting regarding the Code of Conduct and the Supplier Code of 

Conduct, supported by internal governance and the whistle-blowing function

TotalturnoverfortheGroupamountedto10101MSEK(p.62,“Netsales”),totalCapex306MSEK(p.52,“Net
capitalexpenditure”)andtotalOpexaccordingtotheTaxonomydefinition467MSEK(totalOpexreportedonp.62,
“Otheroperatingexpenses”).

Forthefirsttwoenvironmentalobjectives,climatechangemitigationandclimatechangeadaptation,theeco-
nomicactivitiesdefinedinthedelegatedactsdoesnotcorrespondtoanyactivitiesofScandiStandard’sturnover.
However,asmallershareofCapexandOpexarecovered.WithregardstoCapex,theeligibleshareofactivitiesis
associatedwithconstructionofnewbuildings,specificallythenewproductionfacilityinLieto,Finland.Opexthat
isconsideredtaxonomyeligibleincludeoperationalcostsassociatedtoownbuildings.

Scandi Standard is closely following the developments of the taxonomy, including a potential future inclusion of 
agricultural and food production economic activities as well as the delegated acts referring to the four upcoming 
environmentalobjectives.ToensuretaxonomyalignmentifadditionalofScandiStandard’seconomicactivites
wouldbeconsideredeligible,wearecontinouslyworkingtodonosignificantharm(DNSH)toanyofthesixenvi-
ronmentalobjectivesaswellasensuringtheactivitiesmeetminimumsafeguardsasdefinedinthetaxonomy.

Taxonomy eligible activities

Total, MSEK
Share of Taxonomy- 

non-eligible activities, %
Share of Taxonomy- 
eligible activities, %

Turnover 10,101 100% 0%
Capex 306 92% 8%
Opex 467 91% 9%
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GRI Index
GRI Standards Content Index, Core Option 

GRI 102 (2016) General disclosures

Disclosure Description Page Comments
UN Global  
Compact principle

Organizational profile 
102-1 Name of the organization Scandi Standard AB
102-2 Business model, brands, products and services 2, 19–22
102-3 Location of headquarters Stockholm
102-4 Location of operations 2, 23
102-5 Ownership and legal form 48–49
102-6 Markets served 2, 23
102-7 Scale of the organization 2, 5, 18
102-8 Information on employees and other workers 32–33 Numbers of employees by type of contract and 

typeofemploymentnotreported.Mostlyemploy-
eeshavepermanent andfull-timecontracts.There
arenomaterialseasonaldifferences.Theshareof
consultantsvariesbetweencountries.

3

102-9 Supply chain 23–26, 35
102-10 Significantchangestotheorganizationanditssupplychain 

during the reporting period
Nosignificantchanges

102-11 Precationary principle approach Applied in internal environmental, health and 
safety work

7

102-12 External initiatives 28 1
102-13 Membership of associations Nospecificmemberships
Strategy
102-14 Statement from CEO 6–7
Ethics och integrity
102-16 Values, principles, norms of behavior 1, 34 1–10
Governance
102-18 Governance structure 116–130
Stakeholder engagement
102-40 List of stakeholder groups 28, 109–110
102-41 Collective bargaining agreements 32–34 Data is missing, agreements and trade union rela-

tions are handled within respective companies 
basedonnationalconditions.

3, 6

102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 109–110
102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 109–110
102-44 Key topics and concerns raised 109–110
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Disclosure Description Page Comments
UN Global  
Compact principle

Reporting practice 
102-45 Entitiesincludedintheconsolidatedfinancialreport 97
102-46 Definingreportcontentandtopicboundaries 109–110
102-47 Material topics 29
102-48 Restatement of information 33 LTIFR at group level has been adjusted for 2020 due 

to lag in reporting 
102-49 Changes in reporting No changes
102-50 Reporting period 1 January–31 December 2021
102-51 Date of most recent report 23 April 2020
102-52 Reporting cycle Annual
102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the report scandistandard.com/contact
102-54 Claims if reporting in accordance with the GRI 109–110
102-55 GRI-index 112–114
102-56 External assurance 115

Specific disclosures (relevant to Scandi Standard)

Disclosure Description Page Comments
UN Global  
Compact principle

GRI 200 Economic impact
201 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Economic performance 5, 63 Own operations
201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed 5, 63
201-2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due to climate change 44, 60
205 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Anti-corruption 34–35 Full value chain
205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to corruption 34–35
205-2 Communication and training about anti-corruption policies and procedures 34–35 Employees
205-3 Confirmedincidentsofcorruptionandactionstaken 34 None
GRI 300 Environment 
302 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Energy 45 Own operations
302-1 Energy consumption within the organization 45
302-3 Energy intensity 45
303 (2018) 101-1, 2, 3 Water and Effluents 45 Own operations
303-5 Water consumption 45
305 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Emissions 43–46 Full value chain
305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions 45
305-2 Indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions 45
305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions 45 Distribution and transports
305-4 GHG emissions intensity 45
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Disclosure Description Page Comments
UN Global  
Compact principle

GRI 400 Social impact
403 (2018) 101-1, 2, 3 Occupational Health and Safety 32–33 Ownoperations.Theareaismanagedandmeas-

ured at local level, the report describes the group 
governance systems which means omissions for 
disclosures 403-2 until 403-7

403-1 Occupational health and safety management system 32–33
403-2 Hazardidentification,riskassessment,andincidentinvestigation 32–33
403-3 Occupational health services 32–33
403-4 Worker participation, consultation, and communication on 

occupational health and safety 
32–33

403-5 Worker training on occupational health and safety 32–33
403-6 Promotion of worker health 32–33
403-7 Prevention and mitigation of occupational health and safety impacts directly linked 

by business relationships
32–33

403-8 Workers covered by an occupational health and safety management system 32–33 All28percentarecoveredbyexternallycertified
systems, other internal management systems are 
notcertified

403-9 Work-related injuries 32–33 Employees
405 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Diversity and equal opportunity 32–33 Own operations
405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees 33, 78, 127 Reporting limited to gender; age is reported for the 

board and group management
Own disclosure Inclusive culture 32–33
406 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Incidents and discrimination and corrective actions taken 34 Own operations
406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken 34 Noconfirmedincidents
414 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Supplier Social Assessment 35 Suppliers
414-1 New suppliers that were screened using social criteria 35 Reporting includes all suppliers which have signed 

the updated Supplier Code of Conduct
416 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Customer Health and Safety 30–31 Own operations and customers
416-1 Assessment of the health and safety impacts of product and service categories 30–31
416-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning the health and safety impacts of products 

and services
30–31

417 (2016) 101-1, 2, 3 Marketing and labeling 31 Own operations and customers
417-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service information and labe-

ling
31

Own material  
topic 101-1, 2, 3

Animal health and welfare 37–41 Own operations and suppliers

Own disclosure Use of antibiotics 40 Own operations and suppliers 
Own disclosure Feet health 40 Own operations and suppliers 
Own disclosure Feedefficiency 40 Own operations and suppliers 
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To the annual general meeting of Scandi Standard AB (publ), corporate identity number 556921-0627

Introduction
We have been engaged by the Board of Scandi Standard AB (publ) to undertake a limited assurance of 
ScandiStandard’sSustainabilityReportfortheyear2021.Thecompanyhasdefinedthescopeofits
sustainabilityreportonpage109whichalsoconstitutesthestatutorysustainabilityreport.

Responsibilities of the Board and Group Management
The Board of Directors and Group Management are responsible for the preparation of the Sustain-
ability Report, including the statutory sustainability report, in accordance with the applicable criteria 
andtheAnnualAccountsAct.ThecriteriaaredescribedonpagexxoftheSustainabilityReportand
consists of the parts of the GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards which are applicable to the Sustain-
ability Report, as well as the accounting and calculation principles that Scandi Standard has devel-
oped.Thisresponsibilityalsoincludestheinternalcontrolwhichisdeemednecessarytoestablisha
sustainabilityreportthatdoesnotcontainmaterialmisstatement,whetherduetofraudorerror.

Responsibilities of the auditor
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Sustainability Report based on the limited assur-
anceprocedureswehaveperformedandtoprovideastatementonthestatutorysustainabilityreport.
Our assignment is limited to the historical information that is presented and thus does not include 
future-orientedinformation.

We conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3000 Assurance 
EngagementsOtherthanAuditsorReviewsofHistoricalFinancialInformation.Alimitedassurance
engagement consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for the preparation of the 
SustainabilityReportandapplyinganalyticalandotherlimitedassuranceprocedures.Wehavecon-
ducted our examination regarding the statutory sustainability report in accordance with FAR’s recom-
mendationRevR12,theAuditor’sOpinionontheStatutorySustainabilityReport.Alimitedassurance
engagement and an examination according to RevR 12 have a different focus and a considerably 
smaller scope compared to the focus and scope of an audit in accordance with International Stand-
ardsonAuditingandgenerallyacceptedauditingstandardsinSweden.

TheauditfirmappliesISQC1(InternationalStandardonQualityControl)andaccordinglymaintains
a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding 
compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements.WeareindependentinrelationtoScandiStandardaccordingtogenerallyaccepted
auditingstandardsinSwedenandhavefulfilledourprofessionalethicsresponsibilityaccordingto
theserequirements.

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement and an examination according to 
RevR 12donotallowustoobtainsuchassurancethatwebecomeawareofallsignificantmattersthat
couldhavebeenidentifiedifanauditwasperformed.Theconclusionbasedonalimitedassurance
engagement and an examination in accordance with RevR 12, therefore, does not provide the same 
levelofassuranceasaconclusionbasedonanaudithas.

OurproceduresarebasedonthecriteriadefinedbytheBoardofDirectorsandtheGroupManage-
mentasdescribedabove.WeconsiderthesecriteriaassuitableforthepreparationoftheSustain-
abilityReport.

Webelievethattheevidencewehaveobtainedissufficientandappropriatetoprovideabasisfor
ourconclusionbelow.

Conclusion
Based on the limited assurance procedures we have performed, nothing has come to our attention 
that causes us to believe that the Sustainability Report is not prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordancewiththecriteriadefinedbytheBoardofDirectorsandGroupManagement.

AStatutorySustainabilityReporthasbeenprepared.

Stockholm, 25 March 2022
PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

 Ann-Christine Hägglund Daniel Johansson Stattin
 [Authorised Public Accountant] [Specialist Member of FAR] 

Auditor’s Limited Assurance Report on Scandi Standard’s Sustainability Report  
and statement on the Statutory Sustainability Report
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Corporate governance within Scandi Standard aims to promote sustainable value creation for shareholders and a sound corporate culture where 
businessopportunitiesareutilizedwithintheframeworkofgoodriskcontrol.Thiscorporategovernancereport,whichisapartoftheAnnual
Reportfor2021,hasbeenpreparedbytheBoardofDirectorsandhasbeenexaminedbyScandiStandard’sexternalauditor.Nodeviationsfrom
theSwedishCorporateGovernanceCodearereported.NobreachesofNasdaqStockholm’sapplicableregulationsandnobreachesofgood
practiceinthestockmarketwasreportedbyNasdaqStockholm’ssurveillanceortheSwedishSecuritiesCouncil.

Scandi Standard AB (publ), corporate identity number 556921-
0627 (the company) or the company with subsidiaries (the Group 
or Scandi Standard) is a Swedish Public Limited Liability Company 
withitsregisteredofficeinStockholm.Thecompany’sshareshave
beenlistedonNasdaqStockholmMidCapsinceJune2014.

Responsibility of corporate governance in the form of manage-
ment and control of Scandi Standard is distributed between the 
shareholders at the general meetings, the Board of Directors with 
appointed committees, and the Managing Director, pursuant to 
applicable external laws and regulations and internal steering 
documents in the form of Scandi Standard’s Articles of Associa-
tion,aswellasinternalcodes,policies,guidelinesandinstructions.

Share capital and shareholders
As of 31 December 2021, the share capital amounted to SEK 
659,663, represented by 66,060,890 shares with a quota value of 
SEK0.009986pershare.Eachsharecarriesonevote.Allshares
haveequalrightstoScandiStandard’sassetsandprofits.

The number of shareholders as of 31 December 2021 was 
8,520.Theholdingofthetenlargestownerscorrespondedto49
percent of the share capital and one shareholder Investment AB 
Öresund had a holding in the company in excess of ten percent, 
amountedto15.3percentofthesharecapitalasof31December
2021.Approximately31percentofthesharecapitalwasownedby
foreignersasof31December2021.Moreinformationoftheshare
andshareholders,seepages48–49.

General Meeting of shareholders
The General Meeting of shareholders is Scandi Standard’s highest 
decision-making body through which shareholders exercise their 
rightstomakedecisionsonScandiStandard’saffairs.Thereare
no restrictions on the shareholders’ rights in the Articles of Associ-
ation or, as far as the company is aware of, in any shareholders’ 
agreements.

Major external laws and regulations
−SwedishCompaniesAct.
−SwedishAnnualAccountsAct.
−NasdaqStockholm’sregulations,NordicMainMarket
RulebookforIssuersofShares.

−SwedishCorporateGovernanceCode.
−OtherSwedishandforeignlawsandregulations.

Major internal steering documents
−ArticlesofAssociation.
−ProcedurefortheBoardofDirectors,Instructionforthe
ManagingDirector,Instructionregardingfinancialreportingto
theBoardofDirectorsetc.

−CodeofConduct.
−Othercodes,policies,guidelinesandinstructions.

Corporate governance report

Proposals

Nomination  
Committee

Resolutions

Information

Shareholders  
by General Meeting

Styr Board of Directors else

Audit  
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

External  
Auditor

Managing Director and  
Group Management

Elections

Information

Electors

Governance structure

Segment  
Ready-to-cook

Segment  
Ready-to-eat

Denmark

Norway

Ireland

Finland

Sweden

Scandi Standard Annual Report 2021

Corporate governance report

117



The Annual General Meeting (AGM) in the company shall be held in 
Stockholm,Sweden,withinsixmonthsfromtheendofthefinan-
cialyear.BesidestheAGM,extraordinaryGeneralMeetingsmay
beconvened.

To participate in the decision-making at the Annual General 
Meeting requires that the shareholders exercise their voting rights 
bypost.Inaddition,theshareholdersmustberegistereddirectlyin
theshareregisterkeptbyEuroclearfivebusinessdayspriortothe
General Meeting, and to announce participation no later than the 
datespecifiedinthenoticeconveningthemeeting.

Annual General Meeting 2021
TheAGM2021washeldonMay7.Inordertopreventthespread
of the Covid-19, the Annual General Meeting was held without 
physicalpresenceofshareholders,proxiesorexternalparties.
Insteadtheshareholdersexercisedtheirvotingrightsbypost.
Resolutions by the AGM included, among others:
• Adoptionoftheincomestatementandthestatementoffinancial

position in the Annual report for the Parent Company and the 
Groupin2020.

• DividendofSEK1.25pershareforthe2020financialyear.
• Discharge of liability for the Board members and the Managing 
Directorforthe2020financialyear.

Matters to be resolved by the AGM:
• Adoption of the Annual Report for the Parent Company 
andtheGroup.

• Dividend.
• Discharge of liability for the Board members and the 
ManagingDirector.

• Election of Chairman of the Board, other Board members 
andexternalauditor.

• Fees to the Chairman of the Board, other non-employed 
Boardmembersandtheexternalauditor.

• Guidelinesforremunerationofseniormanagement.
• Long-termincentiveprogram(LTIP).
• Authorization for the Board to resolve on the issue of new 

shares and to acquire and transfer own shares to hedge 
commitmentsunderLTIP.

• Other matters in accordance with the Swedish 
CompaniesAct.

teeinstruction,whichisavailableonthecompanywebsite,www.
investors.scandistandard.com/en/agmsubmitproposalstothe
AGM  regarding:
• Chairman of the AGM, Board members elected by the AGM and 
theChairmanoftheBoardaswellastheexternalauditor.

• Fees to the Board members elected at the AGM and to the 
 Chairman of the Board, who are not employees of the company 
oritssubsidiary,andtotheexternalauditor.

• To the extent it is considered necessary, amendments to the 
InstructionsfortheNominationCommittee.

In accordance with the Instruction for the Nomination Committee, 
thecommitteeshallconsistofnolessthanfourmembers.Oneof
these members shall be the Chairman of the Board or a Board 
membernominatedbytheChairmanoftheBoard.Basedonthe
shareholding statistics as per the last bank day of August follow-
ing the AGM, the Nomination Committee shall identify the four 
largest shareholders in the company and urge them to elect the 
person which each shareholder wishes to appoint as member of 
theNominationCommittee.

The proposals of the Nomination Committee to the AGM are 
publiclyannouncednolaterthanonthedateofnotificationofthe
AGM.

The Nomination C ommittee for the AGM 2021 consisted of 
Andreas Hofmann (chairman, appointed by Investment AB 
Öresund), Johannes Wingborg (appointed by Länsförsäkringar 
Fondförvaltning AB), Per Olof Nyman (appointed by Lantmännen 
Animalie invest AB) and Per Harkjaer in his capacity as Chairman 
oftheBoardofScandiStandardAB(publ).JustinCartonwas
initially a member of the nomination committee but resigned from 
the committee on 18 February 2021 following the sale by Themvar 
EightofallitssharesinScandiStandard.

The proposals of the Nomination Committee to the 2021 AGM 
and an account of the Nomination Committee’s work were 
included in the notice convening the Annual General Meeting, 
which was published in a press release on 5 mars 2021 and on the 
company’swebsitewww.investors.scandistandard.com/eng/
agm.The2021AnnualGeneralMeetingresolvedinaccordance
withalltheNominationCommittee’sproposals.

The Nomination committee for the AGM 2022 consists of 
Andreas Hofmann (chairman, appointed by Investment AB 
Öresund), Johannes Wingborg (appointed by Länsförsäkringar 
Fondförvaltning AB), Christian Johansson (appointed by Lantmän-
nen Animalie invest AB), Tim Floderus (appointed by Eva Qviberg) 

• Approvaloftheremunerationreport.
• Re-election of Øystein Engebretsen, Henrik Hjalmarsson, 
MichaelParkerandHeléneVibbleusasBoardmembers.

• New election of Johan Bygge and Cecilia Lannebo as Board 
member.

• NewelectionofJohanByggeasChairmanoftheBoard.
• Total fees to the Board for the period up to the end of the next 

AGM should amount to SEK 3,295,000, of which SEK 875,000 to 
theChairmanoftheBoard,SEK360,000eachtotheotherfive
Board members not employed by the company or any of its 
subsidiaries, SEK 150,000 to the Chairman of the Audit Commit-
tee and SEK 75,000 each to the other member of this Commit-
tee, SEK 100 000 to the Chairman of the Investment Committee 
and SEK 50 000 each to the other member of this Committee 
and SEK 60,000 to the Chairman of the Remuneration 
 Committee and SEK 30,000 each to the other members of this 
Committee.

• Re-election of Öhrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB as Scandi 
Standard’s external auditor until the end of the next AGM and the 
feestotheauditors.

• Long-term incentive programme 2021 (LTIP 2021), authorisation 
for the Board of Directors to acquire and transfer own company 
shares to hedge the commitments under LTIP 2021 and authori-
sation for the Board of Directors to determine issue of new 
 company shares on the conditions set forth in the AGM 2021 
minutes,availableatthecompanywebsitewww.investors.
scandistandard.com/en/previous-general-meetings.

Annual General Meeting 2022
TheAnnualGeneralMeeting(AGM)2022willbeheldon4May.
The Board of directors intends to decide that the Annual General 
Meeting shall be held without physical presence of shareholders, 
proxies or external parties in accordance with the Act on Tempo-
rary Exemptions to facilitate the conduct of general and general 
meetings.Toparticipateinthedecision-makingatthegeneral
meeting requires that the shareholders exercise their voting rights 
bypost.NoticeoftheAnnualGeneralMeetingincludinginforma-
tion on how shareholders can vote by mailwill be available on: 
www.investors.scandistandard.com/en/agmbeforetheAnnual
GeneralMeeting.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee represents the shareholders of the 
company and shall, in accordance with the Nomination Commit-
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Nomination Committee for the 2022 AGM
ThenamesofthemembersoftheNominationCommitteeassetoutbelowwereannouncedinapressreleaseon25October2021.

Member Appointed by

Percent of 
share capital

2021-12-31

Percent of 
share capital 

2021-08-31 Independent1)

Andreas Hofmann Investment AB Öresund, Chairman 15.3% 15.3% Yes/No

Johannes Wingborg Länsförsäkringar Fondförvaltning AB 5.5% 5.6% Yes/Yes

Tim Floderus Eva Qviberg 5.3% 5.1% Yes/No

Christian Johansson Lantmännen Animalieinvest AB 5.0% 5.0% Yes/Yes

Johan Bygge Chairman of the Board of Scandi Standard AB (publ) Yes/Yes

1) Refers to independence of the company and its senior management and the independence of the company’s largest shareholder in terms of votes or any 
groupofshareholderswhoactinconcertinthegovernanceofthecompany.

and Johan Bygge in his capacity as Chairman of the Board of 
ScandiStandardAB(publ).

The Nomination Committee started its work by reviewing the 
tasks incumbent on it under the Swedish Corporate Governance 
Code and the Instruction for the Nomination Committee adopted 
at the AGM 2020 and a time plan was set for the Nomination 
Committee’swork.TheNominationCommitteetooknoteofChair-
man of the Board of Director’s views on the company’s and Group’s 
operations,targets,strategy,financialresultsandpositionand
otherimportantconditions.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the results of the exter-
nal evaluation from end of 2021 of the Board work and procedures, 
including the performance of the Chairman of the Board and its 
membersindividually.TheNominationCommitteealsohascon-
ductedindividualinterviewswithallboardmembers.Onthisbasis,
the Nomination Committee has assessed the competence, experi-
ence and background that the company’s Board members elected 
by the AGM should possess and considered the requirement for 
diversityandbreadthintheBoardintermsofgender,age,cultural/
geographic background, professional background and ownership 
representation.AnimportantstartingpointfortheNomination
Committee’s proposal to the Annual General Meeting is that each 
board assignment in the company shall be based on merit and the 
mainassignmentshallbetomaintainandimprovetheBoard’seffi-
ciency.TheNominationCommitteealsohadcontactswiththe
Chairman of the Audit Committee to obtain information on the 
AuditCommittee’sassessmentsofthequalityandefficiencyof
externalauditorwork.Priortosubmittingtheirproposaltothe
AGM2022,theNominationCommitteehadheldthreemeetings.

The Nomination Committee’s proposals to the AGM 2022 
The proposals of the Nomination Committee to the 2022 AGM and 
a statement for the Nomination Committee work will be 
announced in a press release in March 2022, which will be availa-
bleonthecompanywebsitewww.investors.scandistandard.com/
eng/.

The proposals and the statement will be included in the notice 
convening the AGM, which is available on the company website 
www.investors.scandistandard.com/en/agm.

Diversity policy
ThenominationcommitteeappliesRule4.1oftheSwedishCorpo-
rate Governance Code as diversity policy regarding the company’s 

Board of Directors, which aims for the Board to have a size and 
composition that ensures the ability to manage the company’s 
affairswithintegrityandefficiency.Thismeansthatwhenprepar-
ing its proposals to the AGM, the Nomination Committee consid-
ers that the Board of Directors shall have a, with regard to the 
company and Scandi Standard’s operations, phase of develop-
ment and other relevant circumstances, appropriate composition 
characterized by diversity and breadth regarding the AGM mem-
bers’competence,experienceandbackground.TheNomination
Committee is to strive for gender balance on the Board of Direc-
tors of the company but also for diversity and breadth including 
age,cultural/geographicalandprofessionalbackground.Inpar-
ticular, the Nomination Committee notes the necessity to increase 
thegenderbalanceoftheBoardofDirectorsovertime.

Board of Directors
According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of 
Directors shall consist of no less than three and not more than 
ninemembers,withoutdeputymembers.TheAGMelectsthe
BoardmembersandtheChairmanoftheBoard.

Until the AGM 2021, the Board comprised seven ordinary 
members, elected by the AGM 2020, and after the AGM 2021, six 
ordinary members, elected by the AGM 2021, for both years with 
nodeputiesandnoemployeerepresentatives.Formoreinforma-
tionontheBoardofDirectors,seepages126–127.

Independence
The Board is considered to be in compliance with the independ- 
ence requirements of the Swedish Corporate Governance Code in 
that the majority of the Board members are independent of the 
company and its management and at least two of these Board 
members are also independent of Scandi Standard’s major share- 
holders.Seethetableonpage121.

The Board’s tasks and responsibilities
The Board of Directors is responsible for the organisation and 
management of the company’s affairs in the interest of all share- 
holdersandsafeguardandpromoteagoodcompanyculture.The
Board’s responsibility and work are governed by laws and regula-
tions as well as internal steering documents, including the articles 
ofassociationandtheProcedurefortheBoardofDirectors.In
addition,theGeneralMeetingcanprovideinstructions.

The Procedure for the Board of Directors describes the Board’s 
tasks and responsibilities, the work of the Board including respon- 
sibility for the Chairman as well as responsibilities delegated to 
Committees appointed by the Board, Board meetings and informa- 
tion and reporting to the Board, management of insider informa-
tion, relations with Nasdaq Stockholm, information and reporting 
totheBoard,andinformationaboutcorporategovernance.The
Procedureisreviewedannuallyandadjustedasneeded.

In addition to the inaugural Board meeting held in conjunction 
withtheAGM,theBoardshallmeetatleastsixtimesayear.
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Board tasks and responsibilities:
• Appoint, evaluate and, if necessary, dismiss the Managing 
Director.

• Establishtheoverallobjectivesandstrategy.
• Identify how the sustainability issues affect risks and 
businessopportunities.

• Defineappropriateguidelinesininternalsteeringdocu-
ments to govern the company’s conduct in society, with 
theaimofensuringitslong-termvaluecreationcapability.

• Definenecessaryinternalsteeringdocumentsincl.Code
ofConduct.

• Decisionsoninvestments,incl.acquisitions,divestments
andfinancinginaccordancewithsetapprovalproce-
dures.

• Ensure an effective system for follow-up and control of 
thecompany’soperationsandthefinancialresultand
financialposition,andassociatedrisks.

• Ensure that there is a satisfactory process for monitoring 
the company’s compliance with laws and other regula-
tions,aswellasinternalsteeringdocuments.

• Ensure that the external communication is characterized 
byopennessandisaccurate,reliableandrelevantine.g.
interimreports,annualreportsandotherreports.

• Approval of interim reports, Year-end reports, and annual 
reports.

The Board has established an Instruction for the Managing 
Director,includingamongotherthingsspecificationsofissues
requiring the Board’s approval and an instruction regarding 
financialreportingtotheBoard.

Board activities in 2021
In 2021, the Board held 21 meetings, of which six per capsulam 
includingthestatutoryBoardmeetingandonebyemail.

The standing items on the agenda for the ordinary Board 
meetingsincludeanoperationalandfinancialreviewoftheopera-
tions against set goals and an outlook for the coming quarter, a 
review of investments, and reports from the committee of the 
BoardofDirectors.

In addition, the Board continuously addresses strategic issues 
concerning the market, product development, purchasing, 
production,personnel,investments,acquisitionsandfinancing.

Important issues for the Company and the Group that were 
addressed during the year included:
• Strategicprioritiesandgoals.
• Continuingdevelopmentofthesustainabilityplatform.
• DevelopmentfortheDanishReady-to-cookoperations.
• Investments,financing,cashflowandfinancialposition.
• ITandinformationsecurity.
• Externalrisk,includingCovid-19pandemicandbirdflu.
• Compliance within production

Evaluation of the Board’s work
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for evaluating the 
Board’s work on an annual basis with the aim of developing the 
Board’sformsofworkingandefficiency.Theresultsoftheevalua-
tion are communicated to the Board and reported to the Nomina-
tionCommittee.In2021,theChairmanprocuredanexternal
 evaluation of the Board’s work, which was communicated to the 
BoardandreportedtotheNominationCommittee.

Board Committees
The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration 
CommitteeandanInvestmentCommittee.Theworkofthecommit-
tees is mainly of a preparatory and consultative nature, but the 
Board may delegate decision-making authority to the committees 

• Dividend proposal for 2020
• Insurance
• Approval of the Year-end/Q4 report 2020

• Approval of the interim report for 
Q2 2021

• Group-wide improvement program
• Steering documents

• Plan and targets for 2022
• Financing
• Insurance
• Steering documents
• IT and information security

• Appointment of interim Managing Director and CEO
• Steering documents
• Strategic IT investments

• Report from the external auditor
• Risk Management
• Insurances 
• Decision on credit facilities
• Decision on dividend for 2020
• Approval of the Annual Report for 2020
• Notice of Annual General Meeting 2021
• Decision on new segment report from 2021 

• Approval of the interim report for Q3 2021
• Group-wide improvement program
• Financing

• Appointment of new Managing 
 Director and CEO with effect from 
1 April 2022

• Group-wide improvement program
• Financing

• Approval of the interim report for Q1 2021
• Decision on credit facilities
• Annual General Meeting 2021
• Inaugural Board meeting
• Steering documents
• Dismissal of Managing Director and CEO

JANJAN

JULJUL JUNJUN

APRAPR

MARMAR

FEBFEB

DECDEC

NOVNOV

OCTOCT

SEPSEP

AUGAUG MAYMAY

The Board of Director’s work cycle 2021
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onspecificmatters.ThecommitteesaresubordinatedtotheBoard
and do not discharge the Board members from their general respon-
sibilityandcommitmentasBoardmembers.

The issues considered at the committee meetings shall be 
recorded in minutes and the minutes shall normally be presented 
to the Board as information at the Board meeting following the 
committee meeting along with an oral presentation by the relevant 
committeechairman.

Audit Committee
The main tasks of the Audit Committee are to monitor Scandi 
Standard’sfinancialreportingandtomakerecommendationsand
suggestionsinordertosecurethereliabilityofthereporting.The
tasks also include to monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s inter- 
nal control, internal audit and risk management in general for the 
businessactivities,andspecificallyinrelationtothefinancial
reporting.Inaddition,thetaskincludeskeepingitselfinformed
regarding the external audit of the annual report for the company 
and the Group, as well as of the results of the Swedish Inspector-
ateofAuditors’qualitycontrol.Aspartofthis,theAuditCommittee
shall inform the Board of the results of the external audit and in 

what way the external audit has contributed to the reliability of 
financialreportingaswellasoftheroleoftheAuditCommittee.

The Audit Committee’s tasks also involve to review and moni-
tor the impartiality and independence of the external auditor and in 
particular pay attention to whether the external auditor has pro-
vided other services than auditing, and to assist in preparation of 
the proposal to the General Meeting regarding election of the 
externalauditor.

The Audit Committee of Scandi Standard shall comprise no 
fewerthantwoBoardmembers.ThemembersoftheAuditCom-
mitteemustnotbeemployedbythecompanyoritssubsidiary.At
leastoneofthemembersmusthaveaccountingorauditingprofi-
ciency.ThemembersoftheAuditCommitteemustbeindepend-
ent in relation to the company and the management and at least 
one of the members must be independent in relation to the com-
pany’smajorshareholders.

The Audit Committee 2021, after the AGM, comprised the three 
Board members, Heléne Vibbleus (Chairman), Øystein Engebret-
senandCeciliaLannebo.TheAuditCommitteehadatotalofeight
meetingsduringtheyear.Thecompany’sCFO,HeadofFinance
and other employees such as CEO and Head of Investor Relation 

attend meetings when necessary and in accordance with the 
agenda.Theexternalauditorandtheinternalauditorattendthe
meetingwhennecessaryandinaccordancewiththeagenda.

The work was primarily focused on:
• Year-endreportandAnnualReport2020.
• Interimreports2021.
• Critical accounting issues, such as the reporting of Goodwill and 

intangible assets, valuation of inventory and other issues that 
could affect the quality of the company’s and the Group’s 
financialreporting.

• Disputesandinsurance.
• Segmentreporting.
• Internal control 
• Internal governance 
• Risk management and internal control, linked to the control 

environment, processes and the IT environment including 
informationsecuritywithaspecialfocusoncybersecurity.

• ReviewtheefficiencyandcomplianceofFrameworkforinternal
control.

• Reviewofinternalsteeringdocuments.

Board of Directors Attendance 2021

Name Nationality Indepen dence1)
Board 

Meetings

Audit 
Committee 

Meetings

Remuneration 
Committee 

Meetings

Investment 
Committee 

Meetings
Authorized
fees, SEK3)

Shareholdings 
no of shares4)

Johan Bygge Chairman/CommitteeChairman Swedish Yes/Yes 15/15 2/2 935,000 15 800
Øystein Engebretsen Committee member Norwegian Yes/No 21/21 8/8 3/3 465,000 1,104,250
Henrik Hjalmarsson Committee Chairman Swedish Yes/Yes 17/21 5/5 460,000 1,000
Cecilia Lannebo Committee member Swedish Yes/Yes 15/15 4/4 435,000
Michael Parker Committee member British Yes/Yes 21/21 5/5 410,000 16,000
Heléne Vibbleus Committee Chairman Swedish Yes/Yes 20/21 8/8 510,000 6,250
Per Harkjaer2) Danish Yes/Yes 6/6 1/1
Vincent Carton2) Irish Yes/Yes 6/6 2/2
Karsten Slotte2) Finnish Yes/Yes 6/6
Total   21 8 3 5 3,215,000 1,143,300 

1) Referstoindependenceinrelationtothecompanyanditsmanagement,andtothecompany’smajorshareholderscontrolling,directlyorindirectly,tenpercentormoreofthesharesorvotesinthecompany.
2) Board member until Annual General Meeting 2021
3) Feesexcludetravelallowances.
4) AsofDecember31,2021.Holdingsinclude,whenapplicable,alsoholdingsbyrelatedparties.
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• Internalauditplanandfollow-upoftheresultsoftheinternalaudit.
• Externalauditplanandfollow-upoftheresultsoftheexternalaudit.

Remuneration Committee
The main tasks of the Remuneration Committee include to pre-
pare the Board’s decisions on issues concerning guidelines for 
remuneration, remuneration and other terms of employment for 
seniormanagement.Themaintasksalsoincludetomonitorand
evaluate both ongoing and completed programs during the year 
for variable remuneration for senior management and to monitor 
and evaluate the application of the guidelines for remuneration 
that the AGM has established as well as the current remuneration 
structuresandlevelsinScandiStandard.TheRemuneration
Committee’s main task also includes to prepare and submit to the 
Board no later than the Board meeting in February each year, a 
remuneration report in accordance with the Swedish Companies 
Act and the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance and a report 
on its monitoring and evaluation of the application of ongoing and 
completed programs for remuneration to senior executives 
decided by the AGM and current remuneration structures and 
remunerationlevelsinScandiStandard.

The Remuneration Committee of Scandi Standard shall com-
prisenofewerthantwoBoardmembers.TheChairmanofthe
BoardmaychairtheCommittee.Theothermembersaretobe
independentofScandiStandardanditsseniormanagement.

The Remuneration Committee 2021, after the AGM, comprised 
the two Board members Johan Bygge (Chairman) and Øystein 
Engebretsen.TheRemunerationCommitteeheldatotalofthree
meetingsduringtheyear.TheGroup’sHRdirectorattendsthemeet-
ingswhenneededandinaccordancewiththemeetingagenda.

The work mainly focused on reviewing salary processes for 
remuneration to senior management, including bonus schemes, 
as well as preparation of proposal for a long-term incentive pro-
grammetobeproposedtotheAGM2022.

Investment Committee
The main tasks of the Investment Committee is review and moni-
tor that the Company’s overall capex pipeline is aligned with the 
Company’s business strategy and its long-term supply chain 
strategy and prepare and submit proposals to the Board regarding 
specificinvestmentprojectsthatrequiretheBoard’sapproval.

The Investment Committee of Scandi Standard shall comprise 
nofewerthantwoBoardmembers.TheInvestmentCommittee
2021, after the AGM, comprised the two Board members, Henrik 

Hjalmarsson(Chairman)andMichaelParker.TheInvestment
Committeehadatotaloffivemeetingsduringtheyear.The
Group’s CFO attends the meetings when needed and in accord-
ancewiththemeetingagenda.

Guidelines for remuneration to senior management
Salaries and other terms and conditions of employment in the 
company and the Group shall be adequate to enable the company 
and the Group to retain and recruit skilled senior managers at a 
reasonablecost.Theremunerationtotheseniormanagersshall
consistoffixedsalary,variablesalary,pensionandotherbenefits,
and it shall be based on principles of performance, competitive-
nessandfairness.

The General Meeting may resolve on long-term incentive pro-
grams such as share and share price-related long-term incentive 
programs for certain key persons in the company and in the Group 
and designed to promote the long-term value growth of the com-
pany and the Group and improve alignment between the interests 
oftheparticipatingindividualsandthecompany’sshareholders.
The 2021 AGM resolved on a share-related long-term incentive 
programme 2021 (LTIP 2021) of the same type as outstanding 
programmes for LTIP 2020 and LTP 2019 and which is partly 
similar to the previous programme LTIP 2018 as decided by the 
AnnualGeneralMeetingsforeachyear.

For information about the guidelines for remuneration to sen-
ior management and long-term incentive programmes, see the 
ReportbytheBoardofDirectorsonpages54–55andNote5.

Whistle-blowing procedure
Scandi Standard has a whistle-blowing procedure that makes it 
possible for employees and other stakeholders to anonymously 
report illegal or unethical behaviour that violates the Group’s Code 
ofConduct.Awhistle-blowingpolicyhasbeenestablishedforthe
functionsoperations.

External auditor
Scandi Standard’s external auditor is Öhrlings Pricewaterhouse- 
Coopers AB (PwC), elected at the AGM 2021 until the end of the 
AGM2022,withAnn-ChristineHägglundastheAuditorincharge.

Ann-Christine Hägglund was born in 1966 and has been an 
authorisedpublicaccountantsince1997.Shehasnoinvolvement
in companies related to the principal owners of Scandi Standard or 
withthemanagementatScandiStandard.Forremunerationtothe
externalauditor,seeNote7.

Internal control over financial reporting
The Board is responsible for internal control and risk management 
in accordance with the Swedish Companies Act and the Swedish 
CorporateGovernanceCode.BelowistheBoard’sreportoninter-
nalcontrolandriskmanagementoverfinancialreporting.

The description of the Group’s system of internal control and 
riskmanagementwithregardstofinancialreportingisbasedon
the framework developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi-
zationsoftheTreadwayCommission(COSO).Thisframework
comprisesfiveintegratedcomponents;thecontrolenvironment,
risk assessment, control activities, information and communica-
tion, and monitoring, as well as 17 fundamental principles related 
tothefivecomponents.Thedescriptionbelowislimitedtointernal
controlandriskmanagementoverfinancialreporting.

Internalcontroloverfinancialreportingaimstoprovidereason-
ableassuranceofthereliabilityofexternalfinancialreportingin
interim reports, full year reports and annual reports, and to ensure 
thatexternalfinancialreportingispreparedinaccordancewith
external laws, accounting standards and other requirements 
applicabletolistedcompanies.

Control environment
Internalcontroloverfinancialreportingisbasedontheoverall
controlenvironment.Thecontrolenvironmentisthesetofstand-
ards, processes, and structures that provide the basis for carrying 
outinternalcontrolacrosstheGroup.TheBoardandGroupMan-
agement establish the tone at the top regarding the importance of 
internal control including expected standards of conduct of the 
employees.Thisinvolvesintegrityandethicalvalues,theparame-
ters enabling the Board to carry out its oversight responsibilities, 
the organizational structure and assignment of responsibility and 
authority, the process for attracting, developing, and retaining 
competent employees, and the rigor around performance meas-
ures, as well as incentives and rewards to drive accountability for 
performance.Theresultingcontrolenvironmenthasapervasive
impact on the overall system of internal control and risk manage-
mentforthefinancialreporting.Thisiscommunicatedintheform
of internal steering documents such as:
• ArticlesofAssociation.
• ProcedurefortheBoardofDirectors.
• InstructionfortheManagingDirector.
• InstructionregardingfinancialreportingtotheBoard.
• CodeofConduct.
• Othercodes,policies,guidelinesandinstructions.
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• The control environment is also based on applicable external 
lawsandregulations.

The Board has established a procedure for its work and the Audit 
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Investment 
Committee.ThemaintaskoftheAuditCommitteeincludesto
monitorScandiStandard’sfinancialreportingandtomakerecom-
mendations and suggestions in order to secure the reliability of the 
reporting.Thetaskalsoincludestomonitortheeffectivenessof
the Group’s internal control, internal audit and risk management, 
andmorespecificallyregardingfinancialreportingingeneralfor
thebusinessactivities.Inaddition,thetaskincludeskeepingitself
informed regarding the external audit of the annual report for the 
company and the Group, as well as of the results of the Swedish 
InspectorateofAuditors’qualitycontrol.Aspartofthis,theAudit
Committee’s work also includes to inform the Board of the results 
of the external audit and in what way the external audit has con-
tributedtothereliabilityoffinancialreportingandtheroleofthe
AuditCommittee.

Responsibility for implementing the Board’s internal steering 
documents regarding internal control and risk management over 
financialreporting,maintaininganeffectivecontrolenvironment
as well as the day-to-day work on internal control and risk manage-
mentoverfinancialreportingisdelegatedtotheManagingDirec-
tor.Thisresponsibilityisinturndelegatedtomanagerswithintheir
specificareasofresponsibilityatvariouslevelsintheGroup.

ResponsibilityandauthorityaredefinedbytheBoardin,among
others, internal steering documents such as Instruction for the 
Managing Director stipulating resolutions that are subject to 
decision by the Board or the General Meeting of shareholders, 
AuthoritytosignforthecompanyandDelegatedAuthorities.The
Board also approves, among others, the following internal steering 
documents:InstructionregardingfinancialreportingtotheBoard
of directors, Code of Conduct, Whistle-blowing Policy, Information 
Policy,InsiderPolicy,ITSecurityPolicyandFinancePolicy.The
Managing Director approves the Group’s Finance and Accounting 
Manual,whichisavailabletoallpersonnelinfinanceandaccount-
ing.BasedontheBoard’sinternalsteeringdocuments,theManag-
ing Director, the CFO and other managers establish guidelines and 
instructionstobeimplementedwithintheirspecificareasof
responsibility.Oneexampleisanestablishedguidelineforinternal
controlforthefinancialreporting.

These internal steering documents are reviewed and updated 
regularly with reference to for example changes in legislation, 
accounting standards, listing requirements and internal risk 
assessment.Controlsareperformedatagenerallevelby
analysingresultsandkeyfiguresaswellasatadetailedlevel
by includingcontrolactivitiesinprocesses.

Risk assessment
The Group has a formalised and proactive process for risk man-
agementwithclearlyestablishedrolesandareasofresponsibility.
The process for risk management implies that risks and risks 
relatedtofinancialreportingshouldbeidentified,evaluated,man-
agedandfollowed-upasanintegralpartofcorporategovernance.
This is done in order to secure that the Group lives up to the aim of 
internalcontrolrelatedtofinancialreportinginanefficientway.

In accordance with the risk management process, a risk analy-
sisiscarriedoutwithacertainperiodicityregardingfinancial
reporting, which among other things comprises items in the 
incomestatementandthestatementoffinancialposition,andthe
processesandcontrolactivitiesthatarelinkedtothefinancial
reporting,thefinancialstatementsandtheIT-environmentare
analysedonthebasisofmaterialityandtheriskforerrors.The
mostrecentriskanalysiswascarriedoutduring2020.

Control activities
Risksoverfinancialreportingaremitigatedthroughcontrolactivi-
tiestoensurethattheaimsforinternalcontroloverfinancial
reportingaremet.

Control activities are performed at different levels of the Group 
anditsprocessesincludingprocessesforfinancialreporting,
closingandovertheITenvironment.Theymaybepreventiveor
detective in nature and may encompass a range of manual and 
automatedactivities,suchasapprovals,verifications,reconcilia-
tions,andmonitoringofthebusinessperformance.Adistinction
between controlling and executing functions known as the segre-
gation of duties is typically built into the selection and develop-
mentofthecontrolactivities.Acontinuousworkhasbeencarried
out during the year to evaluate and improve the control activities 
withintheframeworkforinternalcontrolforfinancialreporting.

Information and communication
The Group maintains information and communication processes 
toensureadequateinternalfinancialreporting,formonitoringof
business performance and for decision support, as well as for 
providingaccurate,reliableandrelevantexternalfinancialreport-
ingtothefinancialmarkets.

Internal information and communication
The internal steering documents relevant to internal control over 
financialreportingareforinstanceInstructionsregardingfinancial
reporting to the Board of Directors, Whistle-blowing policy, Infor-
mation Policy, IT Security Policy, Finance Policy, Finance and 
AccountingManualandframeworkforinternalcontrolforfinan-
cialreporting.ThedocumentscanbeaccessedontheGroup’s
intranetbyallrelevantpersonnel.

The Group CFO reports to the Audit Committee on the results, 
critical accounting issues and other issues that could affect the 
qualityoftheGroup’sfinancialreportingattheAuditCommittee
meetings where the interim reports, Year-end report and annual 
reportaredealtwith.Whenreportingonthequalityofthefinancial
reporting, there is particular focus on any critical accounting 
issues, any uncertainties in valuations, any changes in assump- 
tions and estimates, any unadjusted faults in the annual accounts, 
any events after the end of the accounting period as well as the 
qualityofthefinancialreportingprocess,theclosingprocessand
ITenvironment.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports on the Commit- 
tee’s work to the Board in the form of observations, recommenda- 
tions and proposed decisions at the Board meeting following the 
Committee meetings and in the form of minutes from the Audit 
CommitteemeetingsthataresubmittedtotheBoard.

Internalfinancialreportingformonitoringofperformanceand
for decision support is submitted to Group Management and the 
Boardonaregularbasis.

External information and communication
The Group’s process for external information and communication 
aimatprovidingthefinancialmarketswithaccurate,reliableand
relevant information which is characterised by openness regard-
ingthedevelopmentoftheGroupanditsfinancialresultsand
financialpositioninatimelymanner.

The Group has an Information policy meeting the requirements 
ofalistedcompany.
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Financial information is issued regularly in the form of:
• InterimreportsandYear-endreportpublishedaspressreleases.
• Annualreport.
• Press releases and important news items on all matters that 
couldmateriallyaffecttheshareprice.

• Presentations and telephone conferences on the day of 
 publication of interim reports and Year-end report that are also 
webcasted.

• MeetingswithfinancialanalystsandinvestorsinSwedenand
abroad.

Interim reports, year-end reports and annual reports are to be 
foundonScandiStandard’swebsiteatwww.scandistandard.com,
as well as press releases, presentations and relevant internal 
steeringdocuments.

Monitoring
Ongoing evaluations, separate evaluations, or some combination of 
thetwoareusedtoascertainwhethereachofthefivecomponents
ofinternalcontrolispresentandfunctioning.Ongoingevaluations
are performed by the Board and management at different levels of 
the Group, and separate evaluations are conducted as deemed 
necessaryforinstancebytheGroup’sinternalauditfunction.

Financial reporting
Financial data is reported every month by the reporting units, 
being a business unit operating within a subsidiary of the Parent 
Company, in accordance with the procedure stipulated in the 
Finance and Accounting Manual and Framework for internal 
controloverfinancialreporting.AllconsolidationoftheGroup’s
financialreportsiscentralisedtotheGroupFinancefunction.All
financialreportsarestoredinacentraldatabasefromwhichdata
isretrievedforanalysisandmonitoring.

Controller
All reporting units that conduct business within one of the compa-
ny’s subsidiaries have a controller whose responsibilities include 
toensureadequateinternalcontrolconcerningfinancialreporting
and to comply with the Group’s internal steering documents such 
as the Finance and Accounting Manual and Framework for inter-
nalcontroloverfinancialreporting.Theresponsibilityalsoincludes
reportingcomplete,accurateandtimelyfinancialinformationto
theParentCompany.

Country Managers
A Country Manager is appointed in each country where the Group 
operatessubsidiariesoftheParentCompany.TheCountry
 Manager’s duties include to ensure adequate internal control over 
financialreportingandtocomplywiththeGroup’sinternalsteering
documents as well as to identify and report risks that can have an 
impactonthequalityonfinancialreportingandreviewthefinan-
cialinformationforreasonableness.

Group Finance
The central Group Finance function is responsible for the consoli- 
dationoftheGroup’sfinancialreportsandtoensureadequate
internalcontroloverfinancialreporting,andthatthereportingby
each reporting unit that is conducting business within any of the 
company’s subsidiaries and the Group are made in accordance 
with the Finance and Accounting Manual and Framework for 
internalcontroloverfinancialreporting.

Group Management
Group management comprises the Managing Director and CEO, 
the CFO, the COO, Group CIO, Group HR Director, Group Business 
Development Director, Group Sustainability Director, the Director of 
GroupLiveOperations,andthefivecountrymanagers.Group
Managementnormallyreviewsalesandresultsonaweeklybasis.
They hold meetings every second week to review the monthly 
results and position, to update forecasts and plans and to discuss 
criticalbusinessissues.GroupManagementisresponsiblefor
implementing the annual business plan, targets for the Group and 
forgoodinternalcontrolandaccuraterelevantochreliablefinan-
cialreportingwithintheirrespectiveareasofresponsibility.

Internal audit
An internal audit function was established in 2015, which is 
insourcedfromDeloitte.Theworkin2021focusedtoalarge
extentonevaluatingtheefficiencyininternalcontroloverITGen-
eral Controls and the business in general in accordance with an 
annualinternalauditplan.

The Board of Directors
The Board is responsible for internal control and risk management 
including internal control and risk management related to the 
financialreporting.Thisresponsibilityincludesestablishinginter-
nal steering documents and monitoring compliance with these as 
wellaswithapplicableexternallawsandregulations.

The Board’s follow-up of compliance is based on different sources 
such as:
• ReportingfromtheManagingDirectorandCEOregardingfulfil-

ment of established targets, operational development, as well as 
financialresults,financialpositionandrisks.IntheInstruction
fortheManagingDirectorandtheInstructionregardingfinancial
reportingtotheBoard,theBoardhasdefinedthereporting
requiredtobemadetotheBoard.

• Reporting from the Chairman of the Audit Committee regarding 
the work in the Committee in the form of observations, recom-
mendations and proposals for decisions relating to the effective-
nessoftheinternalcontrolregardingthefinancialreportingand
the business in general in the Group, as well as the reliability of 
thefinancialreporting.TheworkoftheAuditCommitteeisbased
onaninstructionestablishedbytheBoard.Theinternalaudit
function reports the result of its work to the Audit Committee 
and this forms the basis for the Committee’s observations and 
recommendations.

• ReportingfromtheWhistle-blowingfunction.

Stockholm, 24 March 2022

Scandi Standard AB (publ) 
The Board of Directors
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To the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders in Scandi 
Standard AB (publ), corporate identity number 556921−0627

Engagement and responsibility
It is the Board of directors who is responsible for the corporate
governance statement for the year 2021 on pages 117–124 
and thatithasbeenpreparedinaccordancewiththeAnnual
AccountsAct.

The scope of the audit
Our examination has been conducted in accordance with FAR’s
auditing standard RevU 16 The auditor’s examination of the corpo-
rategovernancestatement.Thismeansthatourexaminationof
the corporate governance statement is different and substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Interna-
tional Standards on Auditing and generally accepted auditing
standardsinSweden.Webelievethattheexaminationhaspro-
videduswithsufficientbasisforouropinions.

Opinions
Acorporategovernancestatementhasbeenprepared.
Disclosures in accordance with chapter 6 section 6 the second
paragraph points 2–6 the Annual Accounts Act and chapter
7 section 31 the second paragraph the same law are consistent
with the annual accounts and the consolidated accounts and are
inaccordancewiththeAnnualAccountsAct.

Stockholm, 25 March 2022
Öhrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Ann-Christine Hägglund
Authorised Public Accountant

Auditor’s report on the Corporate Governance Statement
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1  JOHAN BYGGE
Chairman of the board
Born1956.
MSc in Business and Economics, Stockholm 
SchoolofEconomics.
Other assignments: Chairman of the board of 
NobinaAB(publ)andGuardTherapeuticsAB.
Vice chairman Tredje AP-fonden, Board member 
of Getinge AB, Lantmännen ek för, Praktikertjänst, 
CapmanOyjandBalticDeepWaterLife.
Previous assignments: Johan Bygge has 
 extensive experience of board work in listed and 
unlistedcompanies.JohanByggehasalsobeen
deputy CEO of Electrolux, COO of EQT AB and 
CFOofInvestorAB.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 15,800 shares.In
March 2021, Johan Bygge also acquired a three-
year call option from Investment AB Öresund, 
which gives him the right to acquire 300,000 
ScandiStandardsharesforSEK80pershare.

2  ØYSTEIN ENGEBRETSEN
Board member
Born1980.
BI Norwegian School of Management,
Sandvika/Oslo,MasterofScienceinBusiness,
MajorinFinance.
Elected2017.
Other assignments: Investment manager,
InvestmentABÖresund.Boardmemberof
CatenaMediaP.L.C,InsrInsuranceGroupAS.
Previous assignments: Board member of
Investment AB Öresund and Projektengage-
mang Sweden AB, Project manager,
VikingSverigeAB.CorporateFinance,HQBank.
Holdings in Scandi Standard:1,104,250shares.

3  HENRIK HJALMARSSON
Board member
Born1976.
Master of Science in Mechanical Engineering 
and Technology Management, University of 
Lund,Sweden.
Elected2020.
Other assignments: President & CEO of Inwido 
AB(publ).Chairmanoftheboardofdirectorsof
RepascoAB.
Previous assignments: CEO and other leading 
positionsatFindusandNomadFoods.
Holdings in Scandi Standard:1,000shares.

4  CECILIA LANNEBO
Board member 
Born1973.
MSc in Business and Economics with a major 
in InternationalMarketingfromMälardalen
UniversityandWirtschaftsuniversitätWien.
Other assignments: Founder and CEO of i-Core 
CommunicationsAB.Boardmemberof
Boozt AB.
Previous assignments: Over 20 years of work 
experience from capital markets, as an analyst 
within the retail and services sector and seven 
years as responsible for investor relations in 
listedcompanies.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 0shares.

5  MICHAEL PARKER
Board member
Born1953.
Bachelor of Science hons in Business Adminis-
tration, University of Bath, UK, and a Booker
SeniorManagementCertificatefromINSEAD.
Elected2014.
Other assignments: Board member of Brookes
ParkerLtdandProspectPublishingLtd.
Previous assignments: Deputy CEO of Young’s 
BluecrestSeafood(nowYoung’sSeafood).
Board member of Marine Harvest ASA and Karro 
FoodGroup.
Holdings in Scandi Standard:16,000shares.

6  HELÉNE VIBBLEUS
Board member
Born1958.
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration 
andEconomics,UniversityofLinköping,Sweden.
Elected2014.ChairmanoftheAuditCommittee.
Other assignments: Vice President Internal
Audit,ChiefAuditExecutive(CAE),AutolivInc.
Board member of Dometic Group AB and 
SegulahMedicalAccelerationAB.
Previous assignments: Board member of Marine 
Harvest ASA, Orio AB, Renewable Energy 
 Corporation ASA, Swedbank Sjuhärad AB, Trade-
doublerAB,TrelleborgABandTyrénsAB.Board
memberandViceChairmanofSida.Boardmem-
ber and Chairman of Nordic Growth Market NGM 
ABandInvisioCommunicationsAB.GroupVice
President,ChiefAuditExecutive(CAE),ElektaAB.
Senior Vice President, Group Controller, AB Elec-
trolux.Partner(Authorizedpublicaccountant)
andBoardmemberofPwCSweden.
Holdings in Scandi Standard:6,250shares.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
ÖhrlingsPricewaterhouseCoopersAB. 
Ann-Christine Hägglund, Authorised Public 
Accountant,born1966,chiefauditor.
Other assignments: Principal auditor, among 
ohters,forNCC,JMandBusinessSweden.

All shareholdings reported as per 31 December 
2021. 
When applicable, holdings in Scandi Standard 
includesalsoholdingsbyrelatedparties.

Johan Bygge and Cecilia Lannebo are 
membersoftheboardsinceMay2021.
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1  OTTO DRAKENBERG
Interim managing director and CEO. 
Born1966.
InGroupManagementsince2021.
Previous assignments: Extensive 
experience from leading business 
transformations, as CEO of Carlsberg 
Sweden, Arcus Group, Moment Group 
andTwilfit,andasChairmanofthe
BoardofSpendrupsBrewery.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
9,000 shares

2  JULIA LAGERQVIST
Chief Financial Officer, CFO
Born1979.
Master of Science, Stockholm school 
ofEconomic,Sweden.
InGroupManagementsince2019.
Previous assignments: CFO Kronfågel 
AB, CFO of SverigesEnergi, Nordic 
Finance  Manager, Barilla and several 
differentpositionsinProcter&Gamble.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
5,168shares.

3  PER ALAN JENSEN 
Chief Operating Officer, COO
Born1962.
Bachelor of Science in Technology, 
UniversityofOdense,Denmark.
InGroupManagementsince2013.
Other major assignments: Board 
memberFarmFoodA/S.
Previous assignments: Factory 
managerRosePoultryA/S.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
489,324shares.

4  MAGNUS LAGERGREN 
Group Business Development Director 
and Country Manager, Denmark
Born1960.
Master of Science in Economics and 
Technology, University of Agriculture, 
Sweden.
InGroupManagementsince2014.
Other major assignments: Chairman
Svenska Retursystem AB and board 
member Dagligvaru leverantörernas 
Förbund(DLF).
Previous assignments: Chairman and 
Managing Director, Dalsjöfors Holding 
AB.ManagingDirector,SwedishMeats
cooperative/ScanAB/HKScan.Man-
agement positions within Swedish 
MeatsandScanAB.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
0shares.

5  TOMMI SAKSALA
Director, Group Live Operations
Born1969.
Master of Science in Agricultural 
 Economics & Management, University 
ofHelsinki,Finland.
InGroupManagementsince2014.
Previous assignments: International 
broiler industry supply chain manage-
mentconsultant,PomiconOyLtd.
 Director, poultry meat supply chain live 
operations, A-Tuottajat Oy (Atria Group 
Abs).
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
66,831shares.

6  GÖRAN MATZ
Group CIO
Born1967.
Bachelor of Science, Stockholm School 
ofEconomics.
InGroupManagementsince2021.
Previous assignments: Group CIO 
Martin & Servera, IT Director Servera 
R&SAB,variouspositionsEnatorAB.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 0 shares

7  KARIN JANSSON
Group HR Director 
Born: 1963
Bachelor of Science in HR and 
Organization.
InGroupManagementsince2021.
Previous assignments: HR  Manager 
TNTandKronfågel.HRassignmentsin
Digital Equipment, Allgon Mobile Com-
munications and DHL Excel Supply 
chain.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
2,300 shares.

8  FREDRIK STRØMMEN
Country Manager, Norway and Interim 
Country Manager Sweden
Born1971.
Master of Science, Norwegian School 
ofEconomics,Norway.
InGroupManagementsince2015.
Other major assignments: Board 
member in Opplysningskontoret for 
eggogkjøttandDLFNorway.
Vice-chairman of the Board in Animalia 
andKLF.
Previous assignments: CEO, Orkla 
CommercialExcellenceASA.CEOand
Countrymanager,SætreAS.Manage-
ment positions within Sætre AS and 
KiMsAS.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
50,180 shares

9  FRANK MCMYLER
Country Manager, Ireland
Born 1969
Bachelor of Food Business, University 
College Cork
InGroupManagementsince2021.
Previous Assignments: Regional 
COO Hilton Food Group & other leader-
ships roles in Hilton Food Group 
2003–2020
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
0 shares

10  TUOMAS MAANSALO
Interim Country Manager, Finland
Born: 1984
Engineer in food technology
In Group Management since 2021
Previous assignments: Operations 
director in Naapurin Maalaiskana Oy, 
Plant director in HKScan Finland Oy
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
0 shares

11  IDA LJUNGKVIST
Group Sustainability Director
Born: 1985
Master of Science in Civil and 
 Environmental Engineering and 
 Master of Science in Industrial 
 Ecology from Chalmers University 
of Technology
InGroupManagementsince2022.
Previous assignments: Sustainability 
advisory and project management at 
KPMG AB, Head of Sustainability 
Application and Operations at 
RobecoSAMAG.
Holdings in Scandi Standard: 
0 shares

Group Management per 24 March 2022
Changes January 2022 to April 2022 
• MichaelBudtzBerthelsenhasresignedasGroupSupplyChainDirector.
• Mats Hedlund has resigned as Country Manager, Sweden
• Samuli Eskola has resigned as Country Manager, Finland

All shareholdings reported as per 
31 December2021.
When applicable, holdings in Scandi 
Standard includes also holdings by 
relatedparties.
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Annual General Meeting
TheAnnualGeneralMeeting(AGM)2022willbeheldon4May.
The Board of directors intends to decide that the Annual General 
Meeting shall be held without physical presence of shareholders, 
proxies or external parties in accordance with the Act on Tempo-
rary Exemptions to facilitate the conduct of general and general 
meetings.Toparticipateinthedecision-makingatthegeneral
meeting requires that the shareholders exercise their voting rights 
bypost.NoticeoftheAnnualGeneralMeetingincludinginforma-
tion on how shareholders can vote by mailwill be available on: 
www.investors.scandistandard.com/en/agmbeforetheAnnual
GeneralMeeting.

Vote at the annual genereal meeting
Shareholders who wish to exercise their voting rights at the Annual 
General Meeting must:
• be entered as a shareholder in the share register kept by Euro 

clear Sweden AB on Tuesday 26 April 2022 or, if the shares are 
registered in the name of a nominee, request that the nominee 
registers the shares in the shareholder’s own name for voting 
purposes in such time that the registration is completed by 
Thursday 28 April 2022; and

• submit a postal vote in accordance with the instructions set out 
in notice for the Annual General Meeting in such time that the 
company receives the postal vote by Tuesday 3 May 2022, at the 
latest.

Instructions for voting by post
In order to vote at the annual general meeting, the shareholders 
shall use the voting form and follow the company’s instructions 
thatareavailableonthecompany’swebsite,www.scandistandard.
com.Thevotingformshouldbesenteither:
• byposttoScandiStandardAB(publ),Att.“Annualgeneral
meeting”c/oEuroclearSwedenAB,P.O.Box191, 
SE-101 23 Stockholm; or

• byemailtogeneralmeetingservice@euroclear.com(state
“Scandi Standard” in the subject line of the email); or

• electronically with BankID in accordance with the instructions 
on https://anmalan.vpc.se/euroclearproxy.

If a shareholder’s voting rights are exercised by proxy, a power of 
attorney and other authorisation documents must be enclosed 
withthevotingform.Aproxyformwillbeavailableatthecom-
pany’swebsite,www.scandistandard.com.

Forward looking statement
This report contains forward-looking statements and the 
actualoutcomecouldbemateriallydifferent.Factorsthat
could have a material effect on the actual outcome include, 
but are not limited to, general business conditions, product 
demand, available credits, available insurance, fluctuations in 
exchange rates and interest rates, political and geopolitical  
developments, the impact of competing products and their 
pricing, product development, commercialization and tech-
nologicaldifficulties,availabilityofproductionfacilities,
compliance in production, product quality and safety, inter-
ruptions in supply, increased raw material cost, disease 
outbreaks, loss of major customer contracts, major cus-
tomer credit losses, effects of Covid-19 pandemic, bird flue 
andgovernmentdecisions.Forfurtherinformationseethe
sections on Risks and risk management on page 57–61 and 
Note22.

Information about markets, market shares, market 
growthetc.arebasedonestablishedindependentexternal
sources,internalsourcesandthecompanyestimates.The
forward-looking statements reflect the Board of Directors’ 
and Group Management’s current views with respect to 
certainfutureeventsandpotentialfinancialperformance.
Although the Board of Directors and the Group Management 
believe that the expectations reflected in such forwardlook-
ing statements are reasonable, no assurance can be given 
thatsuchexpectationswillprovetohavebeencorrect.This
report does not imply that the company has undertaken to 
revise these forward-looking statements, beyond what is 
required under the company’s registration contract with 
Nasdaq Stockholm, if and when circumstances arise that 
will leadtochangescomparedtothedatewhenthese
statementswereprovided.
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Scandi Standard AB (publ)
Strandbergsgatan 55 
Box 30174
SE-112 51 Stockholm
Sverige
Reg no. 556921-0627
Domecile: Stockholm

info@scandistandard.com
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